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Highlights

nighlights

Group

Revenue up 16 per cent to £2 0 billion
Operating profit up 7 per cent al £128 0 million

Adjusted EPS® up 5 per cent to 46 5 pence

Final dmidend up 10 per cent to 17 06 pence, giving a
total dividend for the year of 22 65 pence

Group order book up 79 per cent o £12 0 billion

EBITDA up 7 per cent to £248 2 million

Divisional

» Strong UK Bus performance despiie luel price rises, operating profit up 16 per cent, customer satisfaction improved
« Smooth CrossCountry start, Arriva established as a leading UK rait operator

* Excellent improvements 1n operational performance and customer satisfaction at Arriva Trains Wales

« Double-digit rmamland European growth driven by new contracts, acquisitons and nvestments 23 per cent revenue
growth, and 15 per cent operating profit growth"

* From continuing operations
t From contnuing operations and belore goodwall mparment, ntangdle asset amortisabion and exceplional tems
11 Before goodwill imparment ané intangibia asset amoetisabon and nchuding share of assocated companes revenue and operating prolt
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Hold an tight

Hold on tight

Arriva is a fast-moving business on an exciting
journey

Already carrying pecple on more than one billion
passenger Journeys every year on buses, trains,
commuter coaches and water buses, we have the
vision of being recognised as the leading transport
services provider in Europe We want that
recognition In the eyes of our customers, ranging
from private indmduals to public authonties and
commercial businesses, and In the eyes of our
many and varted stakeholders

To our passengers, we aim 1o provide safe, rehable
and comforiable services that deliver an attractive
alternative to other modes of transport, including car
use, for at least some of the journeys they make

To the public authorities which bear political
accountability for transport, and which understand the
benefits of prvate sector delivery, we am {o provide
value for money ior the services ther communities
require, affording the public body the freedom to
choose the nght blend of improved services and/ar
lower public spending

To our employees, we aim to provide worthwhile
long-term employment, runring services which are
important to their own communities, in a safe,
supportve working environment which encourages
learning

To the wider community, In every city, reqion or country
where we operate, we am o provide the social and
economic benefits of affordable, accessible travel,
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and responsible management of the environmental
impact that inevitably comes from mowving large
numbers of people

To our investors, we aim to provide growin in
earnings based on a varned portfolio of business
models, a mixture of contract sizes, types and
durations, a range of transport modes and a broad
range of operating temtones

Our commercial focus 1s on winning and retaining
contracts, by utiksing the experiise and expenence
ganed from 10 years of operating across Europe,
generating organic growth and making acquisi:ons,
underpinned by excellent operational performance

We aim to improve our performance and our reputation,
year-on-year, by delivering better services and by
trying new things

Amiva’s operations include a mixdure of cash-generatve
businesses in mature markets, and growth businesses
In liberalising markets Individually, each of the
diwsions - mainland Europe, UK Trains and UK Bus
- has attractive features Taken together, they form a
blend of resilient market positions and exciting growth
opportunities which s arguably unique amongst
UK-based passenger transport operators

With its experience of providing high gquality transport,
1is unrivalled network of relationships across Europe,
and a wealth of opportunity in all is dmsions, Asiiva
1s butlding on its past, delivering in the present and 15
well positioned for the future




UK

In the UK, where our administrative headquarters
are located and where our shares are listed, we are
well known as one of the leaders of the urban and
inter-urban bus industry, and a substantial, high
quahity operator in the UK rail industry

UK Bus

Hawving expenenced long-term losses of patronage
before its privatization in the mid 1980s, the UK
commercial bus market has recently shown
encouraging signs of patronage growth In Amva’s
case, this has come as a result of customer focused
marketing and service delivery We have had to
maintain & tight contrel on costs despie the inexorable
increase in fue! costs and widespread traffic
congestion In part this has been achieved by creative
thinking about how best to use, and invest in, our
employees and our depot infrastructure

Within the deregulated UK Regions business, which
1s about two-thirds of the division, our strategy 1s to
hsten to our customers, to design and operate
services that they most value, and work closely with
local Government to achieve our shared agenda of
reducing society’s rellance on the motor car

London Bus, which represents around a third of the
dwision, 1s more similar to the many manland
European markets we operate in It)s a mature,
competitive, tendered market which the transpor
authonty, Transport for London (FiL), expects to grow
steadily in real terms, expanding 40 per cent on 2007
levels, by 2025 (TiL 2025 Vision) QOur market share
has been consistently close to 20 per cent {or many
years and our strategy IS to continue to compete
successiully to mantain and, where possible, improve
that share In a growing market

—m

UK Trains

The UK rail industry 1s charactensed by small numbers
of large franchises - much larger than typical rail
contracts in mainland Europe Arriva now holds two
UK franchises, operating as Arnva Trains Wales, and
CrossCountry In both cases good operational
periormance 1s key to delivering a sound financial
performance

Areiva Trains Wales, which holds its franchise until
2018, 1s aming for steady development The potential
revenue impact of strong passenger demand (s
limited by the substanual Government support
payments which form around 70 per cent of the
revenues for the franchise, whish 1s unable to cover
Its costs on a fully commercial basis on the services
it 15 coniracted to run

Qur success (n winning CrossCouniry, the UK's most
extensive ratl franchise, which we began operating i
Novembear 2007, will approximately treble the size of
the dwision 1n a full financial year Our stakeholder
research has helped us to pinpoint important areas
whera we can improve the passenger experence,
make the business more efficient, market more
effectvely and support growth n passenger numbers
by Increasing seating capacity We plan to ncrease
seating capacity by 35 per cent in the cntical evening
peak on principal routes by June 2009




Matnland Europe

Mainland Europe 1s Arriva’s long-term growth engine
The total passenger transpor market for the EU27
countries 1s beleved to exceed €200 bilion in annual
revenue Historrcally, surface transport services In
most of Europe have been delivered predominantty by
the public sector and the industry 1s in the early stages
of a major transformation towards privaje-sector
delivery Agamnst this backdrop we are confident of
meeting our medium-term objective of doubling
mamland Europe revenue from 2006 levels by 2011

A decade of buillding Arnva’s presence, extending
to towns and cities in nine mainland European
countries, has established an invaluable network of
contacts and relaticnships, a nch portfoho of depots
and businesses, and above all a depth of markel
understanding and knowledge that simply cannot be
replicated eastly or quickly

In sorme countnes we are amongst the markel leaders,
in others we are growing from a small base We atways
enter a national market with the am of becoming
one of the leading operators in that country, when
conditions are nght
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Hold on tight centinued

Many of the organisations that have become part of
Arnva have long histores of therr own Arnva frequently
spends months or years developing relattonships and
dialogues with such arganisations, bulding thetr
confidence and comiort with the henefits of becoming
part of a larger whole

A firm plank of our mainland European strategy 1s to
have every business headed by a management team
drawn from the community it serves with access 1o a
wider pool of opportunites than they ¢ould realise on
therr own - for investing in therr business, for shanng
and developing mnovaton and best practice, and for
seeing their best 1deas influence then fellow Armva
managers across the rest of the business
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How we work

We operate according to several different business
models which vary by country, by region, and by the
mode of transport

Deregulated services

In a ‘deregulated’ bus market, the key commercial
relationship 15 directly between Amva and our passengers
- they are our customers, and ther fare payments are
the dominant source of income for the business Our
services have to be profitable in order to be sustainable,
to generate the profits which underpin iInvestments in
replacement vehicles, our depot faciities, and the
expansion and development of services

In a dereguiated market we compete aganst other forms
of iransport, and agamst other operators of similar
transport, 1n just the same way as a high sireet retaler
competes for the spending power of the public We bear
the 'revenue nsk’, which 1s to say that i the travelling
public decides to switch to another form of transport, the
lost revenue directly affects our finances

Even deregulated services are subject to significant
oversight, scrutiny and regulation in vanous ways, and
there 1s usually a layer of sector-spacific regulation In our
UK Bus operations, for example, the quality of operation
and fitness for service of our vehicles and drivers 1s
regutated by Traffic Commussioners

Most of the bus cperations 1n the UK, outside Lendon,
are deregulated and aperate on a purely commercial
basis Contracted services are more common in other
European countnies, and Spain and Portugal operate on
a more commerctalsed basis

Contracted services

In most of our mainland European bus and rait markets,
the London bus market, and the UK rail market, our
primary customer 1s some form of public-sector body

A regional government or transport authority may offer
vanous forms of contract which give an operator the ngh
tc operaie services, usually exclusively, on a particular
route or in a specific area Increasingly, as European
transport markets become more liberalised, these
contracts are awarded on the basis of competitive
tendering During a transifion pened, however, contracts
may be awarded directly {ollowing negotiation with an
ncumbent operator

The main vanations include

Gross cost contracts

In a gross cost contract the tendenng authornty agrees to pay
an operator a specified sum to provide the speciiled serwice for
a specified period Revenue from fares 1s passed to the
tendenng authonty, which bears the ‘revenue nsk’ The service
provider generally carnies the ‘cost risk’, though there may be
provisions for cosi Increases to be passed through, such as
elemenis of wage or fuel costs Generally the tendenng
authorty will take responsibtlity for working out routes, and may
also specity the vehicles to be used

Because the operator has no direct commercial relationship
with passengers it 1s common for the tendenng authorty to
provide a system of bonuses and penaliles to give operators a
financial incentive to provide the desired quality of service

The UK London bus business, some of the rail operations in
Germany and bus contracts in Benmark, are examples of
where Armva operales gross cost contracls

Net cost contracts

In a net cost contract the operator takes on both the revenue
nisk and the cost nsk It keeps the revenues from fares, and the
tendenng authority prowides a contiibution in the form of
additional contracted income This offsets obligations thal the
tendening authority may have to ensure the provision of a public
transport service, or {o meet social objectives where the cost of
providing such a service would not be commercially wable of i
depended solely on the fare income that it could achieve

On especially popular and important services It may be
possible for the tendenng authonty to reap a premium payment
from the operator running these routes rather than providing
financial support

UK rail franchises and bus and rall contracts in ihe Netherlands
are examples of where Arriva operates within this form of
business model




A new day, a new journey

A new oay,
a new journey

Our sources of compelnive advantage are not easy for others lo rephcate Our broad footpnint in manland Eurcpe gives us deep market
understanding and practical expenence of aperating successfulty in many different commercial and regulatory regimes Bringing
together experts irom many regrons and city-scale eperations into one group supports nnevation and helps us to spread best practice
and identify economies of scale Our wealth of local contacts and our network of operating and maintenance bases help us to develop
existing businesses and to develop new oppertunities for the future




Thomas Becken, 40, 1s managing director of operations for Amva in Germany
Thomas joined Arriva in 2004 when we acquired the Pnignitzer Eisenbahn (PEG)
train company which he founded

“I was introduced to Arnva when | heard they were looking to enter the German
transport market | was impressed with their approach of developing existing [ocal
management, whilst providing investment support to enable growth This, and the
open way of working, convinced me to offer my company to Amva By working with
Arriva, PEG has been able to grow further, and now benefits from being part of the
second largest prvate transpori group in Germany "

Mr loan Evans and his wife Janet from Cwmcelyn in Blaenau Gwent, who are
retired, were traveling on the new Arnva Trains Wales Ebbw Valley service to
Cardrff

“We are impressed with the new tram service from the Ebbw Valley, and plan to

use It regularly It means we can get to Cardiff to go shopping so much more
quickly than before "

Sergio Cecotti 1s the Mayor of Udine in Raly Arnva owns a 60 per cent stake in
italian bus company SAF, with the Municipality of Udine holding 21 per cent via
its subsidiary Udine Servizi SpA

“The reason for this partnership was the need to improve and develop our
transport services by working with a major player i the local public transport
bustness, both from a structural point of view and in terms of know-how We were
looking for a public transport partner with an international vision and expenenced
approach in dealing with both operational and market 1ssues, and we found this
in Armva Arriva has brought innovation and an effective approach in managing
the company ”

Tony Hewlan, 45, 1s a bus dnver based at Armva's Selby depot He was winner of
the Arriva Yorkshire 'bus driver with the
X-factor’ compettion after local customers voted him their number one dnver

“After working in engineenng and logistics, | fancied a change of direction and
applied to Arnva for a job as a driver Eight years on, | still enjoy providing a valuable
service for the public and meeting new people every day It's great to do a job
where you can bring a smile to customers' faces, and it was a lovely reward to be
voted their favounte driver ”

Danrela Torres, 27, 1s a baker's assistant She lives in Portugal and travels on an
Arnva bus from Famalicao to Guimarédes each day for work

“Travelling by bus 1s the only affordable way for me to get to work everyday | don’t
mind getiing the bus - the standard of the buses 1s good, the staff are nice and
friendly, and the services reliable ”




Spreading our net

Spreading

our Net

A leading pan-European transport services provider

10 years in mainiand Europe

Transport networks across 10 countries

More than a bilhon passenger journeys each year

15,000 buses*
Almost 500 train sets*

40,000 employees*

Transport markets across Europe are at varying
stages of liberalisation As transport markets

open up to compelitive iendenng across mainland
Europe we have a host of opportunities to establish
and grow our operations As govemments see the
growing appeal of the money-saving and service
enhancing benefts of private passenger fransport
operatars, the future locks bright for spreading our
netwerk further across mamland Europe

Total  Passenger

Our different networks work in different ways,
according {0 whether we operate contracted,
or non-contracted business As a result,
revenue across the group s dernved from a
combrmnation of passenger revenue, and
non-passenger revenue, which can include
support payments from governments

The table below highlights the 2007 revenue
splt for different parts of the group

Non-passenger

revenue revenue revenue

£m % %

UK Bus 8147 51 49

UK Trains - ATW 2497 30 70

UK Trains - CC 727 52 48

Mainland Europe - Bus 608 2 25 75

Mainland Eurcpe - Train 2554 29 71
Total 2,0007 38* g2

* Weighted average
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Calling all stations

Arrrva now runs public transport services in 10 countnes, and spans
a wide range of operating environments in locations with varying
market charactenstics Qur expenence of bus and rail operations, and
our strong local roots across Europe, give us unnivalled expertise
and market knowledge as a leading pan-European operator

United Kingdom

Revenue

£1,137 1 milion (2006 £1,016 7 miion)
Order book

£6 0 bilion {2006 £3 3 bilhon)
Buses

7,000

Train sets

211

Employees

22.550

Entered bus market

1980

Entered rail market

2000

Population

60 5 million

Liberalisation stage
Maiure
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Bus

We operate approximately 20 per cent of the London market
under contract 1o Transport for London Qutside of London we
run a predominantly commercial business, with more than
5,000 buses and an approximate market share of 15 per cent

Ral

The UK rail market 1s competitively tendered, with companies
bidding for franchises for set timescales and service provision
In Novemnber 2007 we started operating the UK's most
geographically extensive rail franchise, CrossCountry We also
run virtually alt traens in Wales

Future

In both the UK regions and London, we aim to maintain our bus
market share, whilst working to improve operational performance
In rat, we will be concentrating on mantaiming and improving
the excellent operatianal performance of our two franchises, as
well as putting plans into action at our new CrossCountry
business to add capacity and improve the customer experience




Germany

Revenue

£219 2 mufion (2006 £121 7 milhon}

Order book
£1 2 billon (2006 £0 8 bihon)

Buses
820

Tramn sets
148

Employees
2,650

Entered rail market
2004

Entered bus market
2005

Population
82 3 milkon

Liberalisation stage
Emerging

Germany 15 the largest European
ransport market

Cross porder sorvice 10 Ihe Netherla ds
Cross porder servee 1o Ihe Czeen Repub'c

Bus

The highly regulated bus market 1s almost three times as big as
the UK's bus market 1118 hugely fragmented and dominated by
state-owned Deutsche Bahn (DB) A substantial proportion of
the market 15 stilf closed and conditions differ widely between
the regions, with the exception of Hesse which has decided on
a programme to tender all bus senices between now and 2010

Rail

The rail market 1s also dominated by DB, however 20 per cent
of the regional rall network has now been competitively tendered
by regional authorities

Future

Economic pressures are increasingly driving the need for market
testing ¢ Germany With high capital state subsidies due {0 end,
private companies are becoming an increasingly aitractive
option for the regional authoriies In rad, it 15 expected that more
short-distance passenger routes will be put out to tender There
18 much exciting potential for future growth in both bus and rai
in this emerging market
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The Netherlands

Revenue

£178 5 million (2006 £172 1 mulhor)
Order book

£1 2 bithon (2006 £1 0 bdlion)
Buses

920

Train sefs

50

Employees

2150

Entered bus market

1998

Entered rall market

1999

Population

16 4 mithon

Liberalisation stage

Bus mature

Rail emerging

Cross porder serviee to Gernany

Bus

Arriva 1s one of the top three private sector public transport
operators in the Netherlands, with approximately 20 per cent of
the regional bus market The regienal bus market 1s dominated
by Connexxicn, which was privatised 10 July 2007, with the
government retaining a 33 per cent stake The four big cities in
the Netherlands, Amsterdam, Roiterdam, the Hague and
Utrecht, are yet to put concessions out to iender

Rail

Very litle of the rail network has been competitively tendered to
date, but as regional rall responsibility transiers to regional
authoriies, this 1s lkely to increase The rail market 1s dominated
by state-owned NS Rail, and Arrva is the largest private operator

Future

We will continue to build on our established possiion as one of
the leading bus operators in the Netherlands Having developed
a strong reputation for operational reliability and passenger
growth, we are well placed 1o benefit from further liberalisation
in the rail market

Calling all stations continued

Italy*

Revenue

£146 8 million {2008 £137 8 million)
Order book

£0 4 bilion (2006 £0 4 billion)
Buses

1,950

Employees

2,600

Entered bus market

2002

Population

59 1 mullion

Liberalisation slage

Bus emerging

Rad yet ¢ Iberalise

* ncwd ng sha ¢ of assocates

Bus

The public transport system 1 ltaly 1s highly subsidised with
low fares With competitive tendernng yet to emerge, local and
regional authonties in the north of ltaly have set up special
intermediate arrangements between the public and private sector
bus companes, and we are part of this in the Friul Venezia
Giuha region Arriva s the targest wholly privately owned public
transpon operator in ltaly, with approximately five per cent of
the llalian bus market

Rail

The responsitality for regional rail networks 1s devolved to local
authonties, however early altempts at competitive tendenng have
falled The state-owned passenger rall operator, Trenala, has
an 83 per cent market share, with 26 region-owned operators
shanng the remaming 17 per cent

Future

Liberalisation in italy 1s expected io accelerate as the market
moves towards competitive tendenng This 1S an exciting market
for us, with much potential
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Czech Republic

Revenue
£7 1 milton

Buses
300

Employees

430

Entered bus market
2008

Population
10 2 milhon

Liberalisation stage
Emerging

Bus

Regional government controls route licensing and maximum
fares, and individual cities are responsible for urban public
transport and #s funding There 15 currently little competiiive
tendenng, and direct award of concessions 1s not uncommen
There are 251 bus companies operating in the market, many of
which are the inter-urban CSAD companies thal were formed in
the 1990s as part of the onginal privatisation process

Poland
Train sets
7

Employees

80

Entered ral market
2007

Poputation

38 2 mulion

Liberalisation stage
Emerging

Bus

Since 2003 the regional authornties have had the option of ireely
selecting transport companies, using invitation o tender
procedures, and there are increasing instances of bus tendering
and subcontracting i he larger towns and cities The bus market
1s divided between 187 former state-owned companies
providing rural, inter-urban and long-distance transport, and
around 140 municipal bus operators operating in towns and cities

Rail

Regional rail routes have been transferred to local government
and competitive tendening has recently started in some regions,
with the potential to expand in the mid 1o near future Rail in the
Czech Republic 1s dominated by state-owned Coské Drahy (CD),
which has a 99 per cent share of the market

Future

There 15 a gradual move towards competitive bus tendering,
particularly in cities such as Prague where the market 1s growing
We have established a base around Prague and are well placed
10 grow as the market opens up The government has commutted
to enhancing the role of the pnivate sector in the Czech Republic
rall market Regional routes are being transferred to tocal
government and there has been some market testing of
passenger concessions by regional and central government

Rail

PKP SA (PKP), the state-owned railway company, manans
and invests i infrastructure, hauls 85 per cent of the freight
market and operates long distance and regional passenger
transport services Afier entenng the market in December 2007,
with the start of a three-year rail franchise in the north of the
country, the Armva-PCC joint venture 1s the only other company
currently operating passenger rail services in Poland

Future

As a business expenenced 1n turning around former public
sector companies to become successful commercial operations,
we expect (o grow n this country over coming years
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Ibera*

Revenue
£105 4 mulhon (2006 €85 & milon)

Portugal

Buses
1550

Tram sets
6

Employees
3150

Entered bus market
2000

Population

10 6 milhon
Liberalisation stage
Bus emerging

Rail yet 10 liberaktse

*Including share of associaes
Barraqueiro operating arca shown
In yelow

Bus

The Portuguese bus rarket 15 a regulated market In transition
The municipaliies are responsible for allocating reutes or
transport senice netwerks through awarding exclusive concessions
to independent opera ors, or by delvering the services directly
Barraquero, in which Armva has a 31 5 per cent interest, 1s the
largest operaior, with Arnva third largest

Calling all stations centinued

Ibena 15 similar 1o the UK regional bus market in that it operates
on 2 commercal raiher than a contracted bass

Spamn

Buses
200

Employees

350

Entered bus market
1999

Population

43 7 milhen
Liberalisation stage

Bus emerging
Rat yvet © liberalise

Bus

The urban bus market 1s operated by private and city-owned
companigs, whilst the inter-urban and long distance
concessions are opelated by prvate companies The market
remains fragmented as the 4,000-plus small operaters, including
a large number of farr ity businesses, between them account for
approximately 70 per cent of the market

Raii

Urban and regional rail services are operated under concassions
allocated by the state, dominated by state-owned Camboios
de Portugal (CP) The first and only private company 1o hold a
rall concession 1s Fertagus, owned by Barraquerre Through
Barraguerro, we aiso have an interest in the Metro Sul do Tejo
tram operation in Lisbon

Future

Work 1s under way to alter the legislation in force for bus public
transport provision at a regional and national level, and a
market changing trial may soon be started with the creation of
metropoitan fransport authonties in the Lisbon and Oporto
metropolitan areas There are no early signs of a move io
compettive tendering in the rail market, but when changes do
occur, we are well-placed to benefit through the established
good reputation of Fertagus
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Rail

The rall market 1s yet to hberalise, and 1s daminated by
state-owned raiway companies RENFE and FEVE State funding
1s provided for loss-making regional and urban services, and
there are no immediate plans to iImplement competitive tendenng

Future

Many bus concessions with exclusive nghts over long penods will
expire over the next five years, and there 1$ a gradual move
towards competitive tendenng in some cities, such as Madnd
where we have established a posiicn A process of tendenng for
private operators 15 ptanned for future rail services which are now
being bullt, ncluding underground, hght rail and tram services




Scandinavia

Revenue
£270 2 mihion (2006 £234 9 millon}

Denmark

Buses

1,900

Train sets

47

Employees

5,150

Entered bus market
1997

Entered rail market
2003

Population

5 4 milkon
Liberalisation stage
Bus malure

Rail mid-liberaksation

Bus

Arriva 15 the largest private sector public transport operator in
Denmark Having acquired Veolia's bus operations in Denmark,
the second largest bus operator, in August 2007, Arfiva has a
market share of approximately 60 per cent in Copenhagen and
50 per cent of the overall market Five passenger transpori
authorities have the ganeral responsibility for public ransport
services, including the responsibility for ticket prices, umetables
and contract duration in they regions

Order book
£1 2 bitkon (2006 £1 1 bihon)

Sweden

Buses

370

Tran sets

26

Employees

1,050

Entered bus market
1999

Entered rail market
2007

Population

9 1 milion
Liberalisation stage
Bus maiure

Rail mid-hiberaiisation

Bus

Competitive tendenng 15 well established 1in the Swedish bus
market, after deregulziion commenced n the 1980s Arniva has
secured a market share of around four per cent, mainty in the
south of the country This will Increase 1n late 2008 when Arrva,
as the first new entrart nto Stockholm :n 10 years, begins
operating 164 buses in the Swedish capnal

Raul

Amva was the first private company to be awarded a ral franchise,
and now operates 15 per cent of the regional network The
national rail market 1s dominated by state-owned DSB,
accounting for approximately 85 per cent of train kilemetres in
Denmark

Future

We anticipate improved profitability 1in the bus market following
the exit of Veolia As the top-performing rail operator, with total
reliability of 89 0 per cent n 2007, and a good record of
passenger satisfaction, we are well-ptaced to benefit from
enhanced levels of rail tenderng mn this market

Rail

After entering the rail market in June 2007 with the nine-year
Pagatdg contract in the Skdne region, we now have
approximately a nine per cent share of the short distance train
market, by kilometres operated The ra#t market 1s dominated by
the state-owned operator, Swedish Raltways (SJ)

Future

There has been much economic growth n southern Sweden,
and the transport markets are benefiing from significant
passenger growth We will be working hard to ensure our
operations make the most of this passenger growth in both bus
and rail In additton, we will be looking to expand our bus
operations and build upon our rail presence In Sweden from
the platform established with the start of the Pagatag contract
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On track for the future

Acquisitions
& investments

January 2008 - acquired a further 10 per
cant ol Barraquewo, the leading
Portuguese passenger ransport operator

January 2008 - announced the acquisitron
of UK AIM-histed bus, coach and awside
passenger transport operator Tellings
Golden Miller Group

January 2008 - increased our
shareholding 1n SAIA Trasportl Capdal, in
the Bregcia area of Italy, by acquinng the
remarning 12 per cent required 1o reach
100 per cent ownership of the company

Novemnber 2007 - acquired a small
Spanish bus operation Autocares Fray
Escoba, near Madnd

November 2007 - acquired a small
Czech bus company Osnado Spol s 1o,
with operations near Prague

September 2007 - acquired 49 per cent
of SPT Linea in the Lombardy region of
nerthern ltaly, as part of a 50/50 jont
venture with FMN SpA

August 2007 - acquired the Veoka bus
dmston in Denmark ihe second largest
operater In the market

August 2007 - completed the
acquisition of Stagecoach s operations
ir Darlington UK

March 2007 - acqured an 85 per cent
stake (as part of an 86 per cent owned
jont veniure) of German bus rait and fresght
operator Osthannoversche Eisenbahnen
AG {OHE)

February 2007 - acquired Chase Coaches
Limited, based in Staffordshire, UK

January 2007 - announced the
acquisition of Spamish bus company
Esfera with operations in the Madnd area

January 2007 - acquired our second
business in the Czech Republic, Bosak
Bus s ro o the south-west of Prague

On track for
the tuture

The order book represents the expected future revenue from public transport
contracts already won by the group It tracks estimated revenue over the life of
contracted business, based on prices at each year end

The principal areas of the group where contractual arrangements prevail are the bus
operations 1n London, ltaly, the Netherlands and Scandinavia, and the rail operations in the
UK, Germany, the Netherlands and Scandinavia The other parts of the group, principally
UK Regions and Ibena, operate under concessions, licences or other commercial
arrangements and are not included in the order book The value of the order book 1s a
key measure for demonstrating the underlying strength and stability of the business

Group order bock

Beiween 2006 and 2007, the group arder book has grown 79 per cent, to £12 0 bitlon
These figures are estimates of future revenue from contracled business, over a year in
duration, rolled forward 1o reflect contract vanations and updated o current prices at each
year end Changes, year-on-year, principally represent future revenue from contract wins
or acquired buginesses In the year, less the revenue included in the year's results from the
contract base
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Mainland Europe order book sphit 2007

Growth in maintand Europe continues to be pleasing The 18 per cent growth in the order
book to £4 0 billion 15 consistent with our target of doubling revenue from 2006 levels in
five years Acquisitions, contract wins and contract extensions in the year substantially
offset the erosion, over ime, of the contracted revenue from contracts tn operation

Growth in the bus order book n the mainland Euvrope division rose 11 per cent to
£2 1 billien, whilst growth in the rail order book was up 25 per cent to £1 9 billion

UK Trains order book 2007

The order book increased to £7 3 bilion, reflecting the anticipated lifetime revenue for
CrossCountry of aimost £5 billion in real terms

UK Bus order book - London 2007

The UK Bus order book consists solely of London, as the regional business 1s not contracted
The London order book rose three per cent 10 £749 million, with growth reflecting four new
contracts started in 2007, and three further new contracts due to start in 2008

. § (7=

New contracts

January 2008 - started operating ihe
severyear Hoeksche Waard and Goeree
Overflakkee (HWGO) bus contract to the
south of Retterdam, won in July 2007

Decernber 2007 - began rall operations
n Poland as part of the PCC Armva 50/50
jont veniure with a three-year contractin
the Kujawsko-Pomorskie Voidvodship
region 1N the north-west of the country

December 2007 - rail subsidiary
Metronom began two new franchises in
Germarny We also began operation of
two 10-year rail contracts in southern
Germany, and the ODEG operation in
which we have a 50 per cent interest,
started a two-year rail contract in the
centre of the country

December 2007 - started a seven-year
bus contract in the Vevdenaunus area near
Frankturt Germarny

November 2007 - began the
ransformatianal CrossCountry ral
franchise serving 131 stations across
England and Scotlard with services
extending over 1 650 route miles

June 2007 - staried our firsi Swedish rat!
contract in the Skane region in the south
ol the country

January 2007 - started operating an
etght-year bus contract in the East Brabant
region of Holland

Contracts yet to
start in 2008

June 2008 - our existing operalicns in the
Jonkdping area in Sweden have been
secured for another eight years with a bus
tender won in October 2007 The contract
adds extra routes starting m June

Decermber 2008 - the ODEG joint venture
will start operating 1he 10-year Spree-
Neaisse rail contract (n eastern Germany

Dacember 2008 - expanding our
toatpunt in the Frankfurt area we will stant
operating two five-year bus contracts
and a s-year gontract

Alsa in 2008 - n December 2007 we were
awarded two five-year bus contracts in
Stockholm, Sweden starting later this year
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Chairman’s Statement

Looking forwaro

Ammiva today, llke any business, reflects the strategic
choices we have made in the past And while we
need to keep a firm grasp on the realities of the
present, the future 1s where we keep our focus
on behalf of our passengers, investors and other
stakeholders

Population growth, congestion and rnsing mobility
dnven by economic growth are combining to create
social, pofitical and environmental challenges Public
transport 1s increasingly an important part of the
response 1o these challenges across Europe With
expansion Into the changing markets of manland
Europe at the heart of our strategy, our future lies in
our ability to engage with stakeholders and develop
appraprate solutions to therr growing needs

In this respect, progress 1IN 2007 has been exiremely
encouraging We have conlinued our development
through a combination of organic growth, acquisitions
and investments throughout 2007 and early 2008
Further acqursttions and tenders are now being
pursued actively The groundwork has been laid for
further growth in the rest of 2008 and beyond

Arnva has developed a diverse portfolio of operations
This diversity imits our dependence on any single
market or contract for success and ensures we have
excellent knowledge of, and access to, a range of new
opportunities across most of Europe

We have reinforced our positions in the UK, Germany,
Portugal, Sweden, Denmark, Italy and Spain, and have
broken new ground in Paland via a joint venture in that
country's first ever prvate-sector passenger rail contract

The smooth start In November 2007 of CrossCountry,
the UK's most geographically extensive rail franchise,
established Arriva as one of the UK's leading rail
cperators, alongside its posiion as a leading bus
operator

The rising awareness of environmental 1ssues goes to
ihe heart of the public debate on the role of transpon,
on how 1t provides value for society, and how that
society can reconctle mobility with sustainability Qur
recently-announced target for improving the carbon
efficiency of our operations will be demanding, but
will protect the long term interests of our investors as
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well as the communities in which we operate Many fuel efficiency
and CO2 reduction measures brnng immediate cost savings,
others require us to nvest In technology and ways of working
that protect and build long-term value

In financial terms, the full year effect of many of our recent
successes has yet to be seen Neveriheless, for 2007 | am
pleased to report strong growth in revenue, up 16 per cent to
£2,000 7 millon (2006 £1,728 Q methon) and group operating
profit up seven per cent to £128 0 million (2006 £119 5 milhion)
Profit before taxation for continutng operations was up five per
cent to £115 8 milion (2006 £109 8 million), despite the
headwinds of increased fuel costs and the significant costs
incurred on brdding for three UK rail franchises

Basic earmngs per share from continuing operations before
goodwill imparrment, intangible assel amortisation and
excepiional items, our preferred measure, increased 10 46 5 pence
(2006 44 4 pence}

Even atfter a year of significant growth through acquistions as
well as contract wins, our financial pesition has sirengthened
further Having taken advantage of market conditions m early
August by secuning a £615 million, five-year, revolving credit
faciity agreement, on improved terms, the group has the financial
capacity to meet its anticipated investment needs within existing
cash and medium-term credit resources

Given the strengih of the balance sheet, the cash generating power
of the business and the prospects for continuing proiitable
growth, the Board 1s recommending a significantly h:gher dvidend
increase than In previous years We propose to raise the final
dividend by 10 per cent, to 17 06 pence per share Together with
the interim dvidend of 5 59 pence per share paid i October 2007,
this makes a proposed total dividend of 22 65 pence per share
The final dvdend will be paid on 1 May 2008 to all shareholders
on the register at the close of business on 28 March 2008

QOverall, we believe that the commercial progress achieved in 2007
will be reflected in results durning 2008 and beyond In parallel,
much work 1s underway to develop promising contract and
acquisition opportunities for the medium term With robust
finances, a diverse portfolio, and the momentum provided by our
£12 0 bilion group order book, Ammva 1s performing strongly and
has built an attractive position for further success

Sir Richard Broadbent
Chairman

19




Chief Executive’'s Review

Delivery and development

It has been an exciting year of progress in all
three divisions which has translated into a strong
financial performance, particularly after absorbing
increased fuel prices and substantal bidding costs
for three UK rail franchises Demand for our serices
has grown strongly across Europe in 2007, as
demonstrated by the growth in our order book

Higher demand goes hand in hand with increasing
passenger expeclations for safe, rehable and tmely
services That challenge, shared between operators
and transport authorities, 1s best met by working
together to improve delivery, a challenge we are happy
{o meet

As our transport networks spread across Europe, we
are mereasingly thinking and acting ke a network
organisation When we enter a new market the
accurmulated learning and experience of our new
colleagues is connected, not just to a central UK
corporate base, but to every Arriva business in every
country where we operate Qur passengers, our
employees and our investors all now benefit from a
web of relationships amongst our 40,000 people

The transfer of best practice, the spread of innovation
and the achievement of scale economies are no

longer piped thinly between small, far-away outposts
and a dorminant, central UK hub Today, a typical Armva

business development team, an engineenng task
force or a marketing preject group speaks with many
accents, 1s familiar with many European cultures,
and can tap nto a wealth of knowledge to respond to,
and somefimes lead, a changing world

Innovative real-time information systems pioneered in
Denmark helped us win a coniract in Sweden by
showing how we can maintain trains more effectively,
and are now being considered for use in the UK, whilst
train maintenance best practice in Portugal has
influenced the spread of efficient overnight manienance
across the group Cur experience using biodiesel In
our Berlin bus and raill operations has increased our
know-how for running buses in the UK and Portugal
on biodiese! blends

Whether in the form of better services, lower prices,
improved customer satisfaction or a quicker payback
on investment, the benefits of such cross-fertiisation
flow to our passengers and tendenng authonty
customers, to our employees, and to our nvestors

We aim to be amongst the top three private operators
wherever we work Our strong financial resulis are
built on a year of excellent operational performance
across the group, and there 1s much to be pleased
about (n all three divisions
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A year of

exciting progress

Divisional results

Revenug Operating Profit
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £€m £m £m
UK Bus 8147 7628 879 76 0
Matnland Europe* 9275 7523 645 56 1
UK Trains 3224 2539 75 123
Central - - (17 1) {13 6}
2,0646 1,769 0 1328 1308
Associated companies
- Mainland Europe (63 9) {40 0} (7 4) (4 1)
Continuing
operations 20007 1,729 0 1354 1267
Goodwill
impairment and
intangible asset
amortisation - - (7 4) 72
Group revenue and
operating profit 2,0007 1,729 0 128 0 1195

* Including share of associated compamnies’ revenue and operating profit

Mainland Europe

As expected, mainland Europe 1s now the group’s targest
dvision, recording the seventh consecutive year of double-digit
increase In revenue Operating profit™* rose 15 per cent to £64 5
million {2006 £56 1 milign), on revenue* up 23 per cent at
£827 5 milhon (2006 £752 3 million)

The growih in revenue and operating profi in the year has come
{rom acquisticns, investments, cantract wins and start-ups  The full
year impact of investment in the associate company Barraqueiro
SGPS SA (Barragquerro) was positive, but the divisronal eperating
profit margin was diluted by the low operating margin acquisittons
of Osthannoversche Eisenbahnen AG (OHE) in Germany and
Veolia's bus operations (n Denmark, which have considerable
scope for improvements Higher fuel cosls and bid cosis
incurred i tendering for the Oresund rail contract in Scandinavia
also had some impact The order boak for mainland Europe,
reflecting estimated revenue over the Iife of the contracted
business, based on prices at the 2007 year end, has grown by
18 per cent, 1o £4 0 bilion
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Germany

Operauons in Germany have delivered significant growth in 2007,
with revenue up 80 per cent to £219 2 milkon (2006 £121 7
mition) Included in these pretliminary results 1s revenue of £81 1
million and operating profit of £2 2 million from CHE, which we
acquired in March 2007 OHE operates more than 400 buses
and passenger rail In Lower Saxony, as well as rall infrastructure,
road and ralt freight and port siorage A break-even business on
acquisition, OHE has integraied well and 13 performing as
expected Through its passenger radl subsidiary, Metronom, OHE
1s enternng the next phase of growth after commencing two new
franchises in December 2007, with combined lifeime revenue
of approxmately €228 milllon (£166 million) OHE provides much
potential for future growth in both passenger transport and rall
ireight

Tender successes In 2006 have resulted in mobiisation of a number
of other contracts In December 2007, we began operation of two
10-year ral contracts in southern Germany, with combined
expected hfetime revenue of approximately €370 million (£270
milion) In the same month we started a seven-year bus
contract near Frankfurt, and ODEG, n which we have a 50 per
cent interest, started a small iwo-year rail contract

In December 2007 and January 2008 we won three further bus
contracts, starting in the Frankfurt area later this year, with a
combined lifetime revenue of approxmately €38 mithion (£28
rmition) in December 2008, ODEG will start operating the 10-year
Spree-Neisse rall contract, in the east of the country, and in
December 2009, we are due to start operating a 12-year rail
contract in southern Germany, as part of a 50/50 joint venture
with Salzburger Lokalbahn

In 2007 we strengthened management capacily o faciliate our
future growth in Germany We will continue to consolidate our
businesses, mabilise new coniracts, and bid {or new work, In
addition to pursuing a range of acquisibon and investment
opportunities

...seventh consecutive year
of double-digit revenue
growth in mainland Europe

22 | A Journey in Time Asrva pic Annual Report & Accounts 2007

Netherlands

Revenue rose slightly by four per cent to £178 5 million {2006
£172 1 million), reflecting the net impact of won and lost contracis
in the Dutch market

2007 was the first full year of the 12-year DAV bus and rail contract
staried in December 2006 in the central Dordrecht region A €30
milien (£22 millon) investment In these aperations will see the
introduction of seven new electnc trains by December 2008 We
have also invested €16 million (£11 milhon}) in new buses for the
eight-year bus contract we began operating in the East Brabant
region in January 2007, and have increased patronage following
the introduction of a new timetable

Over the course of 2006 and 2007 we started running 43 new
trains as part of the 15-year contract o operaie rall services In
the provinces of Groningen and Fresland, srignificantly boosting
passenger numbers, and as a result expect to receve further
funding for the introduction of three more new trains this year

In January 2008, we started operating the Hoeksche Waard
and Goeree Overflakkee bus contract to the south of
Rotterdam, adjacent to our DAV operations The seven-year
contract, won in July 2007, has a cne-year extension option,
and 15 expected 1o generate hietme revenue of approximatety
€150 mulbon (£110 milhon)

Scandinavia

Growth in our Swedish operations helped revenue nse three per
cent (n 2007, to £242 4 million (2006 £234 9 million), excluding
Veolia Denmark The acquisition, in August, of Veolia's Damsh
business added a further £27 8 milion to revenue

We are pleased with our growsng presence In the Swedish market
Qur first Swedish rail contract started smoothly in June The
nine-year contract, will generate ifetime revenue of approximately
SEK 1 8 bilhon (£146 milhion} In December we were awarded two
bus contracts in Stockholm, which are scheduled ic star later this
year Together the two five-year contracts, with {ive-year extension
options, will have a total fleet of 164 buses, and lifetime revenue
of approximately SEK 1 5 billon {£122 muliton) We have also
retained and increased our existing operations in the Jonkoping
area for another eight years, with a tender won in October 2007
The contract adds extra routes starting in June 2008, and
Iifetime revenue of approximately SEK 995 milhon (€81 million)

Chief Executive’s Review conlinued



The contracting environment in Denmark has been challenging
for a number of years and there was an underlying dechne In
the scale of our actmities in the Danish bus market as low
margins persisted The acquisition of the loss-making Veola
bus division in Denrnark, the second largest operator, has
gwen us the opportunity o consolidate our operations,
optimise the location of our facilities, implement synergies and
mprove efficiency Veola's serices, and 640 buses, are now
fully integrated into Arniva Scandinawa creating the strongest
and largest public transport group in the country Our market
share 1s unlikely to remain at current levels, bul we anticipate
improved profitability in future as unprofitable contracts expire
and margins improve as we bd for new contracts

There 18 a range of growth prospects 1n Scandinavia, and 1n
particutar we will continue to grow our bus operations in Sweden
in 2008

Italy
Revenue, including share of associates, rose seven per cent to
£146 8 millon (2006 £137 8 million) at our talian operations

In September 2007, Arriva strengthened its position as the
largest wholly private bus operatar in the lialian market with the
acquisition of 49 per cent of SPT Linea, for €6 8 rmilion (£4 6
mihon), as part of a 50/50 joint venture with Lombardy-based
bus and rall operator Ferrovie Nord Milano Group (FNM SpA}
SPT Linea which operates 317 buses in the Lombardy region
of northern haly, was previously wholly publicly owned In
January 2008, we increased our shareholding in Brescia-
based bus company SAIA Trasport Capital to 100 per cent

The tender process in laly Is expected to accelerate as the
market moves towards competitive tendernng, and Arniva Is
well placed to use 1is strong neiwork of relationships and
growing credentials

Iberla

Operations in Spain and Porlugal have reported revenue,
including share of associates, up 23 per cent 10 £105 4 millon
(2006 £85 8 millian), reflecting the tull year effeci of the 21 5
per cent stake in Barraquerro acguired in May 2006

In January 2008, we acqurred a further 10 per cent of Barragueiro,
the leading Portuguese passenger iransport operator for €50
milion (€37 mullion), taking our holding to 31 5 per cent This
investment mcludes an option 10 re-integrate our Lisbon operation
TST. laying a path for further developing Arnva's involvement in
Portugal's evolving public iransport marketl Arnva's share of
post-tax profit of Barraquero in 2007 was £2 9 midhon

In Spamn, we consolidated our sirategic position around Madnd
with the acquiskion of two small bus operators in 2007

In Portugal we are reinforcing our postion ahead of a potential
market-changing move o tendenng of routes in the metropolitan
areas of Lishon and Oporto In Spam, the expiry of concessions
with exclusive nghts accelerates into 2013, bringing new
opporunity, In addibon to the possibility of competitive tendenng
n cities hke Madnd where we have estabhshed a position

Eastern Europe
Revenue from the Czech Republic and Poland was £7 4 million
in 2007

After entering 1he Czech Repubhc in December 2006 with the
acquisition of Transcentrum Bus s ro , we strengthened our
posihon around Prague with the acquisition of Bosak Bus s 10
and Osnado Spol § ro in January and November 2007
respectively Bosak operates 50 buses, and Osnado 106 buses

In December, Armiva began rail eperations in Poland as part of
the PCC Arnva 50/50 joint venture The smalt three-year coniract
1n the Kujawsko-Pomorskie region i the north-west of Poland was
the first to be awarded to a pnvate company, and could signal
the start of a significant market change in the country After
some initial challenges, we are pleased with operations and the
foothold we have secured In this emerging market The contract
1s expected to generate approxmately PLN 105 muilton (£22 mullion)
over is lifetime

We are sowing the seeds for fulure expansion in Eastern Europe,
where investment (s currently relatively modest, but we foresee
excellent potential as these economies develop and market
liberalisation proceeds

UK Bus

A strong trading performance from the UK bus business 1s
reflected in an operating profit increase of 16 per cent 10 £87 9
milhon (2006 £76 0 million), on revenue of £814 7 milion

(2006 £762 8 millon), up seven per cent Margins increased to
10 8 per cent, despite the impact of fuel price increases that cost
£8 miilion in 2007

UK Regions

The regional bus business has benefited from ngorous and
detalled network development By understanding the varying needs
of different customer profiles we have sharpened our networks
and services te match demand, stirmulating passenger growth,
and implementing targeted rewvisions to fares Over the course
of the year, we invested some £30 midion providing many
easy-access buses for the comiort and convenience of our
passengers In 2007 we carrned 414 milion passengers,
demonstrating encouraging patronage growth of approximately
two per cent

Overall customer satisfaction rose, with 81 per cent expressing
themselves ‘farrly satisfied’ or better, with 59 per cent of those
questioned ‘very' or ‘extremely satishied’, the highest rating
achieved to date

Innovative partnership working continues to bring benefits for
partners and customers The Fastrack scheme m conjunction
with Kent County Council has seen patronage growth of 22 per
cent, in its first year of operation with 19 per cent of this reflecting
conversion from car users

A seres of local marketing inhiatives are currently on tnal to iIncrease
passenger journeys further by boosting awareness of routes and
services In Telford we are using smart-card technology to test a
new customer loyalty scheme In February 2008, we launched a
tnal to test a new generation of mehile phone ticketing technology
on 14 of our Fastrack B buses in Kent, enabling customers to
purchase tickets quickly and easily via their mobile phones,
providing the added benefit of cash-free trave)
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We remain commitied to developing and investing in iechnology
for more eco-fnendly vehicles In October, we ntroduced the UK's
first Environmentally Enhanced Vehicle buses into our Midlands
fleet In the nonth-east we started a tnal of B20 biodiesel giving a
20 per cent reduction in net CO2 emissions A trial of cab-based
technology to help dnvers improve fuel consumption 1s also
under way We intend to deploy these intiatives further if the
encouraging nihial results are sustained

Dunng the year we acquired small operations in Staffordsiure and
Darlington In January 2008 we announced the acquisition of UK
AlM-listed bus, coach and arside passenger transpor operater
Telings Golden Miller Group, which will complement our airside
passenger services In Germany (Frankfurt) and ltaly (Bergamo)

We continue to contnbute to the Local Transport Bill debate,
and welcome the process of dialogue on the development of
ideas and proposals 1o improve effective partnership working
between operators and local authonties

London

Arnva s ore of the largest bus operators in London, with annual
milgage In 2007 exceeding 62 millon miles The busmness has
done weli to continue to make progress white rmitigating the
disruptive iImpaci of street works, affecting much of its north
London operating area

Anncrease in contracted mileage of four per cent, reflects four
new contracts started in 2007 Three new contracts are due to
start 1n 2008, and with additional buses on other routes,
scheduled mileage 1in London 1s due to increase by a further
four per cent this year We expect market growth of 40 per cent
by 2025, ftom 2007 ievels, in ine with Transport for London's
(TfL) 2025 Vision

Arriva London finished the final quarter of the year strongly,
appeanng in the top three TiL contractors for service reliabiity
We continue to have a positive relatonship with TiL and were
pleased that Brixton garage was awarded the 'London Bus
Garage of the Year' award, following an independent nomination
from TfL The world’s first hybnd double-decker bus, ¢n tnal for
TfL over the last 12 months, 18 running reliably with improved
fuel efficiency

in August 2007 we added 10 new buses to The Onginal Tour
London sightseeing business and opened a wisitor cenire In
Trafalgar Square The business recovered iImpressively from a
disappointing wet summer, managing 10 aftract significant numbers
of wisitors during the autumn, to end 2007 with record passenger
numbers, and patronage up eight per cent on the prewious year

UK Bus & Coach distribution

QOur Bus & Coach distrbution business has performed well,
contnbuting operating profit of £3 1 mullion (2006 £3 O rmullion),
10 the divisional operating profit, on revenue of £9 9 milkton
(2006 £12 3 million)
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Chief Executive's Review continued

UK Trains

After absorbing significant bid costs from the concurrent
tendening of three rail franchises, the UK Trains divisional
operating profit recluced to £7 5 million (2006 £12 3
milion) Revenue Increased 27 per cent, to £322 4 milhion
(2006 £253 9 milhon), following the inclusion of the new
CrossCountiy franchise from 11 November 2007
Excluding CrossCountry, revenue was down twg per cent
at £249 7 milion This reduchion in revenue reflects ihe
end, as expecied, of an external maintenance contract,
partially offset by nsing passenger numbers

CrossCountry

The CrossCountry franchise win has an estimated order
book of almost £5 billion in real terms Operational
performance since starting the franchise has been good
with 88 9 per cent of services armving on time for the year
to date, substantally better than the equivalent senaces for
the same period last year Year-on-year revenue was moie
than mine per cent up for the first two months of 2008, on
the basts of our best Iike-for-like estimate for the remapped
franchise

Serving 131 stations over more than 1,650 route miles,
CrossCouniry is the most geographically extensive rail
{ranchise i the UK, and adds 91 train sets and 1,650
people to our UK framns dmsion Annual revenue of around
£600 milhon I1s expected, with support payments 1o Arriva
hugher in the early years of the franchise, and reducing
over time

The CrossCountry franchise revenue 1s currently around 50
per cent dernived from passengers, and 50 per cent from
franchise support payments The average passenger
journey length on this franchise 15 130 mules, reflecting its
broad-based nature and the many hubs along the route

We are making good progress with our plans for the
franchise The seating capacity of the fleet will be
increased by 35 per cent on prncipal routes at peak imes,
by June 2008, through the intreduction of five fully
refurtished hugh speed trains and addiional seats on the
Voyager {rams

We are commutted to improving the customer expenence
of rall by enhancing website icket purchasing, interactive
customer iiinerary management, automated re-booking,
flexible printing options and the abilty to reserve a seat up
to 10 minutes belore depariure




Arniva Trains Wales

Armva Trains Wales (ATW) contiues to experience strong
demand, reporting passenger growth of 8 3 per cent In
addition to growing customer numbers, customer
saysfaction 15 also nsing, up five per cent to 85 per cent,
according to the latest Passenger Focus National
Passenger Survey

ATW achieved a record operational performance [n
December 2007, the year to date Public Performance
Measure (PPM), based on the percentage of franchised
passenger trains armving at their destination within five
minutes of schedule, increased 1o 91 8 per cent, up from
87 1 per cent n 2006

The ATW franchtse revenue is currently around 30 per
cent denved irom passengers, and 70 per cent from
non-passenger revenue, primarily from franchise support
payments The average journey length on this franchise
15 17 4 miles, reflecting the mix of urban rail network 1n
south Wales and business crnentated travel in north
Wales and north-west England The introductuon of new
ticket machines 10 make 1t easier for passengers to
purchase tickets, and ticket barners at 12 key stations,
have significantly reduced ticketless travel

ATW continues to work closely with the Welsh Assembly
Government There has been significant government
investment to provide longer platforms, which will enable
ATW to run longer trains at some tme in the future Rall
investment from the government 1s also playing a key role
In regeneration, demonstrated by the opeming of a new
station at Llanharan in south Wales in December 2007,
and the fact that in February 2008, ATW started running
train services 1o Ebbw Valley for the first tme in 40 years

Central

Central costs this year include the £1 4 milion
arrangement fee for the new five-year £615 million
revolving credit facility, signed in early August

resilient business
poised for further success

— — W

Cutlook

Our businesses throughout Europe have a track record of
demonstrating the real benefils the private sector can bring to
public transport Public authonties are iIncreasingly aware of
these benefits and recognising the opporiunity to improve the
value of avarlable services whilst eliminating unnecessary costs
This recognition is a strong farce behind the continuing march
ol market liberalisation, providing Arriva with many exciting
growth opportunties

At our mainland Europe investor day, in May 2007, we announced
the intention to double mamland Europe revenue from 2006
levels in five years, including our share of associated companies’
revenue | am pleased to say we are well on the way to achieving
this goal with the work already done in 2007 and so far in 2008

In our UK Bus division we look forward to further profitable growth
driven by route revitalisation and marketing imtiatives, and to an
improved environment for partnership warking once the Local
Trangport Bill completes its passage

tn our UK Trains division we look forward to the benefits of a
full-year contribution from our CrossCountry franchuse and 10
bullding on our strong operatiznal performance, with addiional
capacity in due course helping o meet strong demand

Across the group we will continue 1o pursue growth In our existing
businesses, as well as creaiing opperunities for further expansion
into additional markets, white the full benefits of recent successes
in growing our operations will be demonstrated in 2008 Our
financial strength, order Dook, diversiied portichio of operations
and geographical spread show the qualities of a robust, resilient
business poised for further success

David Martin
Chief Executive




Financial Review

Financial review

It1s pleasing that the group achieved a seven per cent
increase in EBITDA from continuing operations and a seven
per cent increase in operating profit, against the backdrop
of continued increases in fuel costs and substantial
expenditure on bidding for new rail tenders Revenue grew
to over £2 bithen for the first time, and with 79 per cent
growth In the group's future contracted revenue, including
the CrossCountry rail franchise win in the UK and an 18 per
cent increase in the mainland Europe order book, we have
buiit the momentum for further growth

The signing, 1n early August, of a new £615 million five-year
revolving credit factily on improved terms was timely, ahead of
the {ull impact of the ‘credit crunch’, and has prowided
signiticant addifional financial capacity for the group

On winning the CrossCountry franchise, we fixed the fuet pnce
for 75 per cent of our anicipated fuel requirements over the hie
of the franchise This has considerably recuced the fuel price
nsk in this significant contract The £33 million value of the
hedge 15 included in denvatve financial nstruments in the
halance sheet

Group income statement

Revenue from continwing operations was up 16 per cent to
£2,000 7 million (2006 £1,729 ¢ million) reflecting strong growth
across the group

Operating profit from continuing operations grew seven per
cent from £118 5 milion to £128 0 millon Operating profit from
conunuing operations before goodwill impairment and
Intangible asset amortisation, our preferied internal measure,
was also up seven per cent to £135 4 million (2006 £126 7
million), despite significant bid costs for rail franchises and
further increases in fuel cosls The operating results reilect
strong progress m our UK Bus division, continued growth i
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mainland Europe and further improved operational performance
in Arriva Trains Wales As expected, given its shor period oi
operation, the new CrossCountry franchise has not had a
significant impact on the 2007 results

The share of post tax profits from associates increased 10 £4 3
milhon from £1 9 million, reflecting the full year impact of the

21 5 per cent interest in Barraquerro, acquired in May 2006 The
net finance cost for the year was higher at £16 5 million (2006
£11 6 million) due to investment In acquisitions and higher
interest rates in maintand Europe

Profit before taxation from continuing operations thereby
mncreased to £115 8 million (2006 £109 8 milkon) The taxation
charge was £25 8 millon (2606 £25 2 million), reflecting a small
decrease in the effective rate lrom 23 0 per cent to 22 3 per
cent The effective rate of tax remains lower than the standard
rate in the UK primarily due to the release of provisions for
taxation, in regpect of prior years, no longer required It s
anticipated that changes to UK tax rules in respect of Industnal
Buildings Allowance will result 1n an exceptional increase in the
deferred tax charge, n 2008, of arcund £7 mithon Profit for the
year from continuing operations increased te £90 0 million
(2006 £84 6 millton)

After iaking account of minority interests, prncipally in our
ltaltan and German subsidianes, earmings per share excluding
goodwill impairment, intangible asset amortisation and
exceptional tems, from continuing operations, ncreased to

46 5 pence {2006 44 4 pence) Basic earnings per share was
43 5 pence {2006 51 8 pence), the fall reflecting the 10 2 pence
impact, i 2006, of the exceptional gain on the disposal of
Arriva Vehicle Rental




Cash flow

EBITDA fiom continuing operattons increased by
seven per cent to £249 2 mullion (2006 E£232 9
million} A working capital outflow of £1 O milkon
(2006 outflow from continuing operations £73 2
million), reduced by an inflow from the
commencement ¢f the CrossCountry franchise of
£6 7 million, contributed to net cash inflow from
conknuing operations for the year of £248 2 mill:on,
up 55 per cent (2006 £159 7 million)

Net caprtal expendiiurg was £145 2 million,
compared to £118 2 million 1n 2006 (after adjusting
for the tmpact of the 2006 investment in new trains
that was subsequently refinanced through an
operating lease}, excluding expenditure in the
discontinued vehicle rental dvision The increase in
net capital expenditure of £27 0 milhon was mainly
due to bus and rail expansion in maintand Europe

Expenditure on acquisitions, including the
absorption of net debt, in 2007 was £73 5 milllon
(2006 £66 8 mition) In March, through an 86 per
cent owned venture, we acquired 85 per cent of
Osthannoversche Eisenbahnen AG (OHE) in Lower
Saxony, Germany for £28 2 million including net debt
assumed Goodwill on the acquisition was £6 4
million In August, we completed the acquisition of
Veolia's bus business in Denmark for £29 7 million

Revenue grew to over

including net debt Goodwill on the acquisition was
£9 1 millon Expenditure, on the same basis, on
other smaller acquisitions in Spain, Czech Republic
and ltaly was £11 9 midlion with goodwill of £7 6
milion In the UK, we acquired Chase Coaches in
February 2007, and in August we acquired additonal
bus operations in Darlingtan, for a total consideration
of £3 7 mithon {including net debt assumed)

Subsequent to the year end, the group acquired
Tellings Golden Miller Group ple for £10 3 million,
plus net debt assumed of £19 4 milion In January
the group also acquired a further 10 per cent interest
in Barraguelro, for a consideraton of €50 mithon in
cash (£37 millon), taking our total stake to 315 per
cent

Interest and dividend payments absorbed £59 4
milion (2006 £52 6 mion), whilst there were
subsianttally reduced corporation ax paymaents
dunng the year of £5 4 million (2006 £24 9 million)
New shares tssued on exercise of share options
generated £1 3 mithon (2006 £1 2 millon) There
was an increase 10 net debt to £448 5 mullion (2006
£378 4 million), reflecting the impact of acquisiion
and investment activity and the £36 1 million impact
of translating overseas debt into sterhing at £0 73 to
the euro {2006 £0 67 to the euro)

£2 billion



Treasury and financial nsk management

The group's financial nsks are managed by the
group freasury function in accordance waih a formal
Board-approved treasury policy The policy sets a
range of {ormal targets for managing the group's
exposure to fuel prices, nterest rate changes and
foreign currency movements These targels are
achieved through the use of forward fuel price fixes,
interest rate and exchange rate swaps, and fed rate
finance In addition, foreign acquisitions and
operations are funded n local currency where
possible The result of ius policy has been to reduce
to insignificant levels the foreign exchange nsk when
translating overseas assets and habilities into sterling
and 1o increase euro borrowings as he group
expands v maintand Europe

Commodity nisk

The group’s general policy 1$ 10 manian fuel price
fixes at least 12 to 15 months ahead on a rolling
basis The requirement to fix fuel 1s deiermmed after
taking into account the extent to which businesses
are psotected from fuel price volatilty through
contract price indexation Following the award of the
CrossCountry contract, a fuel fx was put i place
covenng 75 per cent of the anticipated fuel usage of
the contract up to iis expiry The group's forward
ixing of fuel, excluding assocates for 2008 and 2009,
at 25 February 2008, compared with 2007, was On a

like-for-like basis, tue! costs, excluding iuel taxation,
2007 008 2009

% % %

Protected by indexation
arrangements 88 104 97

Forward purchased* 852 811 343

Subject fo spot or
future forward purchase 60 85 560

1000 1000 1000

*Average price per litre

of forward purchased fuel,

excluding fuel

taxahon and delivery 281 272 291
pence pence pence

EBITDA from continuing 7 O/
operations increased by O
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Financial Review confinued




are fikely therefore to decrease moderately in 2008,
but with the prospect of an increase mn 2009 if
current prices In the market are mamntatned The total
ivel consumption in 2007 was approximately 365
million Itres  The CrossCountry franchise 1s
aniicipated to consume around 100 mulion litres of
fizel per annum

Interest rate nisk

Fluctuations n interest rates are managed by a
combination of interest rate swaps and use of fixed
rale debt Actual hedged debt at 31 December 2007
was 83 per cent The target level of hedged debt 1s
B0 per cent of group net debi, achieved withina
banding of 65 per ceni to 95 per cent of net debst
Hedged debt for this purpose represents fixed rate
finance and swaps over one year's duration at
inceplion

Foreign currency risk

As noted previously, the group policy on foreign
exchange exposure Is that the nsk of translatng non-
UK assets and habilites into pounds sterling should
be reduced to insigrificant fevels At 31 December
2007, the exposure was six per cenl of non-UK assets
The nsk 1s managed through the use of funding In
local currencies and by entenng iNto foreign currency
swaps of durations up to three years The majority of
such swaps also encompass fixed interest rates,
thus also providing interest rate protection between
EURIBCR, LIBOR and CIBCR The group also enters
into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
specific cash flows ansing with overseas suppliers
The farr value of the group’s cross currency swaps
and foreign exchange forward contracts at 31
December 2007 was a llabilty of £23 1 milhon

Credtt nsk

Credit nsk ansing from operational suppliers and
customers 1s managed at a local level and 1s subject
to penodic reviews by central management and the
group's nternal audit function Credit imits are 1n place
for customers, many of which are local authorities or
locat transport authonties Due to the nature of certain
contractual arrangements, particularly where the
agreement and settlement of allocations of passenger
revenues between mulliple service providers can take
more than one year to complete, ¢ertain customer
debts can often exceed one year before seltlement
This 1s common, and the incidence of imparment of
such debt 1s both rare and immatenial The group also
manages I1s exposure to debit nsk in respect of
financial institutions that provide credit to the group
The group nominales and approves banks and lease
providers with whom « will deal with Al group
companies are required to bank with the nominated
bankers, which change from time 1o time due to group
refinancing, entry into new markets and changes 10
credil ratings

Liquidity rnisk

In addition to daly local monitoring, the kqudity of the
group 1s momtored fortnightly, via group net debt
reporis showng the level of drawdown compared to
availlable faciliies for all components of net debt, and
monthly aganst forecasts and budget Future iguidity
1s monitored through detailed three-month cash
forecasts pregared on a roling monthly basis, and
through forecasts for each financial year updated
approximately quarterly throughout the year At a
strategec level, long-term liquidity 1s assessed as part
of the five-year strategic planning process, which i1s
updated annually The above reviews support
comphance with group pohey, which 1S 1o maintain
an average weighted maturity of hedged debt of at
teast 18 months at any point in time, and to maintain
a 12 month in advance, foreseeable level of unutilsed
available facilites of more than £100 miltion At 31
December 2007, hedged debt matunty was 19 months
and headroom on faciliies was approximalety £470
mulion

Capital risk

The group monitors its capial nisk on a continuous
basis to ensure that, having regard to the anticipated
and possible future requirements, sufficient capiial
ewsts 1o fund operations and provide refurns to
shareholders, and that the Weighted Average Cost of
Capital (WACC) of the group 1s opttmised There are
a number of alternative methods of calculaiing
WACC and there are also vanations caused by doing
business in the different markets in Eurcpe in which
we operate Our current assessment 1$ that the group
WACC 15 around seven per cent

I, € (7=
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Capital structure

Totat shareholders’ equity was £710 2 million (2006
£542 5 milion) at the end of the year, a substantial
increase Retaned profits contributed £44 5 million to
group distributable reserves, actuanal gains on
retrement benefit obligations added a turther £70 6
muhion and faw value of denvatives added £48 6 million
Dunng 2007, the group undertook an internal
reorganisation, which resulted in there being
approximately £600 million of available distnbutable
reserves n the parent company Armva ple Gearning
for the group at 31 December 2007 was 61 per cent
{2006 68 per cent) The 2007 interest cover {the ratio
of EBITDA to net finance costs), from continuing
operations excluding goodwill impairment and
ntangible asset amortisation, was 15 times (2006

20 times)

The ratio of year end net debt to EBITDA was 1 8 imes
{2006 1 6 times) Arrva remams comfortably within
the financial covenants set by iis lenders, the
principal covenants being that the ratio of EBITDA to
net finance costs 1s not less than 3 1, and the ratio of
net debt to EBITDA 1s not more than 35 1

Borrowing facilihes

In earty August, we took advantage of market condiions
to sign a new £615 million, five-year, revalving credit
tacility agreement, on mproved terms, with a group of
leading European banks This replaces the £310
million faciity arranged in 2004, prowvding stabibty,
flexibility and additional financial capacity for the
medium-term development of the group tn the UK and
mainland Europe

Much of the group's bus fleet 1s financed on medium
-term hire purchase or finance lease arrangements,
typically three to five years in length As part of the
UK rait franchising arrangements, the group has
provided guarantees of £46 millon The rolling stock
of the UK, Nethertands, Darush and German rail
businesses that 1s provided through operating leases
have annual commitments of approximately £113
millien All matenal commitmenis will cease on expiry
of the franchises Bonds amounting to £25 million
have been provided in respect of the Netherlands,

Finantial Review continued

Danish and German rall businesses Letters of credit
amounting to £16 mithon are provided as parl of the
group's UK insurance arrangements

There 15 a net cash postion In sterling and a borrowing
position in euros as a result of the group's policy of
reducing exposure to foreign exchange currency
fluctuations to insignificant levels, as described
previousty

The group’s working capital and ancillary reguwements
are mainty provided by our principal bankers and
reviewed annually

Retirement benefit obligations

The retirement benefil obligation 1aken on with the
award of the CrossCountry franchise was £12 0 midlion
This represents 60 per cent of the total obligation, in
line with the established practice of accounting for the
shared cost structure of the Rallways Pension Scheme
Also in hne with iIndustry practice, a corresponding
intangible asset has been created of £12 0 million,
representing the night 1o operate the franchise, which
will be amortised over the life of the franchise

Al 31 December 2007, total labilities in respect of
retirement benefit cbligations fell to £73 7 mitlon
(2006 £173 8 milkon) The retrement benefit
obligations In respeci of the Arnva Trains Wales and
new CrossCountry sections of the Railways Pension
Scheme are £4 0 milion (2006 £9 5 milkon) and

£8 0 million raspectively The overall reduction in the
group obligation was primarly due io tigher long-
term interest rates causing a consequent increase in
the rate used to discount habilites The related
deferred tax asset recogrised in the balance sheet
was £17 3 milhion (2006 £49 3 million)
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Return on capital employed

The financtal return cbtained from the capital
employed by the group 1s a key measure of inancial
performance, and 1 monitored monthly The definition
of Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) used by the
group 1s the last 12 months’ operating profit, before
goodwill impairment and iniangible asset amortisation
{excluding the impact of pension finance charges or
credits), expressed as a percentage of the weighted
monthly average total tangible assels less iabihties
(excluding borrowings, deferred tax habifities and
retrement benefit obhigations) ignoring denvatives
The ROCE on this basis for 2007, reported in the
group’s December 2007 management accounts, was
16 7 per cent (2006 15 9@ per cent)

Financial summary

The undertying cash generation of the group remains
strong and durable, has continued to grow, and 1s
supported n the future by growih in the conlract
order book

The balance sheet I1s robust, reinforced by the
resillience built in by our hedging strategies on tuel,
foreign exchange and interest costs, and the group
has increased financial capacity, secured by the new
£615 million credit faciity This provides a sold base
for further Investment and acquisitions in the future
and increased shareholder returns, as demonstrated,
in the short term, by the proposed 10 per cent increase
in final dividend

Steve Lonsdale
Group Managing Director - Finance
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board recognises that any commercial opportunity
brings with i a degree of nsk and, tike any business, Arriva
must manage a range of nsks in the course of its actvities
An impact assessment of the scale and probability of the
principal risks affecting the business 1s reviewed annually

As part of the ongaing programme of nsk assessment and
management, the {ollowing actual and potental nsks have
been dentified as those which the direciors believe could have
a matenal impact on the long-term value generation of the
group The factors descnbed below are not ntended to form a
definitive list of all nsks and uncertainties

1 Market risks

Changes in national public transpart budgets

A considerable proportion of the group’s income 1s derved
directly or indrrectly from national public transport budgets
Changes n these budgets can have positive or negative
impacts on the group's prospects The group continues to
monitor national public transport budgetary policies in the
countries where it operates, and ensures It 1s strategically
aware In order to undersiand possible changes and react to
them in a timely fashion

2 QOperational nsks

Meeting health, safety and environmental standards

The Board recognises the importance to the business, as a
public iransport operator, of maintaining high standards and
the consequences of falling 1o do so A Safety Commutiee of
the Board oversees the group's safety policy and the
arrangements of its implementation and reporling {see page 34
- Corporate Responsibility section)

Mobiiisation of large new rail franchises

We aim to use the knowledge gained in the successiul rail
maobilisation processes we have been involved n to date for other
new raill franchises won by the group The mobilisation of the
CrossCountry contract from November 2007 went smaothly,
benefiung from our previous experience both in the UK and
abroad
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3 Commercial risks

Franchuse / tender / acquisition costing and revenue {orecasting
Errors or inaccurate assumptions in tenders or acguisiions
represent a nsk to the business A number of procedures are In
place to mitigate the nsk

The Board monitors all materral new franchise, tender and
acquisition submissions across the group's operations, whilst
the executive directors review other bids on an ongoing basis
in ine with detegated authonty imits  Standard tender models
are In use across the business Significant bus and train tender
contracts are compared with current expenence to identify
weaknesses and potential improvements in the tender process
Post-investment appraisals are camed out through quarterly
business review meetings

One of the most signiftcant set of assumptions which may be
required In constructing a franchise id relates to general
economic tactors influencing the market concerned Arnva’s
balanced portfolio of operations, between bus and rail, and
between different countnes, mnimises its exposure to any
downturn In any indvidual market sector The revenue nsk
associated with any potential loss of consumer demand from
the travelling public 1s mitigated by the substantial proportion of
the group's revenues which flow from non-passenger sources
{see page 8 - Spreading our net)

Most tendered net cost contracts (see page 5 - Hold on light)
require the operator to deliver specified services whilst retaining
the income from passengers In contracts where passenger
Income represents a significant proporhion of total revenue, the
group is exposed to the nsk of passenger revenue being higher
or lower than anticipated Historically, passenger revenue
growth s highly carrefated with growth in locat econormies The
recently started UK CrossCountry ratl contract 1s a particularly
large contract with these characienstics, Arriva Is commiited 1o
reducing government financtal support on this franchise to
almost zero befare the end of the franchise in 2016 To deliver
anticipaled returns, over eight per cent annual revenue growth
in real terms will be required, a considerable proportion of
which 15 dependent on economic growth However, in the
fourth year of the franchise, the financial nsk i1s parually
mitigated by a revenue risk sharing mechanism i the contract




The actual conditions are complex but the principal financial
arrangements are

Percentage shortfall on Revenue
target revenue support
0-2% Nil

2 -6% 50%
6% and higher 80%

These nsk mibigating factars are mirrored by potential payments
to the UK Government when targeted revenue 1s exceeded

Throughout the franchise, revenue suppert may also be
avalable if the dominant cause of a qualifying revenue shortfall
1S a 'Force Majeure’ event, such as severe flooding

Acguisitions

Arnva has clearly defined guidetines for due diligence work and
internal reporting on potential acquisiions, which require the
monitoring of such items by the executive directors subject to
delegated authonty imits Sale and Purchase Agreements
include price adjustment mechanisms and warranties as
appropriate

4 Financial nsks

As detalled on pages 28 to 29 in the Financial Review, the group’s
financial nsks are managed by the group treasury function in
accordance with a formal Board approved treasury policy

Interest rate nsk
Fluctuations in interest rates are managed through the use of
interest rate derivatives and fixed rate debt

Commodity risk
The group's policy 1s to maintain fuel price fixes af [east 12 10
15 months ahead, on a roling basis

Currency translation nsk

The group policy on foreign exchange exposure 1s that the nsk
of translabing non UK assets and labilities into pounds sterling
should be reduced to insignificant levels

Retirement benefit obligations

increased retrement benefit obligations may require additional
contnbutions to be made by companies o state or other
schemes Such contributions could have a matenal impact on
the group We perform regular pension strategy reviews with
the group’s pension advisors, and momtor developments in
group pension schemes and state schemes where we operate

5 Other nsks

Changes In transport legislation and/or regulation

This 15 a nisk that faces Amva in every country in which it
operates

The group has procedures in place to ensure effective
laison with approprtate national and European Union
officials and monitonng of developments in this area for
timely reporiing to senior management

In the UK, the Government is currently planming
changes to transport legislaiion with an expected
implementation date 1n late 2008 or early 2009 The
Government is also considening amendments to the
Bus Service Operators Grant These planned and
potential changes could have significant impact on the
UK bus indusiry

Arriva, alongside other UK operators, 1s monitoning the
development of legislation in this area and representing
the best long-term interests of the industry

Succession planning for key managenal positions

Amwa I1s a fast-growing company i many markets The
group has a stable senior management population but
any inability to fill a significant proportion of senicr
vacancles could have an adverse impact on the group's
fuiure development Succession planning Is already in
place, as 1s a process for Identifying emerging
management falent We are developing an executive
development programme
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Our Impact
On society

As a leading provider of transport services in Europe we
play a wital economic and social role in the lives of milions
of people across the 10 countnes in which we operate On
behalf of our employees, customers, shareholders and all
the communities we serve, we beheve in promoting the
environmenial benefits of modal shift to public transport,
whilst operating responsibly to mitigate the environmenta!
impact of our operations

In managing our social impact we focus on four themes, from
the boardroom to our depots

1 Safety Operating our services In a way that mimises

the nsk to our passengers and employees

2 Community Making a positive impact and bullding on the

value we provide with our transport services

Hefping our people 1o make the most of therr
pctential, and being a good employer

3. Employees

4 Environment Finding the nght balance between enabiing
people 1o make the journeys that ennch their
Ives, and helping to minmise the environmental
impact of those journeys
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Corporate Responsibility

Reflecting the impartance of the four themes, Steve Clayton,
an executive director, leads from man Board level 1o sat policy,
and encourage improvements and the sharng of knowledge
and best practice

Formal policies set cut certain aspects of our approach to the
wider commurity Our set of Corporate Responsibility policies
can be viewed on our website at www arnva co uk

1 Safety

The safety of our customers and employees (s our primary
concern Its at the core of our values and 1s built in 1o all our
operating proceduras

Safety practices are reviewed reguiarly by the Board Safely
Commitize (see page 58 - Corpaorate Governance), which IS
chaired by a non-executive director, Veranica Palmer, with
another non-executive director Steve Willams, and Steve Clayton
as members The committee monitors all aspects of safety in
our operations, reviews and reports to the Board on the
company's internal safety management system, and oversees
the group safety policy and the arrangements for its
implementation

QOur approach to safety management includes specific training
for senior operational managers, employees and supemnisory
staff Much of the traning 1s extemally accredited by the




Insttution of Occupational Safety and Health ({OSH),
Europe’s leading body for health and safety
piofessionals We work with other members of our
indusiry to share best practice and reduce nsk, and
believe, from the imited industry comparative
information avallable, that our safety record
represents best practice We are also recagnised as
being at the leading edge cf road risk management
in the UK bus and ¢oach industry

Cur policy s for each of our transport businesses to
provide employees with training including a sate
approach to driving, customer care and conflict
management Each operational location s subject to
internal safety and standards audits every six-months
Audits are completed by trained and expenenced
safety auditors who will make reccmmendations and
prepare action plans in the event of non-compliance
Arrangements are subject to periodic guality
assurance audits

2. Community

Our transport services help maintain the heartbeat
for the communities we serve When people depend
on ug, we have to be dependable A key
performance indicator for Amva 1s the proportion of
planned or contracted miteage that we succeed In
operating on our deregulated and confracted bus
and rall services In 2007, we are proud to have
operated 99 1 per cent of the 520 million vehicle
mites that were scheduled - an improvement from
the 98 9 per cent achieved in 2006

But our community engagement goes deeper than
that with a real commutment by our people and
businesses in thew local areas Work with chanties,
local sports clubs, schools, neighbourhood groups
and the arts all help to cement relationstups between
Arrva, Its employees and our local communities

Our UK employees are supported with fundrassing
for therr chosen good causes in their local
communiigs Wider local actviies have included
visits to scheool and community groups to spread
safety awareness among youngsiers, free transport
for community groups and free advertising on buses
for local erganisations and chanties

As part of our focus on young people and
education, Armva produced a school pack for
leachers and t1i¢ 16-year-olds in the UK It
supports key areas of the curnculurm including
lesson ptans for maths, sensible road use, how to
calch a bus and planning a route to schoal

The safety of cur customers
and employees Is our primary
concern
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The attraction of sport to encourage young people fo
lead healthier lifestyles 15 harnessed through a number
of community intiatives For example, in Wales, Arriva
18 main sponsor for the Wales Deaf Rugby Union
team and suppeorts women's and children’s soccer
teams with sponsored kit, with safety awareness
integrat to these and other community programmes

Budding young sporispeaple won traiming grants in
Arriva s ‘Search for a Star” appeal, after being voled
for by UK bus passengers

In Liverpool, Arriva's Healthy Schocls Bus, in
parinership with Everton Football Club, has completed
more than 210 school visits since is launch In
November 2006, giving more than 11,000 pupils a fun
focus on healthy eating and exercise The inibative
includes follow-up visits, monitoring pupils’ progress
in nutrition and fitness Plans are being developed to
replicate the success of the scheme over a wider area

The salety of people in the communiies where Arriva
operales 1s a key element to our work with local people
Armva employees i Portugal give regular safety
lessons in schools, while in the UK each regional
bus depot has a schools laison officer who works
with pupils to develop salety awareness Arrva also
has two people working with Transport for London’s
schools hason programme  In Wales, work with
disadvantaged youngsters promoies a shared
sense of community which in turn has the added
benefit of reducing antisocial behaviour and reducing
rail trespass

Corporate Responsibility continued

Innovaton in this field includes Artva Sweden's launch
of a 'disco bus' fitted with ights and a sound-system
o engage young pecple i a positive way, an inhative
now being replicated in ltaly

We have expanded the 'Child Safe’ campaign for
families on holiday in Spain and Portugal Children
using Arriva buses are given bnghtly coloured
wrisibands on which therr parents wnte emergency
contact detalls The wnstbands carry a distinctive
logo which 1s matched on ‘Child Safe’ shops and
bustnesses where a lost child can go to be reuniied
with thear farmily

In ltaly our SAF business sponscred a children’s arts
project prometing understanding of the enwronmental
rale of public transpoert, with sculptures from recycled
materials displayed n cittes across Europe with the
children's green transporl messages
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3 Employees

Arriva now has more than 40,000 employees across
Europe, including a proportional share of associate
companies

Training and development

We invest In our people and encourage them to reach
their full potential, because it 1s therr contnbution and
effort that will help the company achieve its vision

Examples of training and development for employees
include techmecal gualifications, health and safety
training, diversity awareness traiming and people
management skilfs, in addition to on-the-job raning
For several years we have given our employees
access to an extensive range of learming and
development resouwices via an on-line facility This
has recently been expanded and redeveloped into a
new website which now includes on-lne language
training 1n more than 30 different languages A
communications skills initiaiive across our UK
businesses is being expanded into mainland Europe

Our graduate development programme, operaiing
across Europe, includes an 18-month development
programme, ot-job traiming, coaching from a mentor
and regular performance/development reviews So
far we have recruted into graduate schemes in
Denmark, Germany, ltaly, Sweden and the UK

We have devised a stralegic leadership prafile,
identifying the behaviours which are maost important
In helping Arriva meet 1ts stralegic objectives, and
expressed in terms which transfate across all the
countries In which we operate Qur periormance
management process is designed 1o support the
development of our people, improve business
performance and support Arnva's leadership
agenda We also have a succession planming process
in place for senior managers and assess the
development needs of those managers who have
been identified as having good potential
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Morale and motivation

In 2007 we repeated our biennial employee survey to
gauge attitudes and opinions and understand what
we can do beller to improve employee molivation

The feedback, presenied to the Board, showed an
overall response rate of 54 per cent, a healthy
improvement on the 35 per cent recorded i 2005,
and giving more meaningful represeniative feedback
on employee opinion

While overall employee satisfaction remamns at 49
per cent, a figure we aim to improve, ihe survey
results showed significant improvementis in the
responses relating to internal communication, which
had shown up i the 2005 survey as an area
menting attention Durnng 2006 and 2007 we
designed and produced a group-wide programme
ia help supemvisors and smanagers to communicate
better with ther teams We believe the improvement
in scores reflects the success of this inriative

To enable employees at all levels of the busingss to
have the cpportunity to raise 1deas and feed back
customer comments, each business has developed
an action plan to respond to feedback from
employees

We intend to repeat our survey again in 2009 and
will continue to use employee feedback as a valuable
source of management guidance

Employee representation

We make extensive use of works councils and
endeavour to maintain close working relattonships
with the trades untons covering our indusiry Ariva
operates a European Works Counctl which provides
a forum for a formal group-wide update on operations
and business performance and best practice sharing,
facilitated by wisits to operational units in the host
country

Across our UK and mainland Europe businesses,
the vast majonty of our workiorce 1s covered by
collective agreements on working condstions, and
we make appropnate arrangements for union
officials to receive training and to carry out official
unign business

Waorking time

Arriva policy 1s to ensure we comply with all local
requirements, though the nterpretation and specific
implementation of EU legislaton does vary across
European countries

During 2006 and 2007 we
designed and produced a
group-wide programme to
help supervisors and
managers to communicate
better with their teams
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4 Environment

Comphliance with standards

Around 10 per cent of the company's sites are
certified to the 1ISO14001 envivonmental management
standard

The group has legal compliance as a minimum
standard and ams to exceed this wherever
praciicable This 1s a group-wide approach, subject
to local legistation, and 15 tested through
appropriate audit procedures

Across the whole group, we work to exceed legal
comphance through tnal and adoption of new and
novel technalogies, and through working n
partnership with suppliers 10 ensure that we are
using the most appropnale product or service i the
circumstances

Greenhouse gases

No transpor operator can fail to be aware of the
broad scientific consensus that greenhouse gases
{GHG), including carbon dioxide (CO2) from the
bumng of fossil fuels, are implicated in climaie
change

All modes of transport can expect to come under
increasing scrutiny, reflecting increased concern
about the effecis of GHG emissions In doing se
there 1s a balance to be maniained Access to
transport and freedom of movement are not only
highty prized aspects of human society, they are
also at the heart of economic and social well-being
Public transport has a great deal to offer as part of
the answer to maintaining vital mobility,
underpinning freedom of movement and economic
prospenty while keeping a brake on unnecessary
emissions Furthermore in many cases improved
environmental performance goes hand in hand with
reduced business costs That 1s lower fuel
consumption leads to lower GHG emission and
lower spend on fuel
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GHG footprint

Arriva's GHG footpnnt has been estimated by the
Edinburgh Centre for Carbon Management (ECCM)
from data provided by the company Amiva's 2007
operational ermissions were estimated as 1,049,998
tonnes of CO2 equivalent (CO2e} This represents
an increase (n absolute emissions of 3,310 tonnes
CQO2e {0 3 per cent) compared to 2006

ECCM estimates that the GHG emissions
calculations carned out in this study have an
associated uncertainty of +/-13 per cent and the
final emsssions estimate I1s therefore assigned an
overall good’ evaluation in terms of confidence in
the data However, the uncertanty faclor means the
recorded 0 3 per cent change 1s too small to be
regarded as of any statistical signficance

The assessment includes bus and train fleet fuel
consumplion, premises energy consumption, waste
chsposal, company owned vehicles, and refrigerant
gas losses, but not business travel This |5
consisient with the approach taken for the 2005 and
2006 assessments The amount of CO2e associated
with business travel s believed to be not matenal n
the context of the group as a whole

The emissions associaied with the bus fleet account
tor 78 per cent of the total, or 816,728 ionnes of
CO2e Tran fleet emissions contnbute 16 per cent to
the total {164,835 tonnes of CO2¢), and site energy
consumption cantributes four per cent to the total
{42,020 tonnes of CO2e) Other emssions sources
{waste disposal and refngerant losses) contnbute
approximately two per cent to overall emissions

During the assessment period we used biodiesel
blends in some bus and train fleets The reduction in
emissions on a 'tank to wheel’ basis through using
biofuels has been included n the results reported in
the assessment
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We intend to use our GHG emissions data to identify
areas for improvement and increased management
focus In doing so we will also am to iImprove the
carbon-efficiency of our ancillary functions such as
the way we manage our depots and other facilities,
and business travel

GHG emussions reduction target

We are amming fo reduce our GHG emussions footprint,
measured on like-for-ike operations, by 15 per cent
from the 2006 figure, by 2012 We specify ‘like-for-like”
1o ensure we can continue to track meaningful
progress If we make a major acquisition or disposal,
or win a targe contract

Maost of Arnva's GHG foctprint, unsurprisingly, 1S
denved fram the fuel that powers our buses and
trans This must therefore be the area to focus our
efforts in order to make the biggest possible
improvements

Our long-term fuel strategy 18

1 To use what we must as efficiently as possible
subject to commerciai restrictions and
considerations

2 To make what we use as environmentally fnendly
as possible

3 To maximise the social and economic Denefit of
that fuel use by using 4 to carry as many
passengers as possibie

For many years we have been reducing vehicle
emissions in terms of urban ar pallutants other than
CO2 Much progress has been made through the
introduction of progressively cleaner engine
technologies, and the high standards of
maintenance which keep those vehicles working
efficiently and passing regular inspections

However, over recent years new buses and trans have
tended to use more fuel than ther predecessors This
has been partly as a side effect of improving
emissions of Ioca! pollutants, and partly an effect of
increased vehicle weights, stemming from improved
engine technology and tncreased equipment
specifications, including those to enharice safety,
lardd down by tendering authonties and regulators

Our 2012 GHG reduction target 1s demanding,
especially given the heavier fuel consumption of these
more recent generaiicns of vehicles which are working
Ihair way through our fieets We are unlikely to meet
that target entirely as a result of changes whrch are
within our sole control, but we hope that over time it
will be possible to encourage other parties 1o make
changes which help us Reaching the 15 per cent
target, on our present plans, requires us to make
assurmptions which we consider to be reasonable on
the future avalabiity of biofuels, but which wil depend
on supporting decisions taken by governments and
fuel supplers

Alternative fuels

Arriva has a record of iInnovation in identilying viable
low emission and renewable fuels, and putting them
into service where operationalty and commercially
practicaple This has several benafits for the group
Fossil-fuel based digsel fuel 1s a finite resource and
we consider ¢ prudent to learn as much as possible
about how our existing and potential vehicles may be
adapted to operate on different fuels This learning 1s
shared with fuel suppliers and vehicle manutacturers
and helps all parties involved to move into the future
with greater confidence and expenence In some
countries H enables us to operate at reduced cost, as
a result of economic Incentrives to simulate the market
demand for alternative fuels It allows us, as service
providers, to respand to the expressed public policy
objectives of governments at many levels in the
commurities we serve Finally, it gives us an important
way of reducing our GHG foolprint in the medium term

We are aming to reduce our

GHG emussions footprint, measured
on like-for-like operations, by 15 per
cent from the 2006 figure, by 2012
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The dwersity of our fleet and operating markets
allows us to quickly evaluaie the possible benefits
and to rapidly implement potentiat soluttons

In Germany, Armiva 1s using envienmentally fnendly
brodresel which reduces CO2 emissions by up to 90
per cent, dernved from locally grown rape seed oll,
for trans at our PEG and ODEG operations and our
Biis bus company

In Portugal, building on our improvements n upgrading
operations to Ultra Low Sulphur Digsel (ULSD), we
have started running 240 buses on a 830 biodiesel
blend - a mixture of 30 per cent biodiesel and 70 per
cent mineral diesel - which wilt lead to a net reduction
of up to 30 per cent in CO2 emussions for those
vehicles

in the UK we began tnals of B20 biodiese! blend
using Fatty Acid Methy! Ester (FAME) to reduce
carbon emissions by around 20 per cent net for 75
vehicles The FAME 1s predominantly a mixture of
sustainable soya products, along with used coocking
ol and tallow The tnal, moving into the appraisal
phase, runs in Biyth, Northumberland, where our
buses carry around 130,000 passengers every week

Biofuels are no less controverssal than any other
energy source Arva, despite its advanced
deployment of bicfuels In some markets, accepis
that the science and politics of biofuels have not yet
developed fully and may change over time In planning
a measured extension of our use of biofuels to help
meet ouwr GHG emissions reduction targets, we
believe we are also coninbuting towards the public
policy objectives expressed by the European
Commission and the UK, German and Portuguese
gavernments, all of which envisage increased take-
up of biofuels as one measure to combat climate
change, and have built that assumpton into their
own policies if any such policy objectives change to
discourage rofuel use then we will be likely to amend
our GHG emisstons reduction targets accardingly

Different driving, different designs

The way our buses are driven has a big impact on
fuel consumgption and thereby CO2 enussions Since
early 2007 we have been runming a project n North
Wast England to measure indvmdual jourmeys and
how fuel 1s used Early resulis are promising, and
are factored into our plans to reach our 2012 GHG
emissions reduction target

We are also expenimenting with alternative vehicle
designs Our London business, with Transport for
Laondon, ss conduching tnals of the world's first hybnd
double-decker bus The bus uses electric motors in
tandem with diesel engines 1o reduce emissions by
a potential 40 per cent

Local air pollution reduction

Since 2001 Arnva has invesied more than £480 million
in modern buses and trains that are i ine with, and
sometimes exceed, the latest EU environmental
standards All new buses now meet the strict Euro 4
benchmark, whilst new trains meet the Euro Stage
3A standard, offering steep reductions in emissions
of carbon monoxide, nitrogen axides, hydrocarbons
and particulate matter less than 10 microns in size

Although chmate change and local arr qualty 1ssues
are generally regarded as the most prominent
environmental concem relating to ransport companses,
other matters such as use of water and waste disposal
are sull important

In 2007 we started research into the reduction 1in our
use of energy and water, and the oppartunity tc use
renewable energy within the exssting public fransport
infrastructure For example, in 43 sites belonging to
four of our UK regional bus operations we inslatled
advanced heating controls, ncorporating electronic
controllers and sensors operating inside and outside
buldings Heating-energy savings in these siles over
the first mne months of operations ranged from 32
per cent to 42 per cent, encouraging us to expand
the programme 1n 2008 and investgate similar
lechnotogies wihich could control hghting systems

The prioriies and solutons ier managing our
environmental impact in one lecation are ofien not the
same as In another location There 1s greater scope
for use of solar power In southern Portugal than 1n
Scotland, and a greater need to save water resources
In Spain than in the Netherlands Where we find good
praciice and innovalion delivering benefits, we
atways look for ways i which other parts of Arriva
can beneht
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In the last six years, we have invested
£480 million in modern buses and trains
which are In ine with latest EU standards

1 Vehicle split by engine iype

n Mileage split by engine type

2007 2006 2007 2006
% % % %
Euro | 128 145 Euro | 129 139
Eurc 380 385 Euro |l 377 383
Euro I 295 290 Euro Il 330 316
Euro IV 40 05 Euro IV 29 04
Euro V 17 Euro vV 086 -
EEV 13 - EEV o4
Non Euro class 103 162 Non Euro class i08 153
Other 24 13 Other 17 05
n Water consumptlion per vehicle 88 90
{cubic metres)
v Energy consumption per vehicle 13,035 13,390

(Kwh)
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Board of Direclors

Board of Directors

Sir Richard Broadbent KCB Chairman

Aged 54 Sir Richard was appointed to the
Board in July 2004 and was appointed
chairman in November 2004

Sr Richard 1s the senior Independent director
of Barclays plc and was executive charman,
HM Customs and Excise, from 2000 to 2003

He was formerty a member of the Group
Executive Committee of Schroders ple and
non-executve director of the Secunties Instituie
As chairman, Sir Richard charrs the
Nomination Committee of the Board and 1s
also a member of the Remuneration Commitiee

David Martin BA, FCMA, MiMgt Chief Executive

Aged 56 David qualified as an accountant in
1977 after graduating in business studies

He held a vanety of general management
postticns before joining the bus industry in
1986 After leading a management buy-out of
an East Midlands based bus company, he was
invelved in the acquisition of National Express
and subsequent management buy-outs
leading to the creation of British Bus Group

Limited Dawvid joined Arniva in 1996 on the
acquisition of Bntish Bus, becoming a member
of the Board in February 1998 with specific
responsthlity for the group's nternational
operations and development

In March 2005 he was appointed group
managing director - operations and deputy
chief executive, and on 19 Apnl 2008 was
appointed chief executive

Steve Lonsdale BA, FCA Group Managing Director - Finance

Aged 50 Sleve graduated from the Unversity
of Newcastle upon Tyne with a degree in
economics and accounting before joining
Coopers & Lybrand in 1978 He qualified as
a chartered accountant in 1981 and spent
eight years working in the profession in the
UK and overseas Steve joined the group in

1987 where he worked as group accountant
until 1991 when he was appointed 1o the
Board as group finance director

in March 2005 he was appointed group
managing director - finance, with responsibility
for all finance, legal and company secretarial
matters

Steve Clayton BA, FCIT, MiMgt Group Managing Diector - Corporate Affars

Aged 54 After graduating from London
University in 1975, Steve held various
management positions with London Transport
He was managing director of Leaside Bus
Company Limited from 1988, which was
acquired by the group in 1894

Steve was appointed to the Board n February
1998 with responsibility for the group’s UK bus
operatons In March 2005 he was appointed

group managing director - corporate affairs,
with responsibility for human resources, health,
safety and the environment, technical services
and corporate commurications and all
government relations acliviies across the
group He 1s char of the Group Corporate
Responsibilkty Commuttee and sits as a
member of the Salety Committee
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Simon Batey MA, FCA Non-Executive Director

Aged 54 Simon joined the Board as a non-
executive director on 1 October 2003 and
since 1 January 2004 he has been chairman
of the Audit Committee, he also sits on the
Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Simen has 20 years' experience in a number
of senior finance roles in industry Between
2000 and 2008, Simon was group finance
director of United Utidihes plc and, from 2006

until August 2007 he was chief financial
officer of Thames Water Utiliies Limited
From 1987 to 2000, he worked for AMEC
plc, intially as deputy group finance directer
and then, from 1892, as group finance
director Simon has been a non-execuive
director of Telecity Group plc since October
2007 and has also served as a non-executive
director ot THUS Group plc

Steve Williams LLB Non-Executive Director

Aged 60 Steve was appointed to the Board
as a non-executive director on 1 September
2005 and on 18 October 2005 was appointed
senior independent director, Steve sits on the
Nomination, Audit and Safety Committees

Steve 15 chief legal cofficer and group general
counsel of Unilever plc and Unilever NV

Prior to joining Unilever, Steve spent eleven
years at Impenal Chemical industnes plc in the
legal and company secretanal departments
He served for nine years as a non-executive
director of Bunzl plc unti 2004

Nick Buckles Non-Executive Director

Aged 47 Nick was appomted to the Board as
a non-executive director on 19 July 2005 and
in September 2007 was appointed as
chairman of the Remunerat:on Committee,
Nick also siis on the Nomination Committee,
and was chairman of the Safety Committee
from Qctober 2005 until September 2007

Having joined Secuncor plc in 1985, Nick was
apponted to ts Board in 2000 Following the
merger between Securicor plc and the secunty
businesses of Group 4 Falck, he was appointed
deputy chief executive and chief operating
officer of the merged Group 4 Securicor
{now G4S plc) in July 2004, and then became
chiet executive of G4S plc in July 2005

Veronica Palmer OBE Mon-Executive Director

Aged 67 Veronica was appointed to the Board
as a non-executive direcior in September
2001 and since September 2007 has chared
the Safety Committee of the Board, she also
sits on the Audit and Nomination Committees
Veromca was charman of the Rermuneration
Commuttes from June 2005 until September
2007 Veronica held the position of director
general of the Canfederaton of Passenger
Transport UK {rom 1989 until June 2001

Earlier she worked in the brewing industry's
trade association as parliamentary secretary
following a successful career in the Royal Ay
Force and wark as an employment
consultant 1n Europe Vercnica has an MBE
for miltary services and an OBE for services
to the transpert industry She is charman of
the Northesn Ireland Transport Holding
Company Board
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Directors’ Report

The directoss submit therr report and the audited accounts of Arriva plc for the year ended 31 December 2007

Prnncipal activities of the group
The principa! activities of the group at 31 December 2007 comprised the operation of bus and train services 0 the UK and nine countries
in mamniand Europe

Business Review

A review of the group's principal activites and performance for the year 1s contained in the Charman's Statement (on pages 18 1o 18}, the
Chief Executrve's Review (on pages 20 to 25), the Financial Review (on pages 26 to 31) and the Corporate Responsibility report (on pages
34 to 43}, which collectively compnse the Business Review and these are included in this repert by reference A review of the principal
nsks and uncertainties facing the company Is set out on pages 32 to 33 and 1s also included in this repon by reference

This Annual Report & Accounts contains certain forward-looking statements These statements and forecasts involve nisk and uncertainty
because they relate to events and depend upon circumstances thal occur i the future There may be a number of facters that could
cause actual resulis or developments to differ matenally from those expressed or implied by these forward looking statements and forecasts

Key performance indicators

The group uses the following key performance indicators {KPIs') to assist in the understanding of the development, performance and
position of the business

{) Earnings per share, before goodwll mparment, intangible asset amortisation and exceptional tems (see page 26)

{n) Order book (see pages 16 to 17)

(my Employee turnover and non-attendance (see page 37)

(v) Return on capital employed (see page 31)

{v) Percentage of scheduled mileage operated {see page 35)

(vi) Public Performance Measure for UK Trains (see page 25)

(v} Fault Incidents per 100,000 km (see page 35)

(vi) Employee injuries per 100 employed (see page 35)

Results and dwvidends

The profit for the year amounted to £80 0 millon {2006 £104 7 mithon} The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend on the
ordinary shares of the company of 17 06 pence per share (2006 15 51 pence), which together with the intenm diadend of 5 59 pence
(2006 532 pence) represents a total of 22 65 pence per ordinary share (2006 20 83 pence) The proposed final dmvidend, if approved, will

be payable on 1 May 2008 to shareholders on the Register of Members at the close of business on 28 March 2008 The total amount paid
and proposed to be pard 1s €45 0 million n respect of 2007 (2006 £41 2 mulhon)

Share capital
The share capital of the company comprises 280,000,000 crdinary shares of 5 pence each, each share having ane vote As at 1 March
2008, there were 198,623,572 shares In 1ssue The {otal number of voting rights was therefore 198,623,572

The movement in the share capital during the year 1s detaled in Note 23 to the Accounts

Directors
The names and biographies of the current direclors appear on pages 44 and 45

S J Clayton, N P Buckles and S G Williams retire by rotatien and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting on 23 Apnl 2008

Save for Sir Richard Broadbent's directorship of Barclays Bank plc, which bank was the lead arranger in a £615 milhon syndicated revolving
credit refinancing faciity that the company entered into in earty August 2007 {and in which facility negotiations S Richard played no actve
roled, no director was nilerested in any contract or arrangement which was significant in refation to the group’s business

Indemnification of directors

In accordance with its Articles of Association and as approved by shareholders at the 2006 Annual General Meeting, the company has the
power (at 11s discretion) to grant an Indemnity to the directors in respect of habiibes incurred as a result of ther office Deeds of indemnity
were 1ssued 1o all directors in May 2006

The company has maintained a dectors' and officers’ hability insurance policy throughout the period

Neither the company's indemnity nor insurance provides cover In the event that the director 15 proved to have acted fraudulently or
dishonesily No claims have been made either under the indernnity or the msurance policy
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Statement of directors’ responsibiliies in respect of the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annuat Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the group and parent company
financtal statements i accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under ihat law the directors have prepared the
group financtal statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the European Urion,
and the parent company financial statements and the Directors” Remuneration Report in accordance with appheable law and United
Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice In preparing the group financial statemenis, the directors have also elected to comply
with [FRSs, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) The group and parent companry financial statements are
required by law 1o give a true and fair view oi the state of affars of the company and the group and of the prohit or loss of the company
and group for that peniod

In prepanng those financial statements, the directors are requrred to

* Se'ect sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
* Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

* State that the group financiat statemenis comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs 1ssued by the IASB, and
with regard to the parent company financiat statements that applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statemenis

* Prepare the group and parent company financial statements on the going concern basis unless It 1S INappropriate to presume that the
group will continue N business, N which case there should be supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in prepanng the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
postition of the company and the group and to enable them to ensure that the group financial statements comply with the Companies Act
1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the parent company financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply
with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularites

The directors confirm that, as at the date this report was approved, sc far as each director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information
of which the auditors are unaware and they have taken all the steps thal they ought to have laken as drectors in order 1o make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information

The drrectors are responsible for the maintenance and mtegnty of the group's website Financial information published on the website 1s
based on legislation in the United Kingdom govemning the preparation and dissemination of financial siatements and may differ from
legislation i other junsdictions

Drectors’ interests
The interests of the direciors (ncluding ther family interests) at the end of the year, Including details of directors’ inferests under the Long
Term Incentive Plan, appear in the Directors’ Remuneration Repori on pages 49 to 55

Purchase of own shares
No shares were purchased pursuant 1o the authorty granted to the directors at the Annual General Meeting held on 18 Aprl 2007
Renewal of this authority will be sought at the Annual Generai Meeting to be held on 23 Apnl 2008

Acquisitions

In January 2007, the acquission of Czech Republic bus operator Bosak Bus s ro was announced for a cash payrnent of £1 0 rmuion and
the assumption of £0 7 milion debt Also in January 2007, the acquisition was announced of Spanish bus operator Esfera {or an inital
payment of €3 7 milkon (€2 5 millicn), subject to the business achieving specific key growth targets a further payment of up ta €1 miflion
(£0 7 rrullion) will be made

In March 2007, the group completed the acquisiion of 85 per cent of the German bus and ral company Osthannoversche Eisenbahnen
AG (OHE) for a consideration of £28 2 mulllon including net debt assumed, as part of an 88 per cent owned joint venture

In June 2007, the acquisition of 49 per cent of lizhan bus operator SPT Linea for €6 8 million (€4 6 mullion) was announced Arriva's ltalian
business SAB Autoservizi s rl and Lombardy-based Ferrovie Nord Milano Group (FNM SpA), entered into a 50/50 joint venture to acquire
the shares in SPT Linea

The acquisiiion of the whole of the issued share capital of Veolia Transport Danmark AS was completed on 31 Augusi 2007

On 11 Nevemnber 2007, the group commenced the operation of the CrossCountry UK rail franchise which had been awarded in July 2007
and which runs until March 2016
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In January 2008 the group announced the acquisition of a further 10 per cent interest in Barraqueiro SGPS SA, the leading Portuguese
passenger transport operator for a consideration of €50 million (£37 millton) 1n cash Following this iransaction the group now holds a
31 5 per cent interest in Barraguero

On 11 January 2008, the company announced that its offer for the whole of the tssued and to be 1ssued share capital of Tellings Golden
Miller Group plc (TGM), for a cash consideration of 45 pence per share {approximately £10 3 million), had become wholly unconditional
On 22 January the “squeeze-out” provisions of §979 Companies Act 2006 were invoked 1n respect of the non-assenting shareholdings in
TGM amounting to approximately 2 81 per cent of the issued and to be 1ssued share capital of TGM

Chantable and political donations
Duning the year the group made charitabte donations, for a variety of chantable purposes, amounting lo £111,640 (2006 £148,677)
There were no political donations {2006 £nif)

Annual Gengral Meating

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 23 April 2008 Details of business to be considered at the Meeting can be found in the Notice
of Annual General Meeting which has been sent to all shareholders with the Annual Report & Accounis, and will appear on the website at
www arnva co uk, from 28 March

Employees
The Board of Arriva plc recognises thal its employees are key to 1ts success and 1s commutted to creating a working environment where
everyone has the opportunity to learn, develop and coninbute to the success of the group, working within a common set of values

The group intends fo be an emplayer of choice and 1o employ a diverse workforce with the skills, abiliies and attitudes to meet business
objectives and needs The group's aim Is to provide appropriate remuneration, benefits and conditions of employment which will serve o
attract, retain, motivate and reward such employees

The group continues to give fult and fair considaration to apphications for employment by disabled persons, having regard {0 thesr
respective aptitudes and abiliies and its policy includes, where applicable, the continued employment of those who may become disabled
dunng therr employment

The group has, subject to the restraints of commercial confidentiality, continued its policy of employee involvernent, by making information
avallable to employees on a regular basis regarding recent and probable future developments and business actmties Further information
on employee representation can be found in the Corporate Responsibility report on page 38

Policy regarding payment of supplers

The group's policy regarding the payment of suppliers is enther to agree terms of payment at the stant of business with each suppler or 1o
ensure that the supplier 1s made aware of the payment terms, and In etther case to pay in accordance with s contractual or other legal
obligations At 31 Decemnber 2007, the company’s trade creditors outstanding represented approximately 40 days® purchases (2006 49 days)

Substantial shareholdings
As far as the directors are aware, the only notifiable holdings equal to or in excess of three per cent of the 1ssued ordinary share capital
as at 1 March 2008 were

Per cent
Marathon Asset Management LLP 603
Aberdeen Asset Management PLC's Fund Management Operating Subsidianes 508
Blackrock Inc 406
Legal & General Group Plc 403
Alianz SE and Allianz Globat nvestors Giobal Equity Business Unit 327

Corporate governance
A review of tha company's application of the principles and provisions of The Combxned Code 2006 appears on pages 56 to 60

Health, safety and environment
Detalls of the company's approach to health, safety and environmental 1ssues appears within the Corporate Responsibility report on
pages 34 {0 43

Auditors
A resolution 1o re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors to the company and to authonise the directors to fix the auditors”
remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

By order of the Board ﬁ

D P TURNER \/C‘{ P——
Company Secretary :

5 March 2008 —
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Directors' Remuneration Report r‘

1 Introduction
This report has been prepared In accordance with the provisions of schedule 7A to the Comapnies Act 1985 and has been approved by
both the Remuneration Committee and the Board

The committee s responstble for all matters relating to the remuneration arrangements for executive directors, and semior management
below Board level

Membership of the committee 15 hrmited to the non-executive directors The membership in 2007 was as follows

N P Buckles (chaiman from 5 September 2007)

Sir Richard Broadbent {irom 5 September 2007}

S G Batey

AV M Palmer {chairman until 5 September 2007 when she retired from the committeeg)

During the year, the commuitiee met on three occasions detals of the attendance at meetings appear in the Corporate Governance report
on page 58

2 Remuneration policy

The objectwe of the Board s remuneration policy 1s to recruit and retain hugh quality directors and managers by providing competitive
rewards based on the achievement of targets which are aligned to the company's strategic goals and with returns to shareholders The
committee has established and continues 1o mamtain with independent advice a peer pay comparator group compnsing a selection of
FTSE 250 companies {from the transport and other sectors) of a similar size and complexity to that of the company The committee
benchmarks remuneration with the peer group, subject to the achievement of performance targets Performance targets selected by the
commitiee are subject to penodic review to ensure continued congruence with the group’s strategic goals

3 Remuneration structure
(a) Base salary

Each of the executive directors 1s paid a basic annual salary which 1s reviewed n January each year

Basic Salary Bastc Salary
1 January 2008 1 January 2007
£ 000 pa £'000 pa
D R Martin 480 465
S P Lonsdale 312 302
S J Clayton 280 271

{b) Performance related bonus

Each of the executive directors has the opportunity to earn an annual bonus of up 1o 100 per cent of basic annual salary of whiuch 70 per
cent of the potential award 15 determined by group financial performance, with the balance being determined by the perormance of each
dwector against quahtative objectives agreed at the beginning of the year

With regard to the group financial performance element, the target 1s group earnings per share before goodwill impairment and intangible
asset amortisation calculated in accordance with International Financial Repoerting Standards and adjusted {or exceptional tems {'EPS')
The committee reviews annually the EPS target o ensure that it remains appropnate i the context of the group's strategy and the delivery
of sustaned shareholder value For 2007 the EPS element of the bonus arangement was structured as follows

EPS Target Borus as a
{pence) per cent of Basic Salary
420 Nil
445 40
LYR) 70

The qualtative element of directors’ bonus arrangements focuses on delivery of specific elements of strategy, emvironmental 1ssues,
orgarisational and management goals and the development of a bugh calibre management team
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

As a consequence of the EPS performance of the group for the year ended 31 December 2007 (46 5 pence), and the performance of
each director against the qualitative targets agreed at the beginning of the year, bonus payments were made 1o each executive drector in
February 2008 as follows

Bonws for Year Ended 31 Dec

2007 2006
g £
D R Martin 425,000 246,800
S P Lonsdale 265,700 160 950
S J Clayton 243,900 136,500
934,600 544,250

The non-executive directors do not participate in the periormance related bonus scheme and no change 1o this policy 1s envisaged

(¢} Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP")

The LTIP 1s a share-based plan and comprtses a conditional award of shares of a value equivalent to 200 per cent of the executve
director’'s basic salary as at the date of an award, awards are normally made each March following the announcement of the group's
preliminary results for the preceding financial year

The vesting of the shares conditionally awarded in 2005 had as the performance measurement period the three years ended 31
Decernber 2007 The Total Shareholder Return target was met, however the EPS performance target required in order to tnigger vesting
was 52 6 pence The actual EPS performance was 46 5 pence and, as a consequence, none of the shares conditionally awarded in 2005
will vest and the awards have therefore lapsed

Since 2006, awards have comprised a blend of two elements with each element providing the opportunity for each executive director (o
earn up to one half of the conditional share award Each element operates as follows

0

(0]

Total Shareholder Return element (TSR')

This element provides the opportunity to earn up to one half of the initial conditiona! award and 1s based on the group's TSR
performance when ranked aganst the TSR performance of these companies comprising a ‘peer comparator group' For this purpose
the peer comparator group consists of companies (excluding the company and invesiment companies) whose shares compnse the
FTSE 250 at the beginning of each three-year measurement period

Pertormance 1s measured over three consecutive financial years (1 January — 31 December) the first vear of the measurement penod
being the year in which the conditional share award 15 made In order for shares 10 vest under this element, the TSR performance of
the group must achieve as a minimum, the median TSR performance of the peer comparator group, achevement of the median
position will generate the vesting of 25 per cent of this element of the award, and this will increase on & inear basis to 100 per cent (of
this element) on the achievernent of upper quartile perdormance

The TSR performance 1s independently calculated and venfied by Alithos Limited
The EPS element

Thus elerment also provides the opportunity io earn up to one half of the initial conditional award, vesting of the shares 1s on a linear
scate with 10 per cent vesting if EPS increases to a level which 1s {our per cent per annum in excess of the increase i the Retail Prices
Index over the three-year measurement perod, vesting will ncrease on a linear scale to a maxmum of 100 per cent (of this element)
on EPS performance achieving or exceeding 13 per cent per annum in excess of the growth n the Retall Prices Index

The company cperates share retention guidelines which require each executive director 16 retan 50 per cent of any vested shares until
such time as a holding equvalent in value to basic annual salary has been achieved

Awards made pnor to 2006 muited the market value of any conditional share award o 100 per ceni of the director’s basic salary as at
the date of the award Vesting was dependent on both the TSR performance when compared with that of the peer comparator group

and also the group's EPS performance when compared with the movement in the Retail Pace Index krespective of TSR performance,
an award was not capable of vesting if the EPS performance target was not met

The non-executive directors do not participate in the LTIR and no change to this policy 1s envisaged
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As at 31 December 2007, the interests of the executve directors In conditional share awards made under the LTIP were as iollows

Movement in Conditionally Awarded Shares

Balance
Noi at
Awards Subsisting at Vested 31 Dec
1 January 2007 Awarded Durning Year Vested During Year In Year 2007
Share Share

Price at Price at Value of

Date of Date of Shares at

No of Date Calculation No of Calculation No of Date of Date of

shares Awarded of Award {p) shares Date of Award (p) shares Vesting Vesting (£)
D R Martin 61,682 B/3/04 3745 35874  7/3/07 261,880 25,808 -
54,744 14/3/05 5480 54,744
159,785 17/5/06 5440 159,785
124,832 16/3/07 7450 124,832
Total 276,211 124 832 35,874 25,808 339,361
S J Clayton 61,682 8/3/04 3745 35874  7/3/07 261 880 25,808 -
45,620 14/3/05 5480 45,620
92,940 17/5/06 544 Q 92,940
72,752 16/3/07 7450 72,752
Total 200,242 72,752 35,874 25,808 211,312
SP Lonsdale 60,280 B8/3/04 3745 35088  7/3/07 255,923 25,222 -
45 620 14/3/05 5480 45,620
103 663 17/5/06 5440 103,663
81,074 16/3/07 7450 81,074
Total 209,563 81,074 35,058 25,222 230,357

{d) Share option schemes

Since the introduction of the LTI in 2000, none of the execulive directors has participated in the company's share option schemes and it
18 not anbicipated that there will be any change to this policy None of the exacutive direciors has any residual interest in the share option
schermes In respect of awards prior to 2000 The non-executive directors do not participate (and have not participated) in any of the
company's share aption schemes
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{e) Directors’ Remuneration details for the year ended 31 December 2007 (audited information)

Emoluments
Performance Benefils

Refated 1n Kind/ Prior
Fees Salary Bonus Allowance Total Year
£ £ £ £ £ £
Sir Richard Broadbent 120,000 - - - 120,000 120,000
D R Martin - 465,000 425,000 27,197 917,197 679,113
S J Clayton - 271,000 243,800 25220 540,120 421,866
S P Lonsdale - 302,000 265,700 21,227 588,927 471,540
S G Batey 40,000 - - - 40,000 40,000
N P Buckles 35,500 - - - 35,500 35,500
AY M Palmer 35,500 - - - 35,500 35,500
S G Wilharns 35,500 - - - 35,500 35,500
R J Davies (retred Apnl 2006) - - - - - 275,098
Total 266,500 1,038,000 934,600 73,644 2,312,744 2,114,117

Notes

1 Benefits in kind for each director comprise a company car or car allowance, {uel, medical insurance and telephone costs
2 Apension of £5,000 (2006 £5,000) was paid to a former director

() Non-executive directors” fees

Excluding the chairman, each of the non-executive directors 1s paid a basic annuat fee of £32,500 together with an additional fee to reflect
the responsibilibes asscciated with channg a Board committee or fulfiling the role of senior Independent director Fees for 2007 were paid

as follows
Basic Additional Addittonal
Annual Fee  Annual Fee Total Rote
g £ £
Sir Richard Broadbent 120,000 - 120,000 chairrman of Nominaton Committee
S G Batey 32,500 7,500 40,000 charman of Audit Commiitee
N P Buckles 32,500 3.000 35,500 chairman of Safety Committee until 5 September 2007
charrman of Remuneration Committee from
5 September 2007
AV M Palmer 32,500 3,000 35,500 chairman of Remuneration Commutiee until
5 Septermber 2007
charrman of Safety Commiitee from 5 Septernber 2007
S G Wilhams 32,500 3,000 35,500 senior independent director

250,000 16,500 266,500
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The fees payable i¢ the non-executive directors were last reviewed in March 2005 A review conducted at the end of 2007 indicated that
the fee levels in comparator companes had increased markedly and it was decided therefore to implement increases in January 2008, in
the fees paid to the non-executive directors, as follows

Basic Additional
Annual Fee Annual Fee Total
£ £ £
Sw Richard Broadbent 180,000 - 150,000
S G Batey 40,000 10,000 50,000
N P Buckles 40,000 5,000 45,000
AV M Palmer 40,000 5,000 45000
S G Wilkams 40,000 5,000 45000
310,000 25,000 335,000

The non-executive directors take no pant in the process for establishing therr mdnadual fee level

Under the terms of the Articles of Association the fees payable to the non-executive directors are Iimtied to £400,000 per annum n the
aggregate, this level was established following approval by shareholders at the Annua! General Meeting held on 23 April 2004, and the
Articles permit the directors to increase this cap annually in ine with the increase in the index of UK wage inflation As at 31 Decernber
2007 n accordance with the indexation provisions, the cap on the aggregate level of non-executive directors’ fees was £456 800

Each non-executive director has been appointed for a fixed-term not exceeding three years and those appontments are normally
renewable, with the agreement of both parties, for terms not exceeding three years

(g) Drrectors’ share interests

The interests of the directers (including therr relevant farmuly interests) in the share capital of the company at the beginning and the end of
the year and at the date ane month prior to the notice of the Annual General Meeting were as follows

1 January 31 December 1 March

2007 2007 2008

R J Broadbent 27,246 27,246 27,246
S J Clayton 80,000 80,000 80,000
S P Lensdale 314,801 314,831 314,831
D R Martin 452,974 488,848 488,848
S G Batey 7,268 7,268 7,268
N P Buckles 5,000 5,000 5,000
AV M Palimer Nil Nl Mil
S G willams 1,060 1,060 1,060




Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

(h} Pensions {audited information)

D R Martin S J Clayton S P Lonsdale

Scheme™ 2 3 1
Normal retrement age 65 65 65
Director's contnbution Nil Nil Nil
Increase n acerued pension dunng the year
(allowing for indexanon) (£ pa) 101,758 9,444 18,741
Gross ncrease in accrued pension (£ pa) 109,911 12,616 25,692
Accrued pension at 31/12/2007 (€ pa) 300,554 100,697 218,775
Accrued pension at 31/12/2006 (£ pa) 190,643 88,081 193,083
Value of net increase 1n accrual over penod (£) 1,435,226 89,137 161,839
Transfer value of accrued penston at 31/12/2006 (£) 2,572,530 847,755 1,608,394
Transfer value of accrued pension at 31/12/2007 (£) 4,281,623 1,056,898 1,992,137
Total change in value during period (£) 1,708,093 209,143 383,743
*1 Arriva Pension Scheme

2 Arriva Passenger Services Pension Plan

3 Arriva London Nerth & Arriva London Scuth Pension Scheme

Since 1 January 2000 Messrs Martin, Clayton and Lonsdale have been accruing benefits in therr respective schemes at 1/30th of basic
annual salary, for service after 31 December 1999 bonus ceased to be taken into account when computing pension benefits

No future executive director external appoeintees 10 the Board will be eligible for a final salary based pansion arrangement, but instead will
receive a cash contribution equal 1o 25 per cent of basic salary

(1) Service contracts

Each of the three executive directors has a service contract dated 19 Apnl 2006, the contracts are subject to twelve months' notice frem
the company and six months’ notice from the director Each contract contains covenanis restricting the abilty of the director, within a
penod of si-months from termunation, from competing with the company The contracts make specific prowision with regard to termination
payments which are quantified as the sum of

() The drector s basic pay al the date of terrmination,

(n) The amount of bonus estimated to be payable In respect of the year in which notice I1s served, but in any event capped at maxamum of
40 per cent of bastc pay, and

(my The value of the benehts n kind

Additionally, in the case of termination by the company, the company wilt seek to procure that the director 1s credited with an additional
12 months' service In his respective pension scheme

Should the director terminate the contract within six months of a change of control of the company he will receive a termination payment
equat to 50 per cent of the termunation payment described above

()} Extemal Board apponntments

The Board will permil executive directors to accept one apponiment outside the company Before accepting such appointments the
director(s) involved must receive the prior approval of the Board In considenng such cases the Board will always satisty itsell, as far as s
possible, that such appointments wili not detract from the executive directors’ expected coninbubtion to the company, nor that such
apponiment will create any conflict of interesi, any fees earned by an executive director in such a capacity will be assigned to the company
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{k) TSR graph

In accordance with the provisions of schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985, detalled below 1s a graph charting the performance of the
company's Total Shareholder Retum (share value growth plus re-invested dvidends over the past five years) compared with the most
relevani comparator indices as follows

{a) The FTSE 250 and

(b} The FTSE 350 Travel and Leisure Index

Total return indices - Armiva, FTSE 250 and FTSE 350 Travel and Leisure Index
400
- /s
200
100 T T 1 T L]
31/12/2002 31/12/2003 311122004 31/12/2005 31/12/2006 31/12/2007
il Arnvas rgtrm ingex wiie FTSE 250 raturn Indox sy FTSE 350 Travel & Leisure returm index

(I Rermuneration report approval

An ordinary resolution to consider and if thought fit approve this Remuneration Report, will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to
be held on 23 Apnl 2008

Fer and on behalf of the Board

N P Buckles

Charman, Remuneration Commuttes

5 March 2008
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Corporate Governance

Compliance statement

The essential pninciples of corporate govermnance applied by the company are detaled in Section 1 of The Combined Code on Corporate
Governance published in June 2006 ('The Code’) and throughout the year under review the company in all matenal respects comphied
with those provisions The purpose of this report s to describe how the principles of The Code have been apphied by the company
throughout the year under review

The Board and its structure

A General
The Board comprises a non-executive chairman, three executive directors and four independent non-executive directors, this composition
was maintained throughout 1he whole of the period under review Steve Williams 1s the serior independent director and in ihis regard
his responsibilshes inciude providing shareholders with an additional channel of communication with the comparny should the normai
channels be esther mappropriate or have faled to provide resolution Addisenally, n his capacity as senior independént director, Steve
Withiams may attend and participate at the meeting of any Board committee of which he is not a member

In fulfilling its responsibiliies for deterrmining the group’s strategic pnenties and policies, prowiding averall direction and managing the
balance between short, medium and long-term objectives, the Board reserves for iself decisions over certain critical areas including
the approval of financial statements, long-term objectives and strategy, capital structure, organisational structure, Board and Board
committee membership and the maintenance and development of good corporate governance practice

The Board will normally meet between erght and ten times annually, with one of the mestings always reserved for the review and
testing of the group's strategy During 2007, the Board met on nine occasions

The Board agenda 1s clearly structured, and, i addition to business matters that require attention, the Board receves operational and
progress reports from the chief executive, financial reports from the group managing director - finance, and a report from the group
managing director - corporate affairs, including matters relating to corporate social responsibility, the environmesnt, management and
employees and issues atfecting the public transport industry in the UK and mainland Europe The Beard also receives reports from the
chairmen of its four principal committees and updates on regulatory, corporate governance and other compliance matters

The roles of the charman and the chief executive are clearly defined and separated, and are set out n wnting in the company’s
manual of corporate governance The chairman 1s responsible tor the effective operation of the Board, corporate governance, regulatory
compliance, Board succession and director performance evaluation and for ensunng constructive relations with shareholders

The role of the chief exacutive 1s 1o devise and Implement appropriate business sirategres and to run the business and Implement
decisions agreed by the Board, having due regard to the long-term interests of the shareholders, employees and other stakeholders

Cne third of the directors are required to submit themselves for re-election at each Annual General Meeting and all directars will have
so submitted themselves every three years Directors newly-appointed to the Board will be subject to election by the shareholders at
the first avallable opportunity following therr appointment

Al drectors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary who administers the Beard and Board committee ;
meetings, provides updates to the Board on regulatory and compliance developments and ensures that relevant procedures and !
regulations are adhered to There is an established procedure for any of the directors 1o obtain independent professional advice at the

company's expense

B Induction
An induction programme applies to all new Board appotntees and incorporates a full briefing on the group's businesses (ncluding sile
visits angd meetings with senior managers), a review of the Board's approach to corporate governance and other general corporate
155Ues

C Evaluation
Each year the Board undertakes an evaluation of ts own periormance The performance evatuation for 2007, conducted in early 2008,
was led by Steve Willams as the senior independent director and included a specific element concerning an assessment of the
performance of the chairman The evaluation concluded that the Board was operating effectively A small number of areas were
identified where further improvements could be made including increasing the focus on the regulatory environment of the industry and
further deepening directors’ knowledge of indivicdual business units These points are being addressed
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D Board Committees
As an integral part of discharging its corporate governance responsibilities effectively, the Board has established four pnncipal
committees Aucht, Nomiunation, Remuneration and Safety Each of the commutiees operates under clearly defined terms of reference
which can be viewed on the company’s website www arriva co uk, within the corporate responsibility section

D1 Audst Commiitee
The Audit Committee comprises exclusively independent non-executive directors and I1s charred by Simon Batey, a chartered
accountant and former finance director of United Utiities plc and more latterly, until his retirement from that post, chref financial
officer of Thames Water Utilties Umited The other members of the committee are Steve Witkams and Veronica Palmer The Audit
Commitiee's principal areas of focus are

(a) Financial reporting
The disciphne of financial reporting Is clearly an activity of crucial importance 1o the company, iis shareholders ang the
wider stakeho!der community It 1s the responsibility of the Audit Committee to momtor and provide assurance to the Beard
on the integrity of all of the company's financial statements As part of this process the committae 15 specifically required
10 review and challenge where necessary the continued application of the company's accounting policies (and any
changes thereto), the methods used to account for significant or unusual transactions and the clanty of the financial
statements and reports

{b) Internal control and nsk management systems
The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility of reviewing and prowviding assurance as to the
company's systems of internal control and nsk management, including nsk transfer and risk retent:on pelicies and practices

In this regard the Audit Committee 1s assisied by the Group Internal Audit function, the head of which reports directly to the
charrman of the Audit Committee

(¢) Internal audit
A key element in the company’s internal control and risk management mechanism 1s the Group Internal Audit function
A key responsibilty of the committee s to provide assurance to the Board that appropriate action 1s being taken by the
businesses 1o address relevant internat audit findings that have been communicated to the committee via the Group
Internal Audit function

Additionally, the committee 1s responsible for monnering the effectiveness of the Group Interna! Audit function This
includes an assessment of the ongoing adequacy of mternal audit resources and the function’s continuing freedom from
any management or other material restrictions which may impact on its abthity to operate with compiete independence
and objectmvity

(d) External audit
The external audit process 18 fundamental to any company's audit programme and the role of the exiernal auditor 15 to
provide assurance to the members of the company as a whole that the financial statements produced by the company are
in all matersal respects true and fair Whist the external auditor 1s ultmately appointed by the shareholders in general
meeting It (s Inevitable that the regular contact with the company 1s via the executive directors, senmior managers and other
employees

It 18 therefore aganst this background that the Audit Committee 15 charged by the Board with the responsibility ot ensuning
that the external auditor remains completely independent of the company (and relevant officers of the company) m all
materal respects and that the external audit firm 1s adequately resourced (both from a technical and ternional capacity) to
enable it to deliver a completely obyective audit to the shareholders It 1s the responsibility of the Audit Committee to
formally recommend 1o the Board each year the continuation, or removal and replacement, of the external auditor This
process 1s supported by a full annuai review of the expertise, resources, effectiveness and independence of the external
audit firm

Additionally, the Audit Committee, as part of its ongeing process for ensuring continued audit independence, reviews and
approves the level and nature of non-audit work performed
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D2 Nomination Commitiee
The Nomination Comrmittee membership compnses a majonity of ndependent non-executive directors and 1s chaired by Sir Richard
Broadbent The other members of the committee are Simon Batey, Nick Buckles, Veronica Palmer and Steve Willams

The principal responstbility of the commiitee 1s to keep under regular review the struciure, size and compostion of the Board and
to determine whether the level of resourcing remams appropnate This process will also include a regular review of the succession
plans at both Board and senior management levels

All Board appoiniments and the appoiniment of the senior independent director and the chairmen of the Board commitlees are the
responstbility of the commuttee which 1s required, after appropnate review, research and interview, to make recommendations 1o
the Board for approval

D3 Remuneration Commuttee
The committee comprises exclusively non-execuive directors and 1s charred (effective from 5 September 2007) by Nick Buckles
The other members of the committee are Sir Richard Broadbent (from September 2007) and Simon Batey Veronica Palmer
ceased her membership of the committee on 5 Septermnber following her appaintment as chairman of the Board's Safety Committee

A full review of the work of the committee appears In the Directors’ Rermuneration Report on pages 49 to 556

04 Safety Commuittee
Given the nature of the group’s businesses, the Board recognises the fundamental mportance of safety and related 1ssues In
order that sufficient and appropriate attention to safety and related disciplines can be given adeqguate atiention by the Board, the
Safety Committee was established a number of years ago 1o address these matters

The key responsibilibes of the commuttee are to monitor and provide assurance to the Board on the company's safety policy and
the arrangements for its implementation and reporting The committee recerves reports from the group safety and environmenit
manager and reviews the safety related, key perlormance indicators

Since 5 Seplember 2007, the commitiee has been chared by Veroruca Palmer, the previous charman, Nick Buckles, having
assumed the charmanship of the Remuneration Committee from the same date and ceasing to be a member of the Salety
Commuttee irom the same date The other members of the committee are Steve Willams and Steve Clayton, Sic Richard
Broadbent having ceased his membership of the commitiee on 5 September The group salety and environment manager
supports the commuttee in its work

The company's safety policy statement can be viewed on the website at www armva co uk

E Board and Board Commiitee attendance informaton

BOARD AUDIT NOMINATION SAFETY REMUNERATION
Number of Meetings/Attendance 9 3 3 2 3
Sir Richard Broadbent* 9 - 3 1 1
D R Martin 9 - - - -
S J Clayton 9 - - 2 -
S P Lonsdale 2] - - - -
S G Batey 9 3 3 - 3
N P Buckles* 9 - 3 1 3
AV M Palmer* 9 3 3 1 2
S G Wilhams 9 3 3 2 -

* Sir Richard Broadbent was appointed to the Remuneration Committee dunng the course of the year and at the same time stood down
from his membership of the Safety Commitiee Veronica Palmer and Nick Buckles exchanged therr respective roles as chairman of the
Remuneration and Safety Committees during the course of the year, Nick Buckles also relinquished his membership of the Satety
Committee and Veromica Palmer that of the Remuneration Committee Each of those three directors has atiended all committee meetings
that they were eligible to attend as members
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Relations with shareholders

The company has an established programme of communication with shareholders and the corporate communications department
organises a regular series of presentations to analysts and investors It remains the Board's intention that these arrangements should
continue as they represent an iImportant feature of the process of facilitating helpful and consiructive dialogue between the company
and Its major Investors, subject of course to continuing to meet all regulatory and statutory requirernents

A procedure exists for the Board as a whole to recewe direct feedback from the company’s brokers of the Investing community’s
perception of the Board's perfonmance and strategy

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting 1s an opportunity for the Board to commuricate with shareholders, particularly private shareholders

A presentation on the progress and performance of the business 1s made by the chief executive following the format business of the
meeting, and the charmen of the Audit, Nomination, Remuneration and Safety Committees are available to answer questions relating
to therr particular areas of responsibility

Following each resolution, the meeting 1§ infarmed of the number of proxy votes submitted In respect of each resolution, this
nformation 1s also published on the company's website following the meeting

Group policies

The Board has approved and circulated across all the group’s businesses a set of policies which are designed to strengthen and
support the group’s corporate governance and internal controls and to address key nisks identified through the nisk assessment ang
contro! process As part of the internal control process, businesses are required to certify therr continuad comphiance with these
polcies The policies are kept under review 10 ensure compliance with best practice and any changes to the regulatory and statutory
regimes All companies within the group are required to follow group pclicies, although it 1s recognised that in the case of newly
acquired businesses there may be a period of time before full implementation can be achieved Businesses are required to report to
the chief executive ¢n an annual Basis on any departures from, or non-compliance with, group policies

Whistlieblowing

The group operates a whistieblowing policy and procedure whereby employees can, in confidence, report on matters where they feel
a malpractice 18 iaking place, or if health and safety standards are being compromised Areas that are addressed by this procedure
cover fmancial malpractce, cnimenal actvities, dangers 10 health and safety, improper or unethical behaviour and nisks to the environment

The procedures allow for employees 1o raise their concerns with line management or, If this I1s inappropnate, to raise them on a
confidential basis A confidential telephone maibox and confidential e-mail facility are provided to protect the identity of employees in
these circumstances The complaint will be investigated in a confidential manner and, after a decision 1s made as to what further steps
should be taken, feedback 1s given to the person making the complaint An official wniten record 1s kept of each siage of the procedure

The whistiablowing policy and its operation Is subject to perodic review by the Audit Committee, the iast review was In February 2008

Internal control
Companies are required to report to shareholders that they have conducted an annual review of the eflectiveness of the system of
internal control The review extends beyond financial controls to encompass operational and compl:ance control and nsk management

The drrectors are responsible for the group’s system of intemal control Whilst no system can provide absolute guarantees and
protection against materal loss, the systems are designed to give the directors reasonable assurance that problems can be identified
promptly and remedial action taken as appropriate

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness on an engoing basis of the system of internat control for the accounting penod under review
The key features of the internal control system are

{a} Organisation structure
The structure of the organisation 1s so designed to minimise, as far as possible, the complexiy of the reporting arangements
commensurate with the commercial demands made on the group The structure focuses on the core businesses of the group and
stnngent reporting procedures are applied to ensure that performance 1s closely monitored so that effective and prompt action can
be taken if the need anses Certain of the group’s functions including company secretanal, legal taxation, internal audit, treasury
and insurance are undertaken centrally

{b) Financial reporting
The group operates a comprehensive financial control system with each operating division's performance being closely monitored
against budget, forecast and pnor year performance Monthly management accounts are prepared for consideration by the Board
as a whole, and are 1ssued In a timely manner 10 ensure proper consideration can be given to the information
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Corporate Governance conlinued

{c) Group lniemai Audit

(d

E—

The internat control systerns are comprehensively supported by the Group Internal Audit department Group Internal Audit 1
responsible for advising all levels of management, and the Board of directors through the Audit Committee, on the quality of the
financial and operational systems of control for all parts of the group This review and appraisal function does not relieve line
management of ks responsibility for effective control

Group Internal Audit functions by conducting Independent appraisals leading 1o reports detaiing findings and agreed aclions
Group Internal Audit undertakes annual fnancial reviews of the balance sheets of all of the group’s matenal irading subsidianes
and engages in a cycle of operational and nsk reviews both on scheduled and random bases The head of Group Internal Audit
reports direclly to the charman of the Audit Commitiee

Group Internal Audit 1s staffed by appropnately qualified and expenenced auditors

Risk assessment and nsk control
An ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nisks facing the group has been in place throughout
the year under review and continues to remain in place

An essential element of good internal control 1s the continual process of nsk assessment and the implementation of appropriate
controls designed to eliminate or mitigate the effects of the crystallisation of identified major nisks

The approach adopted by the Board invalves a process which requires divisional operational staff to criically examine their
responsibilities and 1dentify thoge nsks which are of such a nature that ther crystallisation would have a maienal impact on ther
business In order for this process o succeed, it IS essential that ‘ownership’ of risk awareness, nsk identification and nsk controt
1s fully embraced by line management as an essential ingredient of its normal responsitilities

In wmplementing its sk assessment programme the Board has devolved to the Audit Committee the task of implementing and
mantaining an appropriate nsk assessment and control programme and it works closely with the head of Group Internal Audit in
engaging in a formal review of the key business nsks to the group

In the development of this programme there are a number of fundamentat 1ssues (dentified as being absolutely critical to the
success and effectiveness of the risk management and control programme In formulating its approach the commuittee has
structured the programme around the key areas of

» Clear leadership from the Board

» The need for sk management o be seen as part of everyday actmity and to be embedded in line management culture

+ Clear commurnication of the principles nvolved

» Actve support and nvolvernent of the Group Internal Audit function

» Regular review of the process and continual assessment of the changing nature of the nsks presenting themselves fo the business
= Updating of the Group Policy Manual foliowing the identification of new signiicant risks

The Board recognises that, as n any business, Armva must manage a range of nisks in the course of its activities, and that failure
adequately 1o manage ihese nsks could adversely impact the business

As part of the ongong nsk assessment and management programme the principal nsks and uncertanties facing the business
have been identfied and are reporied on separately on pages 32 to 33

K Going concern
The directors confirm that, after having made appropriate enquines, they have reasonable expectation that the group and the
company have adequate resources 10 continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, the directors continue
to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the Accounts This approach was endersed by the Audit Commitiee at its
meeting held on 26 February 2008
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Independent auditers’ repart to the members of Arriva ple

We have audited the group financial statements of Arniva plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which compnse the Group income
staternent, the Group balance sheet, the Group cash flow statement, the Group statement of recogrised income and expense and the
related notes These group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Arriva plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 and on the
information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as having been audited

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report and group financial staternents in accordance with applicable law and
Intemationat Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are sel out in the Statement of directors’ responsibilites

Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company'’s members as
a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving this opinion, accept or
assume respansibility for any other purpose or 10 any other person to whom this report 1s shown or inte whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report 1o you cur opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and far view and whether the group financal
statements have been propery prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regutation We also report
to you whether in our opmion the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the group financiad statements The
information given in the Directors' Report includes that specific information presented in the Business Review that 1s cross referred from
the Business Rewiew sechion of the Directors’ Report

In addition we repon to you If, In our opinion, we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance statement reflects the company's complhiance with the nine provisions of the Combined
Code (2008) specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not We are not
required to consider whether the board's statements on internal control cover all nisks and controis, or form an opinion on the
eftectiveness of the group's corporate governance procedures or Its nsk and control procedures

We read other information contained in the Annua! Report and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited group financia! statements
The other information comprises only ithe Charrman's Statement, the Chief Executive’s Review, the Financial Review, Principal nsks and
uncertanties, Corporate Responsibitty, the Directors' Report, the unaudited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repoit, Corporate Governance
and the other reports on pages 2 to 17 We consider the mplications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstaterents or
matenal Inconsistencies with the group financial statements Our responsibilities do not exiend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit Includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 1n the group financial statements

It also ncludes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the group financial
staternents, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s cirgumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to cbtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary In order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements are free from matenal misstatement
whether caused by fraud or other rregulanty or error In forming our opinicn we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the greup financial statements

Opinion

I our opirien

+ the group financial statements gwve a true and far view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unton, of the state of
the group's affars as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

* the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation, and

P the information gven in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the group financial statements
r

Prlct‘awuagrg%c)%p%w) Lt P

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Newcastle upon Tyne
18 March 2008
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Financial Statements

Group income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
notes £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1 2,0007 1,7280
Net operating expenses 3(a) (18727 (1,609 5)
Group operating profit 1280 1195
Share of post tax profils from associates 43 19
Net finance cosls 2 (16 5) (116)
Profit on ordinary actvities before taxation 3 1158 1098
Tax on profd on ordinary activities 5 (25 B) (252)
Profit for the year from contimuing operations 900 B46
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 6 . 201
Profit for the year 900 1047
Attributable 10
Equity holders of the parent 864 1023
Minority interests 36 24
900 1047

Dwidends per ordinary share 7 22 65p 2083p
Eamings per share 8(a)

Basic eamings per share 42 5p 518p

Diluted earrungs per share 43 4p 51 4p
Earnings per share from continuing cperations 8{a)

Basic earnings per share 43 5p 41 6p

Diluted earnings per share 43 4p 413p
Basic earnings per share before goodwill impairment,

ntangible asset amortisation and exceptional tems

from continuing operations 8(b) 46 5p 44 4p
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Group balance sheet
at 31 December 2007

2007 2006
notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 9 3282 2864
Other intangible assets 10 432 349
Property, plant and equiprment i1 1,164 4 982 5
Investments 12 636 514
Dervatve financial instruments 20 396 39
1,6390 1,359 1
Current assets
Inventones 13 411 349
Trade and other recervables 14 3603 2211
Cash and cash equivalents 15 957 876
Denvative financial instruments 20 218 94
5189 3530
Total assets 21579 1,7121
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 16 546 5 3696
Tax habilines 17 345 165
Obhgations under finance leases 18 105 248
Bank overdrafts and loans 18 1179 1315
Dervative financial instruments 20 104 136
7198 556 0
Non-current habtlities
Bank loans 18 2032 1087
Cther loans 18 1233 147 4
Retirement benefit obhgations 21 737 1738
Deferred tax labihties 22 876 453
Obhgations under finance leases 18 893 536
Cther non-current habilities 19 1143 67 3
Dernvative financial Instruments 20 127 12
7041 597 3
Total habilities 1,423 9 1,1533
Net assets 7340 558 8
Equity
Share capital 23 99 g9
Share premium account 26 242 224
Other reserves 25 1050 580
Retained earnings 26 5711 4522
Total shareholders' equity 26 7102 542 5
Minonty interest in equity » 26 238 163
‘Total equity N T f 7340 558 8

D R Martn ﬂm
Crectors
S P Lonsdale

These financial statements on pages 62 to 99 were approved by the Board on 5 March 2008
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Financial Statements continued

Group cash flow statement
for {he year ended 31 December 2007

2007 2006
notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating actvities
Cash generated from operations 27(b) 2482 160 0
Interest and finance charges paid {16 5) {12 1)
Tax paid (54) (24 9)
Net cash inflow from operating actvities 2263 1230
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisiions of businesses (35 5) (209)
Net cash assumed on acquisitions 123 19
Investment In associates (28) (41 8)
Disposal of business - 1302
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {232 6) (171 2)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 874 787
Net cash used In investing activities (171 2) (231)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssuing ordinary share capttal 13 12
Decrease in loans due within one year (39 4) (6 6)
Increase/(decrease) in loans due after one year 360 (459)
Decrease in finance lease obligations (15 2) (79)
Dwidends paid to the company's shareholders (41 9) (39 6)
Dvidends paid to minority interests {10} 09
Net cash used in inancing aclivities {60 2) (99 7)
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts 27(c} 51 02
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at the beginning of the year 27(c} 711 716
Exchange losses on cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts 27(c) (36) {07
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at the end of the year 27(c} 62 4 711
Group statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 31 December 2007
2007 2006
£m £m
Net foreign exchange adjustments ofiset in reserves, net of tax 41 {3 4)
Cash flow hedges, net of tax 470 (17 0)
Actuarial gains on defined benehit schemes, net of tax 706 89
Tax relief on share optron schemes 0% -
Net iIncome/(expense) recognised directly in equity 1222 (10 5)
Profit for the year 9040 1047
Total recogrused income and expense 2122 942
Attnbutable {0
Equity holders of the parent 2067 923
Minority Interests 55 19
2122 94 2
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Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

As a UK listed company, Amva plc 1s required 1o prepare its group accounts in accordance with EU endorsed International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commiitee (IFRIC) interpretations and the Comparkes Act 1985
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS These financial statemenis have been prepared In accordance with EU endorsed IFRS,
IFRIC interpretations and the Companies Act 1985 apphicable to comparnies reporing under IFRS for penods ending 31 Decernber 2007

The financial statemants are prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting, other than for cenain tems of property, plant and equiprnent
that have been stated at deemed cost under the transitional rules of IFRS, share-based payment charges and dervative financial instruments
which are measured at far value

The principal accounting policies of the group are set out below

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Arriva ple and s subsidianes made up to 31 December each
year Subsidianes are entiies over which the group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of the voing rights Subsidiares are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the group and de-conselidated from the date control ceases The group's Interests in jointly controlied enities are accounted tor by
proportional consolidation, combining its share of the joint ventures' profits, assets, habiliies and cash flows on a lne-by-line basis with
those of the group Associales are those entities over which the group can exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control
Assocrales are accounted for using the equity method

Ali business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method On acquisition, the assets, habilities and contingent
habiives are measured at therr far values at the date of acquisiion The excess of the cost of acquisiion over the farr value of the group's
share of net assets acquired 1s recorded as an intangible asset or goodwill If the cost of acquisition 1s less than the fair value of the
group's share of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s recognised direclly i the income staternent

Intra-group transactions, balances, ncome and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the far value of consideration recewed of recervable In respect of the provision of public transport services and
related actmities in the UK and mailand Europe Generally, revenue 1s recognised by reference 1o the stage of completion method,
principally with respect to the percentage of services rendered to fare-paying customers, or the percentage of services provided under
confractual amangements For contractual arrangements where significant tirming differences may anse between the tirming of cash
revenues and cash costs, revenue is recognised with respect 1o the proportion of the total costs incurred lo date

Revenue includes amounts attributed to UK train operating companies based principally on agreed models of route usage in respect of
passenger receipts Inaddiion franchise agreement receipts from the Welsh Assembly Government and the Department for Transpont are
treated as revenue

Proceeds from the disposal of non-current assets are excluded from revenue

Use of estmates and accounting assumptions

The preparation of inancial statements requires management io make estimates and assumptions that affect the group’s reported results
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge at the time, actual results could difer from those estimates The
key areas of jJudgment or estimation which could impaci the resulis in the next financial year were they 1o change include the economic
uselul Iives of property, plant and equipment (disclosed below), the use of actuanal assumptions for measurement of retirement benefit
obligations {see note 21), the measurement of INsurance prowisions, and the use of forecasts in respect of the annual testing for
imparment of goodwilt

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those itermns which, because of their nature and matenality, ment separate preseniation to allow a better
understanding of the group's financial performance

Segment reporting

The group's primary nsks and rates of return are determined by both the business and geographical areas in wiuch it operates Dhsclosure
of results by business segment 1s used as the basis for pnmary segrment disclosures, in ine wath the group's internal management
reporting structure

Government grants

Government grants relating to capital expenditure are included as deferred income and are credited to the income statement over the
expected useful economic life of the assels concemed Revenue related grants are credited to the income staternent when the refated
expenditure 1s expensed

65




Accounting Policies continued

Foreign currency translation
The trading results of overseas subs:diary undertakings are translated inlo sterling using average rates of exchange Foreign currency
assets and labilihes are translated into sterling at ihe rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date

Differences on exchange ansing from the retransiation of the opening nvesiment in substdiary undertakings and the associated borrowings
or hedging instruments, where hedge accounting 1s permitted, are taken 10 the Stalement of Recognised Income and Expense Cumulatve
cumrency gains and losses In reserves are recycled 1o the iIncome staterment on disposal of operations

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings held for use in the delivery of passenger transport services and for administration purposes are stated in the balance
sheet at cost or deemed cost

Depreciation Is calculated using the straight-ine method 1o allocate the cost of each asset less its residual value over its estimated usetful

life as follows

Buildings 50 years
Fixtures, fitings plant and machmnery 3- 10 years
Moator vehicles - buses and coaches up 1o 15 years
Rai relling stock up to 35 years

Major refurbrshment work on rail rolling stock 1s capitalised and depreciated over the interval to the subsequent related major refurbishimerit
Interest costs incurred in financing the construction of certain assets are capitalised where they are considered significant in relation to the
asset being constructed and the asset necessarily takes a substantial perod of ime to be prepared for is ntended use Rail rolling stock
undergoing post construction acceptance testing 18 not depreciated untl the commencement of full operational service

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the farr value of the group’s share of the net iIdentifiabie assets, lrabiliies
and contingent liatnlites at the date of acquistion Goodwill on acguisition of subsidianes and joint ventures 15 disclosed separately in
non-current assets Goodwaill on acquisition of associates is included in investments

Goodwill 1s not amortised but 1s tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accurnulated imparment losses Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity inctude the carrying amount of goodwill refating to the entity sold

Goodwill previously eliminated against reserves has not been reinstated

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recogrused when acquired as part of business combinations where customer related contractual cash flows exist,
and therr far value can therefore be measured reliably Intangible assets purchased separately are measured at cost Intangible assets
that have a finite ife are amortised annually over ther expected usefu! lives

Impairment

At each balance sheet date the group reviews the carrying amount of iis tangible and intangible asseis to determine whether there are any
indicators of impairment i indicators of impawment exist then the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit 1s estimated
based on pre-tax discounted fulure cash flows

Where ndwvidual assets do not generate cash flows independent from other assets, the group reviews the carrying value and recoverable
amount of a cash generating unit This 1s the smallest group of assets where independent cash flows are produced

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit I1s less than its carrying amount, the difference 1s recognised In the income
statement as an impairment loss

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making allowances for slow moving or obsotete items

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised iniiafly at farr value, net of iransaction costs incurred Borrowings are subseguenily stated at amoriised cost
any difference beiween the initial carrying value and the redemption value 15 recogrised in the income staterment over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional ngit to defer settlement of the kability for at least
twelve months after the balance sheet date
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Taxation
Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to taxation authorities wsing the tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacied or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is prowided » full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assels and liabilies
and therr carrying amounis in the consolidated financial siatements However, deferred 1ax 1s not recogrised if i anses from inibal
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the fransaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax 1s determuned using the tax rates {and laws) that have been enacied or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet daie and
which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset I1s realised or the deferred tax hability 15 settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profiis will be availlable agamst which the temporary
differences can be utiised

Deferred tax habilities are recognised on taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianies and associates, except
where the uming of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s controlled by the group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future

Pensions
The group operates both defined benefit and detined contribution retirement benefit schemes The group also participates in & number of
mult-employer retirement benefit schemes and a number of state managed retrement beneit schemes

Tne liability recogrised in the balance sheet in respect of the group's defined benefit pension plans 1s the present value of the defined
benefit cblrgation al the balance sheet date less the far value of the plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised past service
costs The defined benefit obiigation 1s calculated using the projected unit credit method Formal actuanal valuations are carmied oul on a
tnennial basis, with updated calculalions bemng prepared at each balance sheet date The present value of the defined beneiit obligation 1s
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-guality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency In winch the benefits wilt be pard, and that have terms to matunty approximating io the terms of the related pension frability

The cost of providing future benefits {service cost) 1s charged to the income staterment in net operating expenses The return on scheme
assets and nterest obligation on scheme habtliies comprise a pension finance adustment which 1s included 1n net operating expenses
Actuarial gains and losses ansing from experence adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or credited to equity
and shown In the Statement of Recognised Income and Expense in the penod in which they anse

Centain overseas defined benefit schernes, where the employer's underlying assets and liabilities are not separately identifiable within the
scheme, are accounted for as defined contribution schemes under IAS19 Contributions to these schemes, and the group's defined
contribution schemes, are charged to the income statement as they anse

Share-based payments

The group Issues equity settled share-based payments to certain employees, which are measured at far value at the date of grant The
far value 15 expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting pericd, based on the group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest
The wmpact of revising ong:nal estimates, if any, 1s included in the iIncome statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity

The proceeds raceved net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nomnal value) and share premiem
when the options are exercised

Prowvisions
Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal or construciive obligation as a result of past events, 1t 1s probable that an
outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the group has substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception ai the lower of the far value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other payables Each kease
payment 15 allocated between the hability and finance charges o as to achieve a constant rate of interest costs charged to the income
statement on the outstanding balance The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the asset's useful liie and the lease term

Leases where the lessor retains a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases Payments
made under operating leases (net of any Incentves receved from the lessor} are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the penod of the lease

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash compnses cash n hand and demand deposits Cash equivalents are short-term highty hquid mvestments with a maturity of less than
90 days thai are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant nsk of changes in value
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Accounting Policies continued

Dervative finanoial instruments

The group uses dervaiive financial Instruments to reduce exposures to forergn currency exchange nsk, interest rate risk and changes in
fuel prices to acceptable levels All dervatives are iniially recogrused at farr value, and are subsequently remeasured to far vatue at each
reporting date

Dervatves designated as hedging mstruments are accounted for in ine with the nature of the hedging arangement Denvalives are
intended to be highly effecive In miigating the above risks, and hedge accounting 1s adopted where the required hedge documentation 1s
in place and the relevant test criteria are met Changes In the far value of any derivative instrumeants that do not quality for hedge
accounting are recognised immediately in the Income statement

Foreign currency exchange nsk
Dervatves are entered into In order to hedge exposwre to foreign currency exchange nsk The group also uses foreign currency debt 10
hedge foreign cumency exposures Both the dervatives and debt are designated as hedges of net investments i overseas subsidianes

Interest rate and fuel pnce nsk

Denvative nstruments are used to manage the group's exposure o changes in cash flows ansing from movements in interest rates and
fuel prices The denvatives are designated as cash flow hedges, and hedge accounting 1s used where it has been shown that the hedge
relationship 1s highly eflective

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gair or
loss existing In equity at ihat ime remans N equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction is ultmately recogrised in the income
statement When a forecast fransaction 1S no longer expecied to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity 1s
immediately transferred to the income statement

Dwidend distribution
Dividend distnibutions to the company's shareholders are recognised in the group's financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are paid

New standards and interpretations
The following standlards and interpretations have been 1ssued by the Interational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and IFRIC with an
effective date that impacts on these financial statements

International Accounting Standards and Interpretations Effective date
IFRS? Financial Instruments  Disclosures 1 January 2007
1AST Amendment - Presentalion of financial statements 1 January 2007
IFRICS Scope of IFRS2 1 May 2006
IFRIC9 Reassessmen! of embedded dervatives 1 June 2006
IFRIC10 interim financial reporting and impairment 1 November 2006

The adoption of IFRS7 has resulted in an increased level of disclosure relating 1o financial Instruments, although there has been no effect
on the reported income or net assets of the group The adoption of the other above standards has not had a matenal impact on the
group’s financial statements
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The following standards and interpretations have been issued by the IASB and IFRIC wath an effective date that does not impact on these

financial statements

International Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Effectve date

IFRS2 Share-based Payments - Amendment relating to vesting conditions and canceltations 1 January 2009
IFRS3 Business Combinations - Comprehensive revision on applying the acguisition method 1 July 2009
IFRS8 QOperating Segments 1 January 2009 i
1A81 Presentation of Financial Statements  Comprehenstve revision |
inciuding requinng a statement of comprehensive ncome 1 January 2009 |
1AS1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Amendmenis relating !
1o disclosure of puttable instruments and obligations ansing on hquidation 1 January 2009
JAS23 Borrowing Costs - Comprehensive revision to prohibit mmediate expensing 1 January 2009
I1AS27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements - Consequential amendments
ansing from amendments to IFRS3 1 July 2009
1AS28 Investments In Associales Consequential amendrents ansing from amendments to (FRS3 1 July 2009
1AS31 Interests in Jont Venjures - Consequential amendments ansing from amendments to IFRS3 1 July 2009
1AS32 Financial Instruments Presentation - Amendments relating to puttable instruments
and obligations ansing on lguidation 1 January 2000
IFRIC11 IFRS2 Group and Treasury Share Transactions 1 March 2007
IFRIC12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008
IFRIC13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 Juty 2008 i
IFRIC14 1AS19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimurm Funding Requirements and their

Interaction

1 January 2008

The directors are currently rewiewing the requirements of the above standards and interpretations to determine whether there will be a
matenal impact on the group's financial statements
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Segmental reporting

Primary reporting format - business segments

year ended 31 December 2007

Masntand Total

UK Bus Europe UK Trains Central operations

£m £m £m £m £m

Revenue 8147 863 6 3224 - 20007
EBITDA 144 2 1110 107 {16 7} 2492
Deprecration (56 3) {53 9) 32 {04) {1138)
Operating profit* B79 571 75 {17 1) 1354
Goodwll impairment and intangible asset amortisation - (64) (10) - (74
Group operating profit 879 507 65 (17 1) 1280
Share of post tax profits from associates - 43 - 43
Net finance costs (16 5)
Profit on ordinary activities betore taxation 1158
Tax on profit on ordinary actvities (25 8}
Profit for the year 900
Profit attnbutable to menonty interests {3 6)
Net profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 864

* Before goodwill imparment and intangible asset amortisation

{a) Included above 1s £113 0 mulhion of revenue and £2 7 millien of operating profit, before goodwill impaiment and intangible asset
amortisation, relating to the acquisiions made by the mainland Europe division during the year There 1s £1 3 million of revenue and
£0 t millkon operating loss relating to acquisitions made by the UK Bus division

() Revenue for UK Trains includes franchise agreement receipts amounting to £182 5 milion

70 | A Journey tn Time Amva plc Annual Report & Accounts 2007




. ¥ (7=

Primary reporting format - business segments
year ended 31 December 2006

Mainfand Total

UK Bus Europe UK Trans Central operations

£m £m fm £m £m

Revenus 762 8 7123 2539 - 1,729 0
EBITDA 1304 1009 145 (129) 2328

Deprecalion (54 4) (48 9) 22 07 (106 2)
Qperating profit* 760 520 123 (13 6) 126 7

Goodwill mparment and ntangible asset amortisation - (64) (08) - (72)
Group operating profit 760 456 115 {13 6} 1195
Share of post tax profits from associales - i9 - - 19

Net finance costs (11 8)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1098
Tax on profit on ordinary actvities {25 2)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 8486
Prefit ior the year from discontinued operations 201
Profit for the year 1047
Profit attnbutable to minonty interests (24)
Net profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 1023

* Before goodwill imparrment and intangible asset amorisabion

(a) Included above 1s £12 2 mufion of revenue and £0 8 million of operating profit, before goodwill imparrment and intangible asset
amorlisation, relating to the acquisiions made by the mainland Europe dvision durnng the year Thereis £11 1 million of revenue and
£1 1 million of aperating profit relating to acquisitions made by the UK Bus division

{b) The share of post tax profit from associates of £1 9 millon above includes £0 9 millon from the Invesiment in Barraguerro SGPS SA
made in May 2006

{c) The profit for the year from discontinued operations related to Amiva Vehicle Rental, as disclosed in note 6
{d) Revenue for UK Trains inciudes franchise agreement receipts amounting 1o £142 & million

71




Notes to the Accounts continued

1 Segmental reporting (continued)
Primary reporting format - business segments

year ended 31 December 2007

Mainland
UK Bus Europe UK Trains Central Group
£m £m £m £m £m
Segment assets 642 1 1,163 8 1143 170 19372
Investment in equity accounted associates - 636 - - 63 6
Unallocated assets
- Cash and cash equivalenis 957
- Denwvative financial instruments 614
Total assets 642 1 1,227 4 1143 170 2,157 9
Segrnent labilities (222 4) (448 9) (1325) (347) (838 5)
Unallccated habilities
- Corporate borrowings {544 2)
- Denvatwe financial instruments {23 1)
- Deferred tax on denvative inancial nstruments (18 1}
Total habilites (222 4) (448 9) {1325) (347 (1,423 9)
Net assets 7340
Cther segment items
Capnal expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment existing busmnesses 454 1781 89 02 2326
- Property, ptant and equipment acquisitions 09 975 - - 98 4
year ended 31 December 2006
Masnland
UK Bus Europe UK Trains Central Group
fm £m £m £m £m

Segment assets 6580 8190 664 16 4 1,559 8
Investment In equity accounted associates - 514 - - 514
Unallocated assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 876
- Dervative financial instruments 133
Total assets 858 0 8704 664 164 1,7121
Segment habilities (283 8) {270 0) (86 5) (33 1) (673 4)
Unallocated liabilities
- Corporate borrowings {466 Q)
- Dervaltive financial instruments {14 8)
- Deferred tax on denvative financial instruments 09
Total habilities (283 8) (270 0) (86 5) (33 1) {1,153 3)
Net assets 558 8
Other segment itemns
Capital expenditure
- Property, plant and equipment existing businesses 513 1015 88 96 1712
- Property, plant and equipment acquisitions 438 19 - - 167

Capital expenditure in Central in 2006 Includes £4 2 millon refating to disconbnued operations
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Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

The group's operations are located in the UK and manland Europe The UK 1s the home country of the parent

Revenue Segment assets Capiial expenditure
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Em ugy] T T m jayy]
Contnuing operations
UK 1,137 1 1,016 7 7734 7408 54 5 655
Manland Europe 8636 7123 1,163 8 8190 178 1 115
20007 1,7290 19372 1,559 8 2326 1670
Discontinued operations in the UK - - 42
Investments in equity accounted associates 636 514 -
Unallocated assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 957 876 - -
- Denvative financial instruments 614 133 - -
2,157 9 1.7121 2326 1712
2 Net finance costs
2007 2006
£m Em
Finance costs
- Interest payable on bank and other horrowings repayable within five years 156 102
- Interest payable on bank and other borrowings repayable after five years 08 02
Finance lease charges 53 41
Hire purchase charges 15 26
Interest payable and similar charges 232 171
Finance ncome
- Interest recevable on other financing items (67) (53
Net inance costs 165 116
3 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
2007 2006
(a) Net operating expenses £m £m
Operating cosls 1,629 6 1,375 2
Admirustrative expenses 2431 2343
18727 16095
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Notes to the Accounts continued

3 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation (continued)

(b) The following items have been included in armving at operating profit from continuing 2007 2006
operations £m £m
Siaff costs 9770 869 0
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1138 106 2
Amortisation of ntangible assets 56 54
Imnpairment of goodwill 18 18
Profit on disposal of properies 32 (0 5)
Operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and equipment 1727 1286
- Property 159 156
Reparrs and mantainance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 133 148
During the year the group {(including its overseas subsidiaries) obtaned the 2007 2006
following senaces from the group's auditors and network firms as detalled below £m £m
Remuneration payable 1o the company's auditors for the auditing of the annual accounts 04 o4
The auditing of accounts of subsidiaries of the company pursuant to legislation
{countnes and terntortes outside Great 8ritain) 05 03
Services relaling to taxation 01 02
All other services 05 01
15 10

Included In the group's audit fees and expenses pad to the auditors 1s £0 1 million {2006 £01 million) i respect of the parent company

4 Employee information

2007 2006

(a) Average number of employees by business Number Number
UK Bus 18,014 17,773
UK Trains 2,373 2,157
Mainfand Europe 14,662 12,374
35,049 32,304

Central 134 131
Continuing operations 35,183 32,435
2007 2006

(b} Staff costs from continuing operations (including executive directors) £m £m
Wages and salanes 8400 7466
Social secunty costs 929 827
Pension costs 441 397
9770 8690

Key management personnel are considered to be the directors and thew remuneration 1S disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Report
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5 Taxation

2007 2006
Analysis of charge n the year for continuing operations £m £m
Current tax 260 93
Deterred tax {02) 1589
Taxation 258 252

2007 2006
Tax on Hems charged/{credited) to equity £m £m
Current tax (credit)/charge on exchange movements oifsel in reserves 27) 24
Deferred tax charge on cross currency swaps o7 -
Deferred tax chargef{credit) on cash flow hedges 183 (7 3)
Deferred tax charge on actuanal gains on defined benefit schemes 289 32
Current tax credit on share option schemes (05) -
Total tax on iterns charged/(credited) to equity 447 (17

The tax for the year 1s lower (2006 lower) than the standard rate of corporation téax the UK of 30 per cent (2006 30 per cent)
The differences are explained below

2007 2006
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities betore taxation 1158 109 8
Prafit on ordinary activities multiglied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK ot 30 per cent
(2006 30 per cent) 347 329
Eifects of
- Adjustments to tax in respect of prior years {75) 87
- Income not subject 1o tax 07 3
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 24 20
- Utiisation of previousty unrecognised 1ax losses (13) (42
- Tax losses anising where no deferred tax asset has been recognised 01 05
- Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other junsdictions 36 36
- Results from associated undertakings {13) {0 6)
- Remeasurement of deferred tax - change in UK tax rate {30) -
- Remeasurement of deferred tax - change in German lax rate 12 -
Total taxation 258 252

6 Discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operatons of £20 1 million in the prior year relates 1o the vehicle rental business £20 0 million relates to the ga:n
on disposal of the subsidiary

Net cash Inflows from discontinued cperations for the year ended 31 December 2007 were £nil {2006 £132 1 million)

7 Dividends
2007 2006
£m £m
Final dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2006 of 15 51 pence per share
(2006 fimal dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2005 of 14 77 pence per share) 308 292
Interim dmvidend paud for the year ended 31 December 2007 of 5 59 pence per share
(2006 ntenm dividend paid for the year ended 31 December 2006 of 5 32 pence per share) i1 104
Amounts recogrused as distributions to equity holders in the year 419 396

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ending 31 December 2007 of 17 06 pence per share which will
absorb an estimated £33 9 million of shareholders’ funds h will be paid on 1 May 2008 1o shareholders who are on the Register of
Members on 28 March 2008

7%




Notes to the Accounts continued

8 Earnings per share

2007 2006
Per share Eamings Shares Per share Earnings Shares

(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share p £m m p £m m
Profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders 864 1023
Weighted average number of shares 198 4 1977
Basic earnings per share 435 864 1984 518 1023 1877
Performance-based share option schemes
- Additional shares for earnings contingency 0% 15
- Number of shares that would have been

1ssued at far value (02 {0 4)
Diuted earnings per share 43 4 864 1891 514 1023 198 8
Earrings per share from continuing operations
Basic earnings per share 435 864 198 4 518 1023 1977
Gain on disposal of subsidhary - - (102} {200
Post tax resulis from discontinued operalions - - - on
Basic earnings per share from
continuing operations 435 864 198 4 416 822 1977
Dituted earnings per share 434 864 1991 514 1023 198 8
Gain on disposal of subsidiary - - (o (20 0)
Post tax results from discontinued operations - - - on
Diluted earnings per share from
continung operations 43 4 864 1981 413 B22 198 8

Earmings per share from discontinued operations was nil (2006 10 2 pence per share) Diluted earmings per share from discontinued
operations was nil {2006 10 1 pence per share)

{b) Basic eamings per share before goodwill impairment, intangible asset 2007 2006
amortisation and exceptional tems from continuing operations p p
Basic earnings per share 435 518

Earnings per share relating to
- Goodwill impairment and imtangible asset amortisaticn 30 28
- Gain on disposal of subsidiary - (103

Basic earnings per share before goodwill impairment, intangible asset amortisation
and exceptional items from continuing operations 485 444
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9 Goodwill

2007 2006
£m £m
Cost
Al 1 January 3360 3273
Addtions 241 126
Hindsight adjustment {note 28¢} 22 65
Disposals - 67
Currency translation adjustments 190 37
At 31 December 3813 3360
Impairment
At 1 January 496 498
Imparment n the year 18 18
Disposals - (16
Currency translation adjustments 17 (049
At 31 December 531 438
Net book amount at 31 December 3282 286 4

Detalls of acquistions in the year are shown in note 28 Dunng the year, goodwill was reviewed for impairment in accordance with 1AS36
For the purposes of this impairment review goodwili has been tested on the basis of discounted future cash flows ansing in each relevant
cash generating unit Goodwail 1s allocated across multiple cash generating units and the amount allocated to each unit s not significant in
companson with the total carmying amount of goodwill

10 Other intangible assets

2007 2006
£m £m
Cost
At 1 January 478 48 5
Additions 120 -
Currency translation adjustments 32 (07}
At 31 December 630 478
Amortisatton
At 1 January 128 77
Amortisation jor the year 56 54
Currengy translation adjustments 13 02
At 31 Dacember 198 129
Net book amount at 31 December 432 349

The addition of £12 0 million 1n the year relates 1o the award of the CrossCouniry rall franchise

All amortisaiion charges i the year have been charged through net operating expenses Intangible assels relate to identfiable assets
purchased as part of the group’s business combinations and the nght to operate the Armva Trains Wales and CrossCountry rail
franchises Intangible asseis are amortised on a straight-ine basis over ther expecled useful economic lves




Notes to the Accounts continued

11 Property, plant and equipment

Plant,
company
vehicles, Rallway
Land & fixtures & Buses & rolling

bulldings fitungs coaches stock Total
2007 €m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2007 267 4 1347 1.0996 1081 1,609 8
Acquisitions 498 853 999 135 2185
Additions 145 33 939 929 2326
Disposals 59 42 (59 3) (70 5) {1389
Currency translation adjustments 152 10 471 125 858
At 31 December 2007 3410 2281 1,2812 156 5 2,006 8
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007 398 766 4882 227 6273
Acquisitions 165 415 565 56 1201
Charge for the year 56 161 862 59 1138
Disposals 22) {2 5) {47 B) - (52 5)
Currency translation adjustments 43 70 195 29 337
At 31 December 2007 640 1387 6026 371 842 4
Net book amounts
At 31 December 2007 2770 894 6786 1184 1,164 4

The net book amount of assels held under hire purchase and finance lease contracts included i plant, company vehicles, buses and
coaches i £277 0 million {2006 £260 7 millien) The depreciation provided in the year in respect of these assets was £28 3 rmilion

{2006 £33 5 million) The gross cost of assets held for the purpose of letting under operating leases amounts to £15 3 million (2006 £158
million) The accumulated deprecialion on these assets was £7 3 milion (2006 £8 9 milhon)

Plant,
company
vehicles, Railway
Land & fixtures & Buses & rolling

burldings fitngs coaches stock Total
2006 £m fm £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2006 2654 120 4 1,1989 1245 1,709 2
Acquisitions 39 12 173 - 224
Addiions 12 304 958 338 712
Disposals (100} (17 1) (205 4) {48 2) {280 7)
Currency translation adjustments (31) 02 (70) (20 (123)
At 31 December 2006 267 4 134 7 1,099 6 108 1 16098
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 360 77 490 4 183 6164
Acquisitions 03 07 47 - 57
Charge for the year 47 145 839 52 108 3
Disposals (01) (101) {87 8) (0 4) (98 4)
Currency translation adjustmenis {11 02 (30 {0 4) 47)
At 31 December 2006 398 766 4882 227 6273
Net book amounts
At 31 December 2006 2276 58 1 6114 854 9825
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2007 2006
fm £m
Net book amount of land and bulldings compnses
- Freehold 2750 2257
- Long-leasehoid 04 05
- Short-leasehold 16 14
27740 2276
12 Investments accounted for using the equity method
2007 2006
Investments (all unquoted) £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 514 79
Additions 37 M7
Share of recognised profit for the year* 43 19
Currency transtation adjustments 42 on
At 31 December 636 514
* Share of recognised profit for the year 15 stated after tax
2007 2006
The group's share of the net assets of 1is associates 1s analysed below £m £m
Non-current assets 1129 833
Current assets 394 275
MNon-current labilities {515) (27 8)
Current labihties (38 4) (42 8)
Share of net assets 624 502
2007 2006
The group's share of its associates revenue and prolit 1s analysed below £m £m
Revenue 639 400
Profit 43 19
13 Inventories
2007 2006
£m £m
Raw matenals, consumables and work in progress 330 236
Finished goods and goods for resale 81 13
411 349

The group consumed £269 1 miflion (2006 £222 1 million) of inventornies dunng the year There was no matenal wnie down of inventones

dunng the current or prior year
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Notes to the Accounts continued

14 Trade and other recewvables

2007 2006
£m £m

Current assets
Trade recevables 144 3 903
Less Prowsion for impairment of recevables {4 5) (36)
Trade recevables — net 1398 867
Prepaymenis and accrued income 692 509
Other recevables 1513 835
3603 2211

Credut nisk ansing from customers 15 managed at a local level and 15 subject to periodic reviews by ceniral management and the group’s
nternal audit function Credit irits are in place for customers many of which are local authonties or local ransport authonties Due 1o the
nalure of certan contractual arrangements, particularty where the agreement and settiement of allocations of passenger revenues
between multiple service providers can take more than one year to complete, certain customer debts can often exceed one year before
setilement This is common, and the incidence of impairment of such debt 1s both rare and immatenial

Due to the immatenal level of the provision for impatment of recervables, as detarted above, no further disclosure 18 made The group
considers there to be no matenal ciference between the fair value of trade and other recenvables and therr carmying amount in the balance sheet

The camying amounts of the group’s trade and other recevables 2007 2006
are denorminated in the following currencies £m £m
Sterling 1357 964
Euro 1470 850
Other Eurgpean currencres 7786 397

3603 2211

15 Cash, cash equivalents and overdraits

2007 2006
Cash, cash equivalenis and overdrafts i the cash flow slaternent comprise £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 957 876
Bank overdrafts (noie 18) (33 3) {16 5)
62 4 711

16 Trade and other payables
2007 2006
£m £m

Current habilities

Trade payables 1602 745
Payments receved on account 04 09
Other taxation and social secunity payable 355 292
Other payables 1152 1115
Accruals and deferred income 2352 1535
546 5 369 6
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17 Tax habilities

2007 2006
£m £m
Current tax habilities M5 165
18 Financial habiliies - borrowings
2007 2006
£m £m
Current habiliies
- Short-term loans 846 1150
- Bank overdrafls 333 1656
1179 1315
- Finance leases 105 248
1284 1563
MNon-currert liabilities
- Syndicated loans 2032 1087
- Other loans 1233 147 4
- Finance leases 833 536
4158 3097
2007 2006
£m £m
Loan capital and other borrowings repayment statement
- Within one year or on demand 1284 156 3
- Between one and two years 962 722
- Between two and five years 2996 2089
- Over five years 200 286
544 2 466 0

The total of the loans, any part of which fall due for repayment after five years, 1s £63 8 miflion (2006 £92 9 million) £312 million
(2006 £44 9 million) represents bank loans in the mainland Europe division, with varying repayment dates and interest rates
£32 6 millon (2006 £48 0 mullion) represents fixed interest finance lease funding of the mainland Europe bus fleet, with varying
repayment dates and interest rates ranging between 3 5 per cent and 7 5 per cent
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Notes to the Accounts continued

18 Financial habilities - DOrrowings (continued)

Secunty and guarantees
Borowings amouriting 1o £128 3 million (2006 £140 3 million), principally relating to the bus fleet are secured by charges over the related
assels

As part of the UK rail franchising arrangemenits the group has provided guarantees of €46 million {2006 £13 millwn) The group has
provided £25 million (2006 €20 million) of bends in respect of ds rail operations I Denmark, the Netherands and Germany

AL 31 December 2007, letlers of creddt amounting to the value of £16 million (2006 £30 rmifion) are provided by the group's bankers,
guaranteed by Arrva ple, in favour of the group’s insurers

Syndicated loans are secured by guarantees given by Amva plc and certain UK subsiciarnes

2007 2008

The effeciive Interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows % %
Cash and cash equnalents 48 34
Bank overdraft 65 50
Bank borrowings 42 44
Finance lease 52 46
Other tinancial labikties 56 586
2007 2006

The carrying amount of the group's borrowings are denorminated n the following currencies £m £m
Sterling 785 1237
Euro 2809 2098
Other Eurppean currencies 1848 1325
544 2 466 0

Far value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Due to the short-term nature of inancial assets and financial hatwhtes, or the floating rate nature of non-current financial labilties, the
group considers there 10 be no matenal difference between the farr value of financial assets and financial labiittes and their carrying
amount In the batance sheet

Matunty of financial iabikties
The maturity profite of the carrying amount of the group's non-current habilties at 31 December was as follows

Other Other
Finance financial 2007 Finance financal 2006
Debt leases  habilies Total Debt leases llabilities Total
£m £m £m £m &m £m £m £m
{n more than one year but

not more than two years 717 238 07 962 365 199 159 723

In more than two years but
not more than five years 2477 519 - 2996 196 9 114 o7 2090
In more than five years 64 1386 - 200 61 223 - 284
3258 893 07 4158 2395 536 166 309 7
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Borrowing faciliies
The group has the following undrawn commitied floating rate borrowing facilities available at 31 Decernber i respect of which all
conditions precedent had been met at that date

2007 2006

£m £m

Expiring withun one year 570 362
Expinng in more than two years 4158 2016
4728 2378

Finance leases

The group typically enters into finance leases of no more than five years' duration on an amortising basis Grven the short-term nature of
this iunding, the group considers there to be no matenal difference between the farr value of inance leases and therr carrying amount in
the balance sheet

Finance lease cbligations included in current liabrihies amount to £10 5 million (2006 £24 8 milion) and in non-current iabilities amount to
£89 3 million (2006 £53 6 millon)

19 Other non-current habilities

2007 2006
£m m
Accruals and deferred ncome 992 608
Other payables 151 65
1143 673
20 Denvative financial instruments
Financial mstrument disclosures are set out below Additional disclosures are set out In the accounting policies
2007 2006
£m £m
Non-current assets
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 04 17
Fuel denvatives - cash flow hedge 392
Cross currency swaps - net investment hedge - 22
396 39
2007 2006
£m £m
Current assets
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 12 -
Forward foreign currency contracis - cash flow hedge - 06
Fuel denvalives - cash flow hedge 206 84
Cross currency swaps - net investiment hedge - 04
21 8 94




Notes to the Accounts continued

20 Dernivative financial instruments (conunued)

2007 2006
£m £m
Current habilities

Fuel denvatives - cash flow hedge - 136
Cross currency swaps - net investment hedge 104 -
104 136
2007 2006
£fm £€m

Non-current habilities
Fuel derivatwes - cash flow hedge - 10
Cross currency swaps - net Investment hedge 127 o2
127 12

In accordance with 1AS39 'Financial instruments  Recognition and Measurement', Arrva plc has reviewed all contracts for embedded
dernvalives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet certain requirements set out n the standard Al embedded
dervatives were found to be closely related to their host contracts, and therefore no fair value exercise was required to be undertaken

Matunty of denvative financial statements

The matunity profile of the carrying amount of the group’s dervative financial instruments was as follows

Between Between
Less than one and two and Cver
one year two years five years five years
At 31 December 2007 £m £rn £m £m
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 12 - 04 -
Fuel denivatives - cash flow hedge 206 10 56 326
Cross currency swaps - net nvestment hedge (10 4) 50 (77} -
Batween Betwesn
Less than one and two and Over
one ysar two years five years five years
At 31 December 20068 £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge - 17 . -
Forward foreign currency contracts - cash flow hedge 06 - - -
Fuel derivatives - cash flow hedge (52 (10 - -
Cross currency swaps - net investment hedge 04 22 02) -
Net farr values of denvative financial instruments
The far values of dervative financal mstruments designated in cash flow hedges were
2007 2006
£m £m
Contracts with posiive far values
- [nterest rate swaps 16 17
- Forward foreign currency contracts . 06
- Fuel dervatives 598 84
Contracts wilh negative far values
- Fuel dervatives - {14 6)

The farr values of dervatives have been supplied externally by the respeciive counterparties to the dernvaive and by barks using market

rates prevailing at the balance sheet date
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21 Retirement benefit obligations

At 31 December 2007 the group operated a number of retirement benefit schemes, both defined beneld and defined contnbution, which
are financed through separate Trustee administered funds managed by independent professional fund managers on behati of the
Trustees Contributions 10 the defined benelit funds are based upon actuanal advice following the most recent of a regutar senes of
valuations of the funds by thei representative independent acluaries Certain employees of Amiva Merseyside Limited participate in ihe
Loczal Government Pension Scheme This 1s a defined beneiit scheme funded by payments to the Merseyside Pension Fund The latest
formal actuanal valuation of the Merseyside Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2007

Certain employees of Arrva Trains Wales Limited and XC Trans Limited, participate in funded defined benefit sections which form part of
the overall Raibways Pension Scheme ('RPS")

Total pension cost
The total pension cost for the group was £44 1 million (2006 £39 7 million} The pension costs in respect of the group's defined
contribution schemes was £25 8 million (2006 £19 5 milion)

Defined benefit plans

The direclors believe that separaie consideration should be given to the RPS under 1AS19 as the group has no nghts or obligatons in
respect of sections of this scheme following the expiry of the tranchises The amounts relating 1o the rail schemes are therefore shown
separately and refate 10 sections in respect of Amiva Trans Wales Limited and XC Trans Lymited only

The calcutations used to assess the 1AS19 habilities of the retirement benefit schemes are based on the most recent actuanal valuations
updated 10 31 Decermber 2007 by qualified iIndependent actuanes The scheres’ assets are stated at therr market value at 31 Decernber 2007

The principal actuanal assumptions at the balance sheet date are

I, € (=

2007 2006

% %

Discount rate 59 52

Inflation rate 3z 29

Increases 1o deferred benefiis dunng deferment 32 29

Increases to pensions in payment 30 29

Increases o salarnes 42 41
Weighied average expecied long-term rate of return of the scheme assets at 31 Decernber,

aiter deduction for scheme expenses 76 75

Weighted average life expectancy for mortality tables to determine benefit obligatons 2007 2006

years years

Member age 65 (current ife expectancy) Male 18 18

Female 21 22

Member age 45 {lfe expectancy at age 65) Male 19 20

Female 22 22
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Notes 1o the Accounts continued

21 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The major categones of plan assets and the expected rate of retum at the balance sheet date for each calegory, Is as follows

2007 2006
% %

Category of assets at the year end
Equiies 825 825
Bonds 50 48
Cther 69 65
Weighted average expected long-term rate of return at 31 December, after deduction for scheme expenses 76 75

The overall expected rate of retumn 1s a weighted average of the expected returns of the vanous categonies of plan assets held The directors’
assessment of the expected returns 1s based on histoncal retum trends, the farward looking views of financial markets (suggested by the

yields available) and the views of investment organisations

The actual return on plan assets was £51 2 milion {2006 £80 3 milion)

Group
Schemes RPS Total Total Total
The amounis recognised in the 2007 2007 2007 2006 2005
balance sheet are determined as follows £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of funded abligations (727 9) (334 2) {1,062 1) (927 9) (856 3)
Farr value of plan asseis 667 4 3141 9815 7477 6402
Deticit (60 5) (20 1) (80 6) (180 2) {216 1)
Deficik relating to scherme members - 81 81 64 87
Unrecognised asset (12 - (12 - -
Net deficit recogmsed in the balance sheet {61 7) (12 0) {737) (173 8) {207 4)
2007 2006
The amounts recogrised In the Income staternent are as follows £m £m
Current service costs 234 251
Interest cost 46 4 392
Expected relurn on assets {515 {401)
Settlements - (16)
Past service adjustment - (2 4)
183 202

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the statement of recogrised income and expense
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2007 2006
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows £m £m
At 1 January 927 9 856 3
Member contnbutions pasd 173 136
Current service cost 234 251
Past sernvice adjustiment* - 27
Interest cost* 501 404
New rail franchise* 187 2 -
Benefits paid {322) {23 3)
Actuanal {gains)flosses® {111 6) 226
Settlemenss - (41
At 31 December 1,082 1 9279

2007 2006

Movements 1n the far value of plan assets were as follows £m £m
At 1 January 7477 6402
Expected return on plan assets™ 563 M7
Total contributions 475 536
MNew ral franchise* 167 3 -
Benefits paid (322) (233)
Actuanal {losses)/gains* (51) 380
Seitlements - (25
At 31 December 9815 7477

* Before RPS shared cost adjustment

The movements in the present value of defined benefit cbligations and in the farr value of the plan assets do not take into account the
shared cost nature of the RPS The income statement includes 60 per cent of the relevant RPS amounts

2007 2008
Plan assets % %
The weighted average asset allocations at the year end were as follows
Equities 75 74
Bonds 18 20
Cther 7 6
2007 2006
Cumulative actuanal gains and losses recognised In equity £m £m
At 1 January 241 110
Actuanal gains recognised In year 995 131
At 31 December 1236 241
2007 2006 2005 2004
History of expenence gains and losses £m £m £m £m
Expenence adjustmenis on scheme habilities
- Amounts (£m) 1116 (22 6) (74 9) (43)
- Percentage of scheme liabities 105% 2 4% 87% 06%
Experience adjusiments on scheme assets
- Amounts (£m) {51) 380 655 195
- Perceniage of scheme assels 0 5% 51% 102% 37%

The group expects to make contributions of approximately £31 milhon to the defined benefit plans duning the next financial year
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MNotes to the Accounts confinued

22 Deferred tax

2007 2006
The movement N deferred tax 1s shown below £m £m
Al 1 January 453 443
Exchange differences 20 04
Acguisibon of subsidianes {7 4) Q7
Disposal of subsidiary - (11 1)
Incomne statement (credit)/charge for continuing operations (02 158
Tax charged/(credited) 1o equity 479 (41)
At 31 December 8786 453

Delerred tax assets have not been recognised i respect of 1ax losses and other temporary differences gving rise to deferred tax assets
where there Is uncertainty regarding the recoverability of the resulting deferred tax assets Deferred lax 1s not provided on the unremitted
earmings of overseas subsidharies where the group has control over the timing of remittance and it 1s probable that remiitance will not take
place in the foreseeable fuiure Matenial deferred tax assets and hiabilibes are only ofiset where there 1s a legally enforeceable nght of

ofiset and there 1$ an intention to setile the balances net

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabiities during the penod are shown below

Accelerated
tax depreciation  Revaluation Intangibles Dervatives Other Total
Deferred tax labities £m £m £€m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 729 170 111 64 25 1099
Exchange differences {02) 02 (0 4)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 08 - - - 08
Disposal of subsidiary (10 9) ©7) {11 6)
Income statement charge/{credit)
for continuing operatons 125 {0 1) {17 - (01) 106
Tax credited directly to equity - - . (73) - (7 3)
Transferred to deferred 1ax assets - 09 09
At 31 December 2006 751 162 92 24 1029
Exchange differences 19 086 03 28
Income stalement (crect)/charge
for continuing operations {16) 03) {32 13 {3 8)
Transferred from delerred tax assels - - - 181 - 181
At 31 December 2007 754 159 66 181 40 1200
The deferred tax lliabiliy due after more than one year 1s £112 4 mullion (2006 £101 3 million)
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Retirernent
benefit
obhgations Prowvisions Dernvatives Other Total
Deferred tax assets £m £m £m £m £m
Al 1 January 2006 (586) 62 {08) (65 6)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - {01) {0 1)
Bisposal of subsidiary 05 - - 05
Income statement charge/{credit) for continuing operations 56 18 21) 53
Tax charged directly o equity 32 - - - 32
Transtemred from deferred tax labilties - - 09 {032 )]
A1 31 December 2008 {49 3) (4 4 {089) 30 {57 6)
Exchange differences - 06) - 02 (0 8)
Acquistiion of subsidianes - 79 - 05 (7 4)
Income statement charge/{credit) for continuing operations 31 1n - 16 36
Tax charged directly to equity 289 - 190 479
Transferred to deferred tax labilities - - {18 1) - (18 1)
At 31 December 2007 (17 3) (14 0} - {11) (32 4)
The deferred tax asset due after more than one year 1s £20 9 million (2006 £47 3 millron)
23 Called up equity share capital
Authonsed Allotted - fully paid

2007 2006 2007 2006
Ordinary shares of 5 pence each £14,500,000 £14,500,000 £9,930,679 £9,904,472
Number of shares 290,000,000 290,000,000 198,613,572 108,089,442
Reconciiation of movement i 1ssued share capital
Shares in1ssue 1 January 198,089,442 196,922,357
Share allotments on exercise of options 524,130 1,167,085
Shares in 1ssus 31 December 198,613,572 198,089,442

Consideration of £1 3 million was recerved in respect of the share atloiments i the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006 £1 2 mullion)

At 31 December 2007 there were oulstanding options to receive allotments of 2,888,975 ordinary shares under the Executive Share Option
Scheme, the Share Incentive Scheme and the Long Term Incentive Plan The price for the vesled share for the Long Term Incentive Plan
15 £nil The option exercise prices for the other schemes range from 272 6 pence to 745 0 pence  The options are exercisable up to March
2017 At 31 December 2007 the middle market quotation of the crdinary share, as derved from the Stock Exchange Official List, was
7950 pence The highest price attained by the ordinary share in 2007 was 842 0 pence and the lowest level dunng 2007 was 651 0 pence
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Notes to the Accounts conlinued

24 Share-based payments

The group operates an Execulive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) Share Incenive Scheme {SIS) and Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
The ESOS is an Inland Revenue approved discretionary employee share option scheme, with options granted 1o certain senior employees

{excluding directors) and exercisabie between three and ten years from date of gran!, suibject to performance eritena having been satisfied

The SIS I1s an unapproved discretionary employee share option scheme, with options granted to certan senior employees (excluding
directors) and exercisable between Ihree and seven years from date of grant, subject to performance criena having been satsfied

The ESOS and SIS March 2007 awards have been granied under The Arriva pic Company Share Option Plan 2006

The LTIP 15 a discretionary share scheme prowding incentives in the form of conditional awards of shares to selected senior employees,

including executive directors There 1s a performance peniod of not less than three years before any of the shares may vest, with vesting of

any of the shares subject to performance critena having been satisfied Further details of the LTIP and performance criteria are given in the

Directors' Remuneration Report

In accordance with the transitional provisions of IFRS, the following disclosures relate only to awards made after 7 November 2002 that

have not vested before 1 January 2005

The farr value per option granted and the assumptions used in the calculation of far value are as follows

Executive Share Option Scheme

March 2003 March 2004  March 2007

Share price at giant date £283 £373 £7 45
Exercise price £283 £373 £7 45
Number of employees 12 46 44
Shares under option 73,000 206,162 121,324
Vesting penod {years) 3 3 3
Expected volatility 32% 24% 20%
Option ife (years) 10 10 10
Expected life (years) 3 3 3
Risk free rate 4% 45% 51%
Expected dmvidends expressed as a dvidend yield 5 8% 51% 30%
Expectations of meeting periormance cntena 100% 100% 100%
Far value per option £0 470 20 504 £1130

Share Incantive Schermne

March 2003 March 2004  March 2005 March 2006  March 2007

Share price at grant date £283 £373 £5 48 £6 13 £7 45
Exercise price £283 £373 £5 48 £6 13 £7 45
Number of employees 44 54 95 78 73
Shares under cplion 254,500 197,338 442,500 336,000 221,676
Vesiing penod (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility 32% 24% 24% 24% 20%
Option life (years) 7 7 7 7 7
Expected life (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Risk free rate 4% 45% 4% 4 6% 51%
Expected dvdends expressed as a dividend yield 58% 51% 36% 37% 30%
Expectations of meeting performance cntenia 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Far value per option £0 470 £0 504 £0835 £0959 £1130
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Long Term incentive Plan

March 2005 May 2006’ May 20060  Sept 2006 Sept 20067
Share price at grant date £548 £544 £5 44 €679 £6 79
Exercise price £000 £0 00 £0 00 2000 £0 60
Number of employees 4 3 3 14 14
Shares under option 224,451 178,194 178,194 267,228 109,150
Vesting period (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volatiity 24% 25% 25% 20% 20%
Optton life (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Expected life (years) 3 3 3 3 3
Risk free rate 4% 4 8% 48% 4 8% 4 8%
Expected dnadends expressed as a dividend yield 36% 33% 33% 33% 33%
Expectations of meeting performance criteria 0% 10% 100% 10% 100%
Fauwr value per option £4 919 £4 980 £2 140 £6 290 £4 330

Long Term Incentive Plan

March 2007'  March 2007° March 2007
Share price at grant date £745 £745 £7 45
Exercise price £000 £000 £0 00
Number of employees 17 3 14
Shares under option 402,596 139,329 107 532
Vesting penod (years) 3 3 3
Expected volatiity 20% 20% 20%
Option Ife {years) 3 3 3
Expected Ife (years} 3 3 3
Risk free rate 51% 51% 51%
Expected dnvidends expressed as a dvidend yield 30% 30% 30%
Expectations of meeting performance crtera 64% 100% 100%
Far value per option £6 900 £3270 £3710

The expected volatiity 1s based on historical volatility over the last three years The expected Iife 1s the average expected period 1o exercise
The nsk free rate of retum 1s the yield on zers-coupon UK Government bonds of a term consistent with the assumed option hfe

' Relates to the EPS element of the award
2 Relates to the TSR element of the award
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Notes to the Accounts continued

24 Share-based payments (continued)

A reconciliation of option movements for each of the above schemes over the year to 31 Decemnber 1s shown below

(a) Executve Share Option Scheme

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number axercise Number exercise
('000) pnce (£) (000} price (£)
Outstanding at 1 January 173 369 232 354
Granted 121 745 - -
Forfeited (15) 373 - -
Exercised (85) 373 (59) 310
Cutstanding at 31 December 194 601 173 369
Exercisable at 31 December 73 364 7 283
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Range average Weighted avelr?ge average Weighted avelriage
of exercise exercise Number of remaning 1'e exercise Number of remaining e
prices price shares Expected Contractual price shares Expected  Contractual
L] € ('000) {years) (years) (£) {'000) (years) (years)
283-745 601 194 10 80 369 173 - 70

The weighted average share price dunng the penod for options in the ESOS exercised over the year was 762 9 pence (2006 630 § pence)
The total charge for the year refating to the scheme was Enil {2006 £nil)

{b) Share Incentive Scheme

2007 20086
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Numioer exercise
('000) price (£) ('000) price (£)
Qutstanding at 1 January 950 524 827 442
Granted 221 745 336 613
Forfeited {18) 566 {36) 468
Exercised (140 389 {177) 3z
Quistanding at 31 December 1,013 590 950 524
Exercisable at 31 December 114 3as0 52 283
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2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Range average Weighted avelrfage average Weighted avelr?ge
of exercise exercise  Number of remaining e exercise Number of remaining e
prices price shares Expected  Contractual price shares Expected  Contractual
) {€) ('000) (years) (years) (£) ('000) (years) {years)
283-745 590 1,013 08 46 524 a50 t2 51

The weighted average share pnee during the penod for options in the Share Incentive Scheme exercised over the year was 768 5 pence
(2006 642 3 pence) The total charge for the year relating to the scheme was £0 2 million (2006 £0 3 million) After deferred tax, the total
charge was €0 2 mullion (2006 £0 2 milion)

(c) Long Term Incentive Plan

2007 2006
Weightad Weghted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
{'000) price (£) ('000) price (£}
Qutstanding at 1 January 1,285 - 1,338 -
Granted 649 - 733 -
Forfeited (156) - - -
Exercised {134) - (786) -
Quistanding at 31 December 1,644 - 1,285 -
Exercisable at 31 December 59 - 39 -
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted

Weighted average Weighted average

Range average I average i

of exercise exercise Number of remaining e exercise Number of remaining e

prices pnce shares Expected Contractual price shares Expected  Contractual
€) (2) (*000) {years) {years) {£) {'C00) {years) (years)
000 [eX 0] 1,644 12 12 000 1,285 13 13

The weighted average share price for the LTIP awards exercised in the year was 747 2 pence (2006 6396 pence) The total charge for the
year relating to the scheme was £1 4 million (2006 £0 9 million, all of which related to equity-settled share-based payment {ransactions
Alter deferred tax, the total charge was £1 0 milhion (2006 £0 6 million)
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Notes to the Accounts continued

25 Other reserves

Capital

regdemption Special Hedge Other

reserve reserve reserve reserves

£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2006 18 591 141 750
Cash {low hedges {net of tax)

- Fair value iosses n penod - (108) {10 8)

- Transfers to net profit - . (62) 62

At 31 December 2006 18 591 (29} 580
Cash flow hedges {net of tax)

- Far value gains in penod - - 486 486

- Transiers to net profit - (16) {18)

At 31 December 2007 18 591 441 1050

The capttal redemption reserve represents the cumulative par value of all shares bought back and cancelled by the grotip and 1s not
distrbutable The special reserve was created In 1997 when an application 1o transfer the share prermizm account into a special reserve
was granted by the High Count and 1s not distributable The hedge reserve records movements on derivaive financial Instruments
designated as cash flow hedges

26 Statement of changes in equity

Total

Share Share Other Retained shareholders' Minority Total

capilal premium reserves earnings equity nferests equity

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2006 98 191 750 3835 487 4 163 5037

Ansing on issue of shares 01 33 - 22 12 - 12

Share-based payments . - . 12 12 - 12
Total recognised iIncome and

expense for the year - - {(170) 1083 923 19 942

Dwdends - - - (39 6) {39 6) {09) (40 5)

Minority share of disposal - - - - - {10) (10)

At 31 December 2006 99 224 580 4522 5425 163 5588

Anising on 1ssue of shares . 18 - (0 5) 13 - 13

Share-based payments - - - 16 16 - 16
Total recogrsed income and

expense for the year - - 470 1597 2067 55 2122

Dvidends - - - (419) (419 (10 (429)

Mincrity share of acquisition - - - . - 30 30

At 31 December 2007 99 24 2 1050 5711 7102 238 7340
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27 Notes to the group cash flow statement

2007 2006
{a) Reconciliaton of nat debt £m £m
At 1 January 3784 4359
Diecrease/(increase) 1n cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts 51 02
Decrease in loans due within one year (36 4) (6 6}
Increase/{decrease} in loans due after one year 360 (459)
Decrease in finance lease obligations {152) (79
Loans acquired 195 57
Finance leases acquired 280 03
Currency translation adjustments 361 29
At 31 December 4485 378 4
2007 2006
(b) Reconciiation of operating profit to cash generated from operations £m £m
Continuing operations
Qperating profit 1280 1195
Depreciation 1138 1062
Goodwlt impairment and intangible asset amortisation 74 72
EBITDA 2492 2329
Increase n inventonies, excluding acquisitions and cisposal (10 (6 B)
Increase n trade and other recewvables, excluding acquisiians and disposal (87 2) (23 3)
Increasef{decrease) In creditors, excluding acquisitions and disposal 872 (433
Cash generated from continuing operations 2482 1597
Cash generated from discontinued operations - 03
Cash generated from operations 248 2 1600
Acquisihions 3
1 January {excluding cash Exchange December
2007 Cash flow & overdraft}  differences 2007
(c) Analysis of net debt £m £m £m £m fm
Cash, cash eguivalents and overdrafis (71 1) 51 36 (62 4)
Loans due within one year 1150 {39 4) 58 32 846
Loans due after one year 2561 360 137 207 3265
Finance leases 784 (15 2) 280 86 998
3784 {13 5) 475 361 4485
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Notes to the Accounts continued

28 Acquisitions

Total
(a) Analysis of the net cash outflow in respect of acquisitions £€m
Cash consideration (including expenses) 355
Cash acquired (123)
Met cash outilow in respect of acquisitions 232
Provisionat
Acquired iar value MNet
book value adpusiments cost
(b) Current year acquisitions £m £m £m
Property, plant and equ:prment 923 61 98 4
Investmenis 09 . 09
Inventories 39 (05} 34
Trade and other recervables 341 09) 332
Cash and cash equivalents 123 - 123
Finance lease obligations {27 6) (0 4} (28 0)
Trade and other payables {390 (2 7) (417)
Loans (19 4) - (19 4)
Deferred 1ax - 74 74
Other non-current liabilities (48 (479) {52 5)
529 (389) 140
Minority interest (30)
Goodwill 241
Satisfied by cash 351

The goodwill of £24 1 million noted above relates to premiums paid In respect of strategic market eniry and also to consolidate our
posiion within existing markets

In February 2007 the group acqured 100 per cent of the share capitat of Chase Coaches Limited for £0 7 million, resulting 1n goodwill of
£1 0 milhon

in January 2007 the group acquired 100 per cenit of the share capital of the Czech Republic bus operator Bosak Bus s ro for £1 0 millon,
£0 2 mullion of which was deferred resulting in goodwill of £1 0 mullion In March 2007 the group acquired 85 per cent of the share capital
of the German bus and rail company Ostharngversche Eisenbahnen AG for £17 4 million, resufting in goadwill of £6 4 mlion Also in
March 2007 the group acqured 100 per cent of the share capital of the Gesman bus company Neisseverkehr for £1 1 million, resulting in
goodwill of Enil In August 2007 the group acquired 100 per cent of the share capital of the DPanish bus operaior Veolia Transport Danmark
AS for £7 3 million resulting in goodwill of £9 1 mithon In November 2007 the group acquired 100 per cent of the share capital of the
Spanish bus operator Fray Escoba for €1 0 million, £0 1 miflion of which was deferred, resulting in goodwill of £0 5 mithon In November
2007 the group acquired 100 per cent of the share capital of the Gzech Republic bus operator Osnado spol sro for £4 4 million, £0 5 million
of which was deferred, resuling i goodwill of £3 9 million

In addition, smaller acquisitions were made in the year, the 1otal cost of which was €2 2 million, resulting in goodwiil of £2 2 million

If all acquisitions had oceurred at the start of the period the additional revenue and profit for the year would have been £28 & million and
€1 7 midlion respectvely

The fair value adjusiments in the table above refate mainly to a contract loss provision made in respect of Veoha Transpont Danmark AS
and alignment to group accounting palicies The fair vatues are provisional, depending on the final determination of the value of related
assels and liabilines The final far values are subject to completion of contractual discussions and settlement of balances and may change
aiter the balance sheet date
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(c) Pnor year acquisitons
The total cost in the year relating to acquisitions from prior years was £0 4 million This 1s additional consideration relating to Esfera,

acquired in December 2006, and additional consideration refating 1o the increased shareholding in Regentalbahn AG aquired in the prior
year In additon, hindsight far value adjustments were made i the year resuiting from the final determination of the assets and habilities

as follows
£m
Hindsight penod adjustments
Trade and other recevables 01
Trade and other payables 02)
Loans 01
Other non-current habilites 18
Decrease n {ar values 18
Additonal consideration pad 04
22
Goodwill based on provisional far values 112
Goodwill based on final far values 134
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Notes to the Accounts conlinued

29 Group undertakings

Detailed below is a st of those subsidianes which in the opinion of the directors principally atfect the amount of the profit or the amount of
the assets of the group The group percentage of equity capital 1s 100 per cent and the country of registration 1s England and Wales in
each case, except where indicated All subsidianes operate within England and Wales, except where indicated

Passenger Transport

Rental and Distnbution of Buses & Coaches

Arriva Croydon & North Surrey Limited
Arrva Cymru Lirmited

Arriva Derby Limited

Asrva, Durham County Limited

Arrva East Herts & Essex Limiled

Arriva International Trains Leasing
bimited

Armva Kent & Sussex Limited
Armva Kent Thameside Limited
Arrva London North Lirited
Arnva London South Lunited
Arriva Manchester Limsted

Arriva Medway Towns Limied
Arrva Merseyside Limited

Arriva Miclands Limited

Arrva Midlands North Limited
Arrva Noroeste SE2

Armva North East Limited

Arrva Northumbna Limited

Arnva North West Limited

APS (Leasing) Limited

Arriva Personenvervoer Nederland B V?
Asriva Portugal Transportes LDA®
Arrva Scotland West Linuted!
Arrva Skancinavien A/S'

Arriva Southern Counties bimited

Arriva Sverige AB*

Arrva Tees & Distnct Limited
Arrva Teesside Limited
Arriva The Shires Limited
Arriva Trains Limited

Arrva Trains Wales/Trenau Arriva Cymru
Limited

Armva Yorkshire Limited

Arnva Yorkshire West Limited
Autobus Sippel GmBH®

London Pride Sightseeing Limited
MK Metre Limited
QOsthannoversche Eisenbahnen AG*
Prignitzer Eisenbahn Gmbh'
Regentalbahn AG?

SAB Autoserviz SrL 7

SAB Autoservizi FVG SpA®
SademSpA™

Stevensens of Uttoxeter Lumited

The Onginal London Sightseeing Tour
Limited

Transportes Suldo Teo S A®
Veola Transport Danmark AS'
Verkehrsbetnebe Bids Gmbh?
XC Trains Limited
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Arnva Bus and Coach Renta! (1) Umited
Arrva Bus and Coach Rental (2) LUmited
Arriva Bus and Coach Rental (3) Limited
Arriva Bus and Coach Rental (4) bimited
Arriva Bus and Coach Limited

Investment

Arrva Findiv Limited

Arrva Internationat Limited™

Arriva Motor Holdings Limited*

Arriva Passenger Sennces Limited™*

British Bus Group Lmited

MTL Services Limited*

Arriva Insurance Cormpany {Gibraltar) Limited'™*
Arniva International {Northern Europe) Limited
Arriva International {Southern Europe) Limited
Arrva (2007) Lirmited

Property

British Bus (Properties) Limited

Except where marked by* shares are held by a
subsidiary company

! Registered and operates in Denmark

* Registered and operaies in Span

* Registered and operates in the Netherlands

* Registered and operates in Scotland

* Registered and operates in Sweden

* Regustered and operates in Portugal

" Registered and operates in Italy

’ Registered and operates in Germany

* Registered and operates n Germany {85% owned)
* Registered and operates in ltaly (60% owned)
" Registered and operates n laly (B0% owned)
* Registered and operates in Gibraltar




30 Commitments

Capital amounts contracted for but not provided amount 1o £28 0 million (2006 £1 7 million) for the group At 31 December 2007 the
group had total commutments under non-canceliable operating leases, including access charges to the rall infrastructure and leases for
rail roling stock, expiring as follows

2007 2006
Land & Land &

builldings QOther Total buildings Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Within one year 162 163 6 1798 142 1567 1699
Later than one year and less than five years 631 8753 9384 56 0 5271 5831
After five years 1130 28243 29373 1187 1,076 3 1,1950
1923 38632 40555 1889 1,759 1 1,948 0

31 Post balance sheet events

On 20 December 2007 the group announced the temms of a recommended cash offer for the entire 1ssued share capital of Tellngs Golden
Miller Group plc (TGM) ©On 11 January 2008 the offer was dectared unconditional foltowing vahd acceptances of the offer from TGM
shareholders representing more than 90 per cent of shareholders by vatue and voting nghts The cost of the shares 1s £103 mithon plus
£19 4 millkon of net debt assumed

On 7 January 2008 the group announced the acquisition of a further 10 per cent interest in Barraqueiro SGPS SA for a consideration of
€50 million, which increased the shareholding to 31 5 per cent
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Five-Year Financial Summary

2003~ 2004 2005 2006 2007

Assets employed £€m £m £m £m £m
Goodwill 2262 2667 2775 286 4 3282
Other intangible assets - 456 408 349 432
Property, plani and equipment 7615 962 6 1,0928 9825 1,164 4
Other (64 6) (3817) (3410 (285 1) {233 6}
Unquoted investments 52 62 79 514 636

9283 899 4 1,0780 10701 1,365 8
Financed by
Share capital 98 98 98 a9 99
Reserves 461 ¢ 4178 4778 5326 7003
Minority Interests - 22 163 163 238
Bank overdrafts 137 51 225 165 333
Syndicated loans - 826 2038 1087 203 2
Other loans 198 6 15857 933 147 4 1233
Short-term loans 6860 1262 1229 1150 B4 6
Qbhgations under finance leases 109 t 621 875 784 998
Deferred tax habilties 692 379 443 453 876

9283 BI9 4 1,0780 1,070 1 1,365 8
Trading
Revenue 1,751 1 1,7590 15712 1,7290 2,0007
Profit before taxation from continuing operations B38 1083 1031 1098 1158
Taxation 260 260 198 252 258
Profit after taxation from continuing cperalions 578 833 833 846 900
Profit after taxation from discontinued operations - - 3¢ 201 -
Profit for the year 578 833 863 1047 900
Statistics
Funds attnbutable to shareholders 4717 4276 487 4 5425 7102
Equity shareholders’ funds per ordinary share 241 9p 218 4p 247 5p 2739 357 6p
Basic earnings per share 287p 42 6p 43 7p 51 8p 43 5p
Dividends per ordinary share 18 Op t89p 19 84p 2083p 22 65p

* The financial Information for 2003 has been prepared under UK generally accepted accounting practice

The discontinued operations relate to the vehicle rental operations
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Parent Company Financia! Statements (@

Company balance sheet
at 31 December 2007

Prepared using UK generally accepted accounting practice (UK GAAP)

2007 2006
notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 2 79 82
Investments 3 6112 7269
6191 7351
Current assets
Debtors 4 1373 902
Cash at bank and in hand 3998 344
5371 1246
Creditors
Amounts {alling due within one year 6 {16 7) (18 1)
Net current assets 5204 1065
Total assets less current liabilities 1,1395 84186
Creditors
Amounts faling due alter more than one year 6 (428 8) (514 2)
Net penston hability 1" (14) 61)
7093 3213
Represented by
Capital and reserves
Called up equity share capital 7 99 99
Share premium account 9 242 224
Capital redemption reserve 9 18 18
Special resesve 9 591 591
Prefit and loss account 9 6143 2281
7093 3213

Equity shareholders' funds m 10

A, -y
D R Martin Ktw
Directors .
S P Lonsdale ' UQ

These financial statements on pages 101 10 109 were approved by the Board on 5 March 2008
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Parent Company Accounting Policies continued

Basis of preparation

The separate financial slatements of the company are presented as required by the Comparies Act 1985 They have been prepared in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice The comparnty prepares its inancial statements on
the historic cost basis of accounting as modified by the revaluation of certan tangible fixed assets

Change in accounting policies
The company has adopted FRS29, 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ The adoption of the standard represents a change in accounting
policy There 1s no pnor adjustment to reserves resulting from adopting this standard, as its provisions relate to disclosure

Cash flow statement

The company s the holding company of a group which prepares consolidated accounts, including the results of the company, which are
publicly avalable Consequently the company as taken advantage of the exernption from preparing a cash flow statement under the terms
of FRS1 (revised)

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible freed assets are stated at cost or valuation, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment

Depreciation 1s calcutated using the siraight-line methed to allocate the cost of each asset to its residual value over (s esimated useful life

as iollows

Freehold properties 2% per annum ©on cost or valuation
Plant, company vehicles, fixtures & fitings 3- 10 years

Investments

Fixed asset mvestments in subsidianes are shown at cost less provision for imparment

Impairment

At each balance sheet date the company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible fixed assets to determine whether there are any
indicators of impasment If indicators of imparment exis then the recoverable amount of an assel ts estimated and f this 1s less than its
carrying amount the difference 1s recogrised in the profit and loss account as an impairment loss

Pensions
The company operates retirement benefit schemes, both defined benetit and defined coninbution schemes

The lrability recognssed in the balance sheet in respect of the company's defined beneft pension plans s the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the far value of the plan assets, tegether with adjustments for unrecegnised past service
costs The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated using the projected unit credit method Formal actuanal valuations are camed out by an
independent actuary on a tnennial basts, with updated calcutaiions being prepared at each balance sheet date by qualified ndependent
actuaries The present value of the defined beneltt obligation 1s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outfiows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits wili be paid, and that have terms
to matunty approximating to the terms of the related pension hability

The cost of providing future benetits (service cost) 1s charged to the profit and foss account as required The return on scheme assets and
interest obligation on scheme liabilites compnse a pension finance adjustment which 1s included in Interest costs Actuanal gamns and
losses ansing from expenence adjusiments and changes In actuanal assumptions are charged or credited to equity in the period they arise

Contrnbutrens payable under defined coninbutton schemes are charged to the profit and loss account as they anse

Share-based payments

The company Issues equity seltled share-based payments to certan employees, which are measured at far value at the date of grant The
tarr value 1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over the vesting period, based on the company’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest
The impact of revising onginal estimates, if any, 1s included in the profit and loss account, with & corresponding adjustmient 1o reserves

The proceeds recewed net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited 1o share capital {nominal value) and share premium
when the opiions are exercised

Dividend distnbution
Dradend distributions to the company's shareholders are recogrised in the company's financial statements in the period in which the
dnadends are paid

Deferred taxation

The company aceounting palicy 1s to provide for deferred tax on all trung differences except those ansing on the revatuation of txed
assets for which there is no binding agreement 1o sell or on the undistributed profits of overseas subsidianes Deferred tax 15 calculated at
the rates at which it 1S esimated ihe tax will anse The tax raies are those expected to anse based on tax rales and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date The deferred tax provision 1s not discounted 1o net presend value
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1 Armva plc profit and loss account

Amva ple has not presented its own profit and loss account as permiited by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985
The profit for the financial year dealt with in the accounts of Arrva plc 1s £423 0 mullion (2006 loss £1 1 million)

Company employee information is disciosed within the central compaonent in note 4 to the group financial statements Details of directors’
remuneration are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 49 1o 55

2 Tangble fixed assets

Ptant,
company
Freehold vehicles,
land & fixtures &
buildings fittngs Total
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
Al 1 January 2007 93 15 i08
Addiions - 02 02
Disposals - 1) {01
At 31 December 2007 93 16 109
Compnising
Cost 85 16 101
Valuation 1897 08 - 08
93 16 109
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007 16 10 26
Charge for the year 02 03 05
Disposals - {0 1) [AR))]
At 31 December 2007 18 12 30
Net book amounts
At 31 December 2007 75 04 79
At 31 December 2006 77 05 82
3 Investments
Shares In
Shares in subsidianes
subsidianes nel book
atcost  Imparment amount
Fixed asset investments £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 7418 {147 7269
Addiions 1293 - 1293
Disposals {2450 - {245 0}
At 31 December 2007 6259 (14 7) 6112

Particulars of freed asset investments are detalled in note 29 to the group financial statements
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts conlinued

4 Debtors
2007 2006
£m £m
Amounts fallng due within one year
Trade debtors o1 06
Deferred tax (note 5) 01 02
Cther debtors a0 33¢
Prepayments and accrued income 05 03
97 350
Amounis faling due after more than one year
Amounis owed by group undertakings 1276 552
137 3 902
The amounts owed by group undertakings are repayable on demand
5 Deferred taxation
2007 2006
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 16 16
Other timing differences an (18)
Deferred tax excluding that refating to pension liability {01) 02
Deferred tax on pension hiability (0 5) {2 6)
Deferred tax {0 6) (2 8)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

No deferred 1ax asset 1s provided in respect of the unremitted earmnings of overseas subsidianes unless a binding agreement exists al the

balance sheet date to remit such earmings in the future
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6 Creditors

2007 2006
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year

Trade credntors 16 14
Creditors for taxation and social secunty 14 15
Other creditors 50 74
Accruals and deferred income 87 78
167 181

Amounts falling due afier more than one year
Amounts due to group comparies 3985 4811
Accruals and deferred mcome 303 331
428 8 5142

The company provides cross guarantees in respect of the bank borrowings of a number of the group's subsidiaries
Fair value of non-currant habitities

The company considers there to be no matenal ditference between the farr vatue of non-current iabilittes and their carrying amount in the
balance sheet

Borrowing facilities

The company has the following undrawn committed floating rate borrowing facilities avalable at 31 December in respect of whuch all
condittons precedent had been met al that date

2007 2006

£m £m

Expinng within one year 570 32
Expiring it more than two years 4158 2016
472 8 2378
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Notes te the Parent Company Accounts continued

7 Called up equity share capital

Authonsed Allotted - fully pard

2007 2006 2007 2006
Ordinary shares of 5 pence each £14,500,000 €14,600,000 £9,930,678 £0,904,472
Number of shares 290,000,000 290,000,000 198,613,572 198,089,442
Reconciliation of movement in issued share capital
Shares in 1ssue 1 January 198,089,442 196,922,357
Share allotments on exercise of options 524,130 1,167 085
Shares in 1ssue 31 Decermber 196,613,572 198,088,442

Consideration of £1 3 millon was receved in respect of share allotments in the year ended 31 Decernber 2007 (2006 €12 muillon)

Al 31 Decernber 2007 there were outslanding options to recesve allotments of 2,888,975 ordinary shares under the Execulive Share Cption
Scheme, the Share Incentive Scheme and the Long Term Incentive Plan The price for the vested share for the Long Term Incentive Plan 1s
gnil The option exercise prices for the other schemes range from 272 6 pence to 745 0 pence The options are exercisable up 1o March
2017 At 31 December 2007 the middle market quotation of the ordinary share, as denved from the Stock Exchange Ofticial bist, was

795 0 pence The highest price attaned by the ordinary share n 2007 was 842 0 pence and the lowest tevel during 2007 was 651 0 pence

8 Share-based payments

The grants and related accounting treatment adoptled by Armva plc under FRS20, Share-based payments , are identical to that adopted
by the group under IFRS2, *Share-basec payments’ For detalls please refer to note 24 in the group financial statements

3 Reserves

Capital Share Profit

redempt:on premium Special and [oss
reserve account reserve account Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 18 224 591 2281 3114
Arsing on issue of shares - 18 - 05) 13
Profit for the year - - - 4230 4230
Dwidends - - - (419) {419)
Actuanal gain on pension deficit - - - 50 50
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension - - - (15) (1 5)
Share-based payments - - - 16 186
Tax relief on share option schemes - - - 05 05
At 31 December 2007 18 242 591 6143 6994

The capital redemption reserve reprasents the cumulative par value of all shares bought back and cancelled by the group and 1s not
distrbutable The special reserve was created n 1997 when an apphcation (o transfer the share premium account INto a special reserve
was granted by the High Court and 1s not distnbutable
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10 Reconcihation of movements in shareholders’ funds

2007 2006

£m £m

Proli/{loss) tor the year 4230 {(11)

Dmdends {41 9) {39 6)

3811 (407}

New share capital subscnbed 13 i2

Actuanal gain on penston deficit 50 16

Movement on deferred tax relating to pension {15 05
Share-based payments 16

Tax relief on share option schemes 05 12

Net addition 1o/{reduction in) shareholders funds 3880 (372

Opening shareholders funds 3213 3585

Closing shareholders funds 7093 3213
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts continued
|

11 Pensions

The accounting treatment under FRS17 ‘Retrerment benefits' 1s in hine with that adopted by the group under IAS18 'Employee benefits’
For details, please refer to note 21 1n the group financial statements

At 31 December 2007 the company operated both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes, which are financed through
separate Trustee administered funds managed by independent professional fund managers on behalf of the Trustees Contnbutions to the
defined benefit funds are based wpon actuanal advice following the most recent of a regular senies of valuations of the funds by ther
representative independent actuaries

Total pension cost
The total pension cost for the company was £0 1 million (2006 £1 2 milllon) The pension cost in respect of the company’s defined
contribution scheme was €0 3 millon (2006 £0 6 million)

FRS17 '‘Retirement Benefits’

The calculations used 10 assess the FRS17 liabilities of the retrement benefit scheme are based on the most recent actuanal valuatons,
updated to 31 Decernber 2007 by qualiied independent actuaries The scheme's assets are slated at ther market value at 31 December
2007 The assumptions used are identical to those used for determining the group charge under |AS19

2007 2006
The amounts recognised i the balance sheet are determined as follows £m £m
Equities 375 383
Bonds 159 127
Other 01 03
Total market value of assels 535 513
Present value of habilities {55 4) {600)
Deficit {19 [=X4)
Related deferred tax asset 05 26
Net pension liability {1 4) 61
2007 2006

The costs of the scheme for the year ended 31 December were as follows £m £m
Analysis of the charge to operating profit

- Current service costs 04 04

- Past service costs - 05
Total operating charge 04 o9
Analysis of the credit to finance income

- Expected refurn on asseis 37N (31}

- Interest on habihties 31 28
Total finance credit {06} ©3)
Total (credit)/charge before tax {02) 06
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2007 2006
Analysis of movement n deficit In the scheme for the year ended 31 December £m £m
Gross deficit in the scheme at 1 January 87) (102)
Contributions paid 16 05
Current service cost {04) 04
Past senice adjustment - {0 5)
Total finance crecit 06 03
Actuarial gain 50 16
Gross deficit in the scheme at 31 December (19) 87
2007 2006

Analysis of amounts recognised In reserves £m £m
Difference between expected and actual refurn on assets (10 18
Expenence gains and losses ansing on the scheme labilities 08 21
Effect of changing the financial assumptions 52 19
Actuanal gain recognised In reserves 50 16
Actuarial gan as a percentage of scheme assels 2007 2006 2005 2004
and liabities at 31 December % % % %
Difference between expected and actual refurn on assets as &

percentage of scheme assets 19 3s 83 16
Expenence gains ansing on the scheme liabilibes as a

percentage of the present value of scheme llabilities 14 35 g9 o7
Total actuanal gain recognised in the reserves as a percentage of

the present value of scheme habilities 90 27 75 05
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Arriva plc

We have audred the parent company financial statermnents of Armva plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the
Company balance sheet and the related notes These parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
pohicies set out theren We have also audited the mformation in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that 1s descnbed as having been
audited

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Arriva plc for the year ended 31 December 2007

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the parent company financial
statements 1n accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Our responsbility 15 to audit the parent company financral statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audiled m
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) This report, including
the optnion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companses Act
1985 and for no other purpose We do not, n gving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or 10 any other
person to whom this repart I1s shown or Inlo whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent In wnting

We report (o you our opinion as 10 whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent
company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 10 be audited have been properly piepared in
accordance wiih the Companies Act 1885 We also report to you whether in our opmnion the information given in the Direclors' Report 1s
consistent with the parent company financial staterments The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information
presented In the Business Review that i1s cross referred from the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report

In addition we report 1o you i, n our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not recerved all the
information and explanations we reguire for our audit, or If information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other tnformation contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent company financial
staterments The other information comprises only the Chairman's Statement, the Chief Executive’s Rewiew, the Financial Review, Principal
nsks and uncertanties, Corporate Responsibility, the Directors' Report, the unaudited part of the Directors' Remuneration Report, Corporate
Governance and the other reports on pages 2 to 17 We consider the mplications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements Our responsibriies do not extend o any other
informatien

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit iIncludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounits and disclosures i the parent company financial
staterents and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and jJudgments made by the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the company's crcumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtaw all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Beport 1o be audited are free from maienal misstatement whether caused by fraud or other iregulanty or error In
forming our epinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements
and the part of the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report (o be audited

Opinion

In our opinIon

« the parent compary financial statements give a true and fair view, In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, of the state of the company's affars as at 31 December 2007,

» the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly
prepared In accordance with the Companies Acl 1985, and

the mformauon gven in the Directors’ Report 15 consistent with the parent company financial statements

Prlh‘é%ﬁt%e%é@wé L L’P

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Newcastle upon Tyme
18 March 2008
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Financial Calendar 2008/9

Annual General Meeting
Meeting date

Final ordinary dividend

Record date
Payment date

Results for the 6 months to 30 June 2008

Announcermnent date

Interim ordinary dividend

Record date
Payment date

Results for the year ending 31 December 2008

Announcement date

23 Apnl 2008

28 March 2008
1 May 2008

26 August 2008

12 September 2008
1 QOciober 2008

March 2008 - date 10 be confirmed
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